
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Sustainability Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin 


will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given 


below. 


 


Meeting of the: 


Date /Time: 
Location: 


 
 
 


 


 


 


Members: 


 


SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Monday, October 25, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m. 
 


The meeting of the Sustainability Committee will be conducted virtually due to COVID- 
19. You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/203020813. You can also dial in using your phone: 
+1 (571) 317-3116, Access Code: 203-020-813 
 
New to GoToMeeting:  Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/203020813 


 
Ben Heili, Rachel Venegas, Rich Morris, Gwen Drury, John Hallinan, Donelle Scaffidi, 
Stephan Jackson, Yvonne Meichtry, Denise Duranczyk, Brady Troeller, Scott Taylor  


 


 


 


1. Call to Order 


2. Communication 


3. Approve September 27, 2021 minutes 


  OLD BUSINESS  


 


4. Survey update - Donelle Scaffidi 


 


5. Goals/Purpose – Bring your feedback 


 


6. Review McFarland Plan/Monona Plan 


 


  NEW BUSINESS  


 


7. Presentations - Stoughton Utilities Director, Jill Weiss 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/Guests: 


 


8. November- 
 


9. December-Christal Campbell, Stormwater Education Coordinator 


 


10. Adjournment 
 


 


cc. Mayor Swadley, Department Heads, Council, Attorney Matt Dregne, Library Clerical Asst., Receptionists, Stoughton Newspapers/Wisc 


State Journal *Note: An expanded meeting may constitute a quorum of the Council. Meeting may close per Statutes 19.85 (1)(b)to consider the 
licensing of a person, then reopen for regular course of business. 


Item # AGENDA 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/






Meeting of:  Sustainability Committee Minutes 


Date/Time: Monday, September 27, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m. 


Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/164921765  


Access Code: 164-921-765  


Members Present Ben Heili, Rachel Venegas, Rich Morris, Gwen Drury, John Hallinan, Donelle 


Scaffidi, Denise Duranczyk, Yvonne Meichtry, Brady Troeller, Scott Taylor  


Guests- Brett Hebert, Amy Wanek, Michelle Probst 


Excused- Stephan Jackson 


Call to Order: by Chairperson Venegas 6:02 pm 


Approve August 23, 2021 minutes  
Motion to approve August 23, 2021 minutes by Duranczyk, seconded by Heili 
Motion carried unanimously 


Communications-Dane County Rain Barrel event October 23rd at Garver Mill 


Survey update-Donelle Scaffidi introduction of Michelle Probst from UW Extension 


Presentation from Brett Hebert Stoughton Public Works Director 


Goals/Purpose of committee-Committee will define scope of work at future meeting 


Review of McFarland Plan/ Monona Plan-discussion regarding sustainable plan, 


communication/education and work groups to focus guidelines and principles 


Future Agenda Items- next meeting October 25, 2021


Goals/Purpose 


Review other community plans 


Survey 


Adjourn-Motion to Adjourn by Duranczyk, seconded by Hallinan 


Motion carried unanimously at 8:04 p.m. 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/164921765






1


Judi Krebs


From: Rachel Venegas
Sent: Tuesday, October 5, 2021 7:38 PM
To: Judi Krebs; Ben Heili; Tim Swadley; rich@broodminder.com; gwendrury@gmail.com; 


hallinan.john@gmail.com; dscaffidi24@gmail.com; stevieboy3355@gmail.com; 
ymeichtry@gmail.com; bobkomes@hotmail.com; bradytroeller@outlook.com; 
sotaylor1968@yahoo.com; Brett Hebert; probst.michelle@countyofdane.com; City 
Council; Department Heads; Sarah Monette; stoughtonreporter@wcinet.com; 
r@wcinet.com; visitorservices@stoughtonwi.com; administrator@stoughtonwi.com; 
Spencer Meier; MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com


Cc: Candee Christen
Subject: Sustainability Committee Update - Draft Vision


Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged


Good evening all, 
 
Below I have drafted the areas of our vision that we discussed in our last meeting. Please review these areas and 
bring your feedback to our next meeting. If you have more examples to include in each area, please bring those 
to the meeting as well.  
 
Also consider for each of these areas if the next appropriate step would be to create Baselines, Targets, and 
Actions, or how you would like to see the plan broken down into more detail (considering other local cities' 
plans as examples, like Monona, Middleton, McFarland  or Sun Prairie). 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. Please do not reply all. See you at the next meeting. A full 
agenda will follow closer to the meeting date (October 25). 
 


       Energy usage (examples: roof-top solar) 


       Transportation (Examples: Highway projects, Light rail) 


       Water quality and use (example wetlands, use of water in homes, rain barrels) 


       Solid waste management (examples composting, recycling) 


       Land use and development (Examples: green street design, agriculture-focused 
practices, prairie, native grasslands, trees, protected areas) 


       Building use: (Examples: building design, at-home practices like insulation, business 
building practices, LED lighting) 


       Social equity (Examples: establish diversity spend targets – from Steve) 


       Community Health (Examples: food supply, at-home gardening, farmer’s market, 
community health resources) 


       Resilience (Examples backbone to all of these, like being prepared for natural disasters, 
local sourcing)  







2


       Education (Examples triple bottom line – planet/people/profit) 


       Community Engagement (Example: survey, community input planning, , recognition of 
citizens, city departments, businesses and partners, sharing successes) 


       Governance of the plan (Examples: review city policies with a sustainability lens). 
  


       Sustainability dashboard and website 


 


Thanks,  


Rachel Venegas, Alderperson - District 1 


 








 


 


 


STOUGHTON, WI 
   


AREA 
 


2021-2022 


Sustainability 


Plan 


 


  







 


ii 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Introduction ..................................................... 3 


1. Vision ....................................................... 4 


2. Company Overview .................................. 5 


3. CURRENT SUSTAINABILITY 


PRACTICES ................................................... 6 


4. planning process ...................................... 7 


5. action plan ................................................ 9 


6. Marketing and Sales Plan ...................... 11 


7. Financial Plan ........................................ 13 


Appendix ....................................................... 16 


Instructions for Getting Started with 


Estimated Start-Up Costs ......................... 17 


Instructions for Getting Started on Profit & 


Loss Projections ....................................... 19 


 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 3 


INTRODUCTION 


The Stoughton Area Sustainability Committee is made up of the mayor, two alderpersons, and 


nine community members. 


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Alderperson Ben Heili, Alderperson, Rachel Venegas (Chair), 


Rich Morris, Gwen Drury, John Hallinan, Donelle Scaffidi (Vice Chair), Stephan Jackson, 


Yvonne Meichtry, Denise Duranczyk, Brady Troeller, Scott Taylor   


On X date, the Stoughton City Council adopted resolution X to create a sustainability 


committee.  Beginning in September of 2021, the committee started working together on this 


Sustainability Plan. 


 


Sustainability definition: 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 4 


1. VISION 


The Stoughton Sustainability Committee’s vision is to address sustainability holistically. The 


following areas of focus have been proposed.    


 Energy usage (examples: roof-top solar) 


 Transportation (Examples: Highway projects, Light rail) 


 Water quality and use (example wetlands, use of water in homes, rain barrels) 


 Solid waste management (examples composting, recycling) 


 Land use and development (Examples: green street design, agriculture-focused 


practices, prairie, native grasslands, trees, protected areas) 


 Building use: (Examples: building design, at-home practices like insulation, business 


building practices, LED lighting) 


 Social equity (Examples: establish diversity spend targets) 


 Community Health (Examples: food supply, at-home gardening, farmer’s market, 


community health resources) 


 Resilience (Examples backbone to all of these, like being prepared for natural 


disasters, local sourcing)  


 Education (Examples triple bottom line – planet/people/profit) 


 Community Engagement (Example: survey, community input planning, , recognition 


of citizens, city departments, businesses and partners, sharing successes) 


 Governance of the plan (Examples: review city policies with a sustainability lens). 
 


 Sustainability dashboard and website 


Which area for UniverCity? 


Think about layout for next levels down from Vision: Baselines, Targets, and Actions for 


each area?  Consider triple bottom line: planet, people, profit. 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 5 


2. COMPANY OVERVIEW 


The Company Overview is a brief summary of the intended business, including what it uniquely 


delivers, the mission, how it got started, market positioning, operational structure, and financial 


goals. After reviewing this section, the reader should have a broad understanding of what the 


business is setting out to do and how it is organized. 


This section is not meant to be lengthy. Keep it short and succinct. This is the snapshot of the 


business. The type of business will determine what of the following sections will be required for 


the business plan. Only include what is needed to properly represent the business and remove 


anything else. 


 Company summary: This is the introductory section to the company, also known as 


the ‘elevator pitch’ of what the company stands for and is setting out to do. Include the 


company’s goals and some of the near-term objectives. Even if it is a small, service-


oriented company, developing a summary is an important step to explain and focus the 


core business. 


 Mission statement: This is a concise statement on the guiding principles of the 


company and what the company aims to do for customers, employees, owners, and 


other stakeholders. 


 Company history: This provides the back story, especially the personal story, of why 


the business was founded. Use this section to give the overarching history of the 


company from its start and bring the reader up-to-date on where the company is now in 


terms of sales, profits, key services, and customers. 


 Markets and services: This outlines the target market and related needs that the 


company will address. Include brief descriptions of offered services and targeted 


markets and customer types. This section can be a general overview as more details 


will be suggested in a later section of this plan. 


 Operational structure: This describes the operational details of the business. List any 


potential employees needed on the payroll to make the business run. 


 Financial goals: This describes the start-up capital needed, projected revenue and 


profits, forecast, and budget of the business. 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 6 


3. CURRENT SUSTAINABILITY PRACTICES 


 Public Works Describe the current market for the business’ offered service. At a high 


level, what is the market and who are its participants; is it business customers or 


consumers; what is the specific geography, etc.? More details on the market will be 


provided in the next section of the plan. Next, describe the current state of available 


services and how the business will offer better. Also discuss any additional services the 


company plans to offer in the future. 


 Utilities  Describe the service offerings of the business in as much detail as possible. If 


it is effective to include pictures, this would be a good place to place them. 


 Key participants: Identify any strategic partners in the business, such as critical 


suppliers, distributors, referral partners, or any others. In some businesses, products 


are custom-made and any break in their supply will impact the business. There may be 


key contributors to the services offered, so it is important to identify them. 


 Pricing: Provide pricing of the service, gross margin projects, and upgrade paths. 


Describe why the company’s pricing will be attractive to the target market. Have a 


gauge on the competitor’s pricing and explain how the business’ service is unique to 


justify its pricing structure. 


o Note the difference between working hours and billable hours. All working hours are not 


billable. If the business has employees with differing skill levels (for example, in a law 


practice, there are associates, paralegals, lawyers, partners, etc.), indicate the various 


billing rates. 


o Communicate rates clearly to clients and customers. If there are potential additional 


fees which will be passed on to clients or customers, define and establish them up front. 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 7 


4. PLANNING PROCESS 


The Market Analysis provides the reader with an understanding of how well the business 


knows and understands its market and if it is big enough to support the business objectives. 


This section provides an overview of the industry that the business will participate in. As this 


section is narrowed down to the ideal customer based on the business strategy, the plan will 


define the target market. A detailed description and sizing of the target market will help the 


reader understand the market value the business is pursuing (the number of potential 


customers multiplied by the average revenue for the product or service).  


In defining the target market, the plan will identify key elements such as geographic location, 


demographics, buyer characteristics, the target market's needs, and how market needs are 


currently being met. If there are any direct competitors, explain how the company’s service 


compares to the competitors in terms of solving the consumers’ problems.  


This section may also include a Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats (SWOT) 


Analysis as necessary, to better assess the business’ position against the competition.  


Depending on the type of business, the following sections may or may not be necessary. Only 


include what is need and remove everything else. 


 Industry type: Begin with the broader descriptions of the market opportunity. For 


instance, if the intended business is a travel agency, the industry type would be service 


industry. In this particular market, the global revenues are projected to exceed $183 


billion, but the local agency will have a much smaller market. Identify the potential 


clientele in the company’s local geography that might fit into the target demographic 


group. This section will also identify any industry regulations and evaluate trends in 


market growth and stability. 


 Market segmentation: This section defines the main market segments and those the 


business is targeting now. A market segment is a group of people (or other businesses) 


within the industry, identify smaller segments, such as luxury travel or exotic cruisers. 


The market can also be segmented by criteria such as quality, price, range of products, 


geography, demographics, and others. A few other elements to consider answer 


questions such as: Is the segment growing, shrinking, or will it be flat for the next few 


years? What percentage of the market will be reachable? What share of the market is 


anticipated within the next 2-3 years? Graphics are best used in a section like this to 


either show growth (line graph) or percentages of markets or groups (pie chart). 


 Competition: All businesses compete in one way or another. It may be with specific, 


direct competitors or it may be with the way customers have been doing things for a 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 8 


long time. When identifying the competition, identify who else is providing services to 


solve the same problem the business seeks to address.  What are the business’ 


advantages over these competitors? How will the company’s voice be heard over the 


noise of competitors? Sometimes a business plan includes a matrix of features and 


compares how each business offers or does not offer those features. This section 


reflects how the company’s solution is different and better suited for the identified target 


market compared to the competition. 


 SWOT analysis: A SWOT analysis may be included by completing the boxes below to 


assess the business’ current environment’s strengths and weaknesses (internal) and 


opportunities and threats (external). This is a good exercise to go through on an annual 


basis. After completing the analysis, provide thoughts on: how the business’ strengths 


can help maximize opportunities and minimize threats; how its weaknesses can slow 


the company’s ability to capitalize on the opportunities; and how the business’ 


weaknesses could expose it to threats. 


 


STRENGTHS 


 Advantage 
 Capabilities 
 Assets, people 
 Experience 
 Financial reserves 
 Value proposition 
 Price, value, quality 


 


WEAKNESSES 


 Disadvantages 
 Gap in capabilities 
 Cash Flow 
 Suppliers 
 Experience 
 Areas to improve 
 Causes of lose sales 


OPPORTUNITIES 


 Areas to improve 
 New segments 
 Industry trends 
 New products 
 New innovations 
 Key partnership 


THREATS 


 Economy movement 


 Obstacles faced 


 Competitor actions 


 Political impacts 


 Environmental effects 


 Loss of key staff 


 Market demand 


 


SWOT







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 9 


5. ACTION PLAN 


Additionally, it is necessary to outline how the company currently and will continue to develop 


and maintain a loyal customer base. This section includes management responsibilities with 


dates and budgets and making sure results can be tracked. What are the envisioned phases 


for future growth and the capabilities that need to be in place to realize growth? 


The operating plan describes how the business works. Depending on the type of the business, 


important elements of this plan should include how the company will bring services to market 


and how it will support customers.  It is the logistics, technology, and basic blocking and 


tackling of the business. 


Depending on the type of business, the following sections may or may not be necessary.  Only 


include what is needed and remove everything else. Remember:  try to keep the business plan 


as short as possible.  Excessive detail in this section could easily make the plan too long. 


 Order fulfillment: Describe the company’s procedures for delivering services to its 


customers. As a service company, determine how to keep track of the customer base, 


form of communications, and how best to manage sales and data. 


 Payment: Describe the standard payment terms and the payment methods accepted. 


Describe the pricing plans (one-time service fees, hourly-based fees, markups, and any 


other fees) and any impact on cash flow. 


 Technology: If technology is critical to the business, whether it is part of the service 


offering or is fundamental to delivering a service, describe the key technologies used 


that are proprietary. If the business data (company or customer) is at risk, describe the 


data security plan in place, as well as any backup or recovery in the case of a disaster 


or outage. 


 Key customers: Identify any customers that are important to the success of the 


business due to a partnership, volume, or pathway to a new market. Also identify any 


customers who bring in more than 10% of the company’s revenues. 


 Key employees and organization: Describe unique skills or experiences that are 


required of the current team. If necessary, describe any proprietary recruiting or training 


processes in place. List key employees that are necessary for success. Include an 


organization chart to support this section. 


 Facilities: Describe the type of business facility, whether leased, owned, or a shared 


business premises. Provide a listing of business locations, their purpose, and future 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 10 


plans for these facilities. If there are no facilities, and the business plans to buy or lease 


them, include that in this plan. 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 11 


6. MARKETING AND SALES PLAN 


Promoting the business, whether through generating leads or traffic to a website or store, is 


one of the most important functions of any business. In this section of the plan, provide details 


of intended marketing of the business. Describe the key messages and channels used for 


generating leads and promoting the business. This section should also describe any sales 


strategy. Depending on the type of business, the following sections may or may not be 


necessary. Only include what is needed and remove everything else. 


 Key messages: Describe the key messages that will elevate services in the target 


customers’ eyes. If there is sample collateral or graphical images of some messages, 


include them. 


 Marketing activities: Which of the following promotion options provide the company 


the best chance of product recognition, qualified leads, store traffic, or appointments? 


o Media advertising (newspaper, magazine, television, radio) 


o Direct mail 


o Telephone solicitation 


o Seminars or business conferences 


o Joint advertising with other companies 


o Word of mouth or fixed signage 


o Digital marketing such as social media, email marketing, SEO, or blogging 


o Provide limited free consultations (such as free job pricing for Contractors, free 


landscaping consultation for landscapers, or free pricing opinions for real estate agents)  


o Sponsor local sports teams or other community events 


o Give free informational talks either at the business offices or for local businesses 


offering complementary services (such as a real estate agent providing seminars about 


preparing a home to bring to market) 


o Do free work for local non-profits (such as an ad agency designing a local farmer’s 


market’s website for free) 


 Sales strategy: If needed, what will be the sales approach? Will there be full-time 


commissioned sales people, contract sales, or another approach? Many one-on-one 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 12 


service businesses are heavily reliant on word of mouth. Take this into account when 


developing the sales strategy. 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 13 


7. FINANCIAL PLAN 


Creating a financial plan is where all of the business planning comes together. Up to this point, 


the target market, target customers, and pricing have all been identified. These items, along 


with assumptions, will help estimate the company’s sales forecast. The other side of the 


business will be what expenses are expected. This is important on an ongoing basis to see 


when the business is profitable. It is also important to know what expenses will need to be 


funded before customer sales, or the cash they generate, is received.  


At a minimum, this section should include estimated start-up costs and projected profit and 


loss, along with a summary of the assumptions being made with these projections. 


Assumptions should include initial and ongoing sales, along with the timing of these inflows. 


 Projected start-up costs: The table below shows a sample of ongoing and one-time 


cost items that the business might need in order to open. Many businesses are paid on 


credit over time and do not have cash coming in immediately. It is necessary to make 


assumptions about how many months of recurring items, in addition to one-time 


expenses, to estimate when cash will begin to flow into the company. To begin with, the 


company will have to fund out of savings or an initial investment. There is a blank table 


in the Appendix to complete potential start-up cost projections. 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 14 


  


START-UP COSTS 


Your Office-Based Agency January 1, 20xx 


COST ITEMS MONTHS COST/ MONTH ONE-TIME COST TOTAL COST 


Advertising/Marketing 3 $300 $2,000 $2,900 


Employee Salaries* 4 $500 $2 $2,002 


Employee Payroll Taxes and Benefits 4 $100 $1,500 $1,600 


Rent/Lease Payments/Utilities 4 $750 $2,500 $5,500 


Postage/Shipping 1 $25 $25 $50 


Communication/Telephone 4 $70 $280 $560 


Computer Equipment  $0 $1,500 $1,500 


Computer Software  $0 $300 $300 


Insurance  $0 $60 $60 


Interest Expense  $0 $0 $0 


Bank Service Charges  $0 $0 $0 


Supplies  $0 $0 $0 


Travel & Entertainment  $0 $0 $0 


Equipment  $0 $2,500 $2,500 


Furniture & Fixtures  $0 $0 $0 


Leasehold Improvements  $0 $0 $0 


Security Deposit(s)  $0 $0 $0 


Business Licenses/Permits/Fees  $0 $5,000 $5,000 


Professional Services - Legal, Accounting  $0 $1,500 $1,500 


Consultant(s)  $0 $0 $0 


Inventory  $0 $0 $0 


Cash-On-Hand (Working Capital)  $0 $1,000 $1,000 


Miscellaneous  $0 $2,000 $2,000 


 ESTIMATED START-UP BUDGET    $26,472 


*Based on part-time employees. This may change once you hit your growth benchmark. 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 15 


Projected profit and loss model: The model below shows a sample of the projections a small business is forecasting for their 


first 12 months of operations. The top portion of the table shows projected sales and gross profit. This is a good place to begin 


creating the company’s sales forecast. The next section itemizes the recurring expenses the business is projecting for the same 


months. These should be consistent with the estimated start-up costs completed in the prior section. At the bottom of this model, 


it will possible to see when the company is becoming profitable and what expense items are the most impactful to its profitability. 


There is a blank table in the Appendix to complete the business’ own start-up cost projections. 


START-UP COSTS 


Your Office-Based Agency January 1, 20xx 


REVENUE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD 


Estimated Sales $5,000 $13,000 $16,000 $7,000 $14,500 $16,400 $22,500 $23,125 $24,549 $22,000 $25,000 $27,349 $216,423 


Less Sales Returns & 
Discounts 


$0 ($350) $0 ($206) ($234) $0 $0 ($280) ($1,200) ($1,600) $0 ($2,400) ($6,270) 


Service Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250 $350 $100 $0 $0 $1,245 $1,360 $3,305 


Other Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500 


Net Sales $5,000 $12,650 $16,000 $6,794 $14,266 $16,650 $22,850 $24,445 $23,349 $20,400 $26,245 $26,309 $214,958 


Cost of Goods Sold* $2,000 $5,200 $6,400 $2,800 $5,800 $6,560 $9,000 $9,250 $9,820 $8,800 $10,000 $10,940 $86,569 


Gross Profit $3,000 $7,450 $9,600 $3,994 $8,466 $10,090 $13,850 $15,195 $13,529 $11,600 $16,245 $15,369 $128,389 


EXPENSES JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD 


Salaries & Wages $2,500 $2,500 $3,500 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $8,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $9,000 $76,500 


Marketing/Advertising $400 $450 $450 $450 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900 $900 $1,200 $1,200 $9,550 


Sales Commissions $250 $650 $800 $350 $725 $820 $1,125 $1,156 $1,227 $1,100 $1,250 $1,367 $10,821 


Rent $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $15,000 


Utilities $250 $150 $200 $200 $200 $250 $250 $250 $200 $200 $250 $250 $2,650 


Website Expenses $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $225 $225 $2,200 


Internet/Phone $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $110 $1,320 


Insurance $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $165 $1,980 


Travel $100 $0 $0 $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $675 $800 $0 $0 $1,825 


Legal/Accounting $1,200 $0 $0 $450 $0 $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250 $2,400 


Office Supplies $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $125 $1,500 


Interest Expense $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 


Total Expenses $6,525 $5,575 $6,775 $8,525 $8,650 $9,295 $12,100 $13,131 $13,827 $13,825 $13,575 $13,942 $125,746 


Income Before Taxes ($3,525) $1,875 $2,825 ($4,531) ($184) $795 $1,750 $2,064 ($298) ($2,225) $2,670 $1,427 $2,643 


Income Tax Expense ($529) $281 $424 ($680) ($28) $119 $263 $310 ($45) ($334) $401 $214 $396 


NET INCOME ($2,996) $1,594 $2,401 ($3,851) ($156) $676 $1,488 $1,754 ($253) ($1,891) $2,270 $1,213 $2,246 


*In the service industry, Cost of Goods Sold is the monetized value of the time spent on the client. 
 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 16 


APPENDIX 


START-UP COSTS 


Your Office-Based Agency January 1, 20xx 


COST ITEMS MONTHS COST/ MONTH ONE-TIME COST TOTAL COST 


Advertising/Marketing     


Employee Salaries     


Employee Payroll Taxes and Benefits     


Rent/Lease Payments/Utilities     


Postage/Shipping     


Communication/Telephone     


Computer Equipment     


Computer Software     


Insurance     


Interest Expense     


Bank Service Charges     


Supplies     


Travel & Entertainment     


Equipment     


Furniture & Fixtures     


Leasehold Improvements     


Security Deposit(s)     


Business Licenses/Permits/Fees     


Professional Services - Legal, Accounting     


Consultant(s)     


Inventory     


Cash-On-Hand (Working Capital)     


Miscellaneous     


ESTIMATED START-UP BUDGET     


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 17 


Instructions for Getting Started with Estimated 


Start-Up Costs 


Determining a business' startup costs is critical to ensure enough cash is available to begin 


business operations within the budgeted time frame as well as within the cost budget. Startup 


costs typically fall within two categories: monthly costs and one-time costs.  Monthly costs 


cover costs that occur each month during the startup period, and one-time costs are costs that 


will be incurred once during the startup period. 


Steps for preparation: 


 Step 1: Enter the company name and the date this estimate is being prepared. 


 Step 2: Enter the number of months and the monthly cost for each cost item that is 


recurring. For one-time costs only, skip the monthly costs. If there are cost items that 


have both recurring and one-time amounts, enter those as well. The total cost will 


calculate automatically in the far-right column. 


 Step 3: Once all of the costs are entered, review the individual items and total amount 


to see where the budget can be fine-tuned or move something out into the future when 


more revenue is coming in. 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 18 


START-UP COSTS 


Your Office-Based Agency January 1, 20xx 


REVENUE JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD 


Estimated Product Sales              


Less Sales Returns & Discounts              


Service Revenue              


Other Revenue              


Net Sales              


Cost of Goods Sold              


Gross Profit              


EXPENSES JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC YTD 


Salaries & Wages              


Marketing/Advertising              


Sales Commissions              


Rent              


Utilities              


Website Expenses              


Internet/Phone              


Insurance              


Travel              


Legal/Accounting              


Office Supplies              


Interest Expense              


Other 1              


Total Expenses              


Income Before Taxes              


Income Tax Expense              


NET INCOME              


* In the service industry, Cost of Goods Sold is the monetized value of the time spent on the client. 


 







 
 Services 


Business Plan 


 


 19 


Instructions for Getting Started on Profit & Loss 


Projections 


Completing projections for Profit and Loss of a new company is a good exercise to understand 


and communicate when the company will begin to break even and see how sales and profits 


will grow. The top portion of the model to the left, Revenue, is a good way to forecast sales, 


month by month for the first year. The lower portion then applies estimated expenses for the 


same period of time to derive the business' profitability. 


Steps for preparation: 


 Step 1: Enter the company name and the date this projection is being prepared. 


 Step 2: For each month, beginning in January or whenever the start is estimated, enter 


the expected sales to be. This could be for a single service or multiple services. Add 


lines to this model for additional offerings. From this, subtract any product returns or 


discounts that are to be tracked (these should be shown as negative numbers, for 


example, -10). Below Net Sales, enter the Cost of Goods Sold. This refers to the 


monetized value of the time spent on a particular client. 


 Step 3: For each month, enter the estimated salaries, marketing, utilities, and other 


items that are projected. 


 Step 4: Once all of the costs have been entered, review the individual items and total 


amount to see where projections can be fine-tuned or move something out into the 


future when more revenue is coming in. The objective is to get to profitability and 


positive cash flow as quickly as possible. 








 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
  


 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


Sustainability: “Meeting the needs of the present without


compromising the ability of future generations to meet their


own needs.” (Bruntland Report, 1987)


 
 
ACCEPTED: ____________ 
 


 


 


Sustainability Plan 


 


PREPARED BY: 
MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


 


PREPARED FOR: 
VILLAGE OF MCFARLAND, WI 


July 26, 2021







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


2 | P a g e  
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ........................................................................................................................... 4
1. WHAT IS THE MCFARLAND SUSTAINABILITY PLAN? ................................................................................ 8
2. PREVIOUS PLANNING EFFORTS ............................................................................................................ 9
3. PLANNING PROCESS ........................................................................................................................ 10
4. ACTION PLAN ............................................................................................................................... 12
APPENDIX A – ACTION RANKING SPREADSHEETS ..................................................................................... A-1
APPENDIX B – COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS ......................................................................................... B-1
APPENDIX C – VISIONING RESULTS ....................................................................................................... C-1
APPENDIX D – PREVIOUS PLANNING EFFORTS ......................................................................................... D-1
APPENDIX E – METHODS & SOURCES ................................................................................................... E-1


ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS


 
Village of McFarland Ad-Hoc Sustainability Committee 


Angela Freedman, Chair 
Michael Tiboris, Vice Chair 


Bruce Fischer, Resident Member 
Isabella Gletty-Syoen, Resident Member 
Amber Meyer Smith, Resident Member 


Mary Robb, Resident Member
Judy Taber, Resident Member 


 


Village Board 
Carolyn Clow, Village President 
Stephanie Brassington, Trustee 


Mike Flaherty, Trustee 
Carrie Nelson, Trustee 
Justin Rupert, Trustee 
Chris St. Clair, Trustee 


Ed Wreh, Trustee 
 


Village Staff 
Andrew Bremer, Community & Economic Development Director 


Matt Schuenke, Village Administrator 
Jim Hessling, Public Works Director 


 
 
  


THIS REPORT IS 


FORMATTED FOR 


DOUBLE SIDED 


PRINTING 


 


THIS REPORT IS 


FORMATTED FOR 


DOUBLE SIDED 


PRINTING 


 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


3 | P a g e  
 


 


Photo Credit: madison.com   
 



http://www.madison.com/





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


4 | P a g e  
 


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
On January 13, 2020, the McFarland Village Board of Trustees adopted Resolution #2020-04, which 
created a Sustainable McFarland Ad-Hoc Committee for the purpose of studying and creating a plan for 
sustainability within the Village.  The Board tasked the Committee with the following: 


1. Work with the public, Village staff, consultants and others to draft and develop a sustainability 
plan for implementation in McFarland. 


2. Evaluate and make recommendations on the Village joining the WI Department of Natural 
Resources Green Tier Program. 


3. At the conclusion of all work, make a recommendation to the Village Board regarding the Ad-Hoc 
Committee being established as a standing committee. 


 
On September 14, 2020, the Village Board adopted Resolution #2020-16 approving participation in the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Green Tier Legacy Community Program.  The mission of the 
Green Tier program is to help communities across the state of Wisconsin move continuously toward a 
sustainable future through initiatives that promote environmental stewardship, economic growth, public 
health, and social equity.  Also in September, the Village joined Sustain Dane.  Sustain Dane’s mission is 
to inspire, connect, and support people to accelerate sustainable actions for community wellbeing.  The 
missions of these organizations align with the purpose of the Sustainability Committee.  Participation in 
these organizations provide motivation, structure, support, and educational resources to aid the 
Committee’s efforts to study ways to improve sustainability within the Village and to take on actions that 
may not otherwise happen without the support gained through these agencies.  The Green Tier program 
also provides additional benefits to the Village including receiving prioritization in applying for certain DNR 
grants and streamlining in certain DNR permitting processes through gaining access to a DNR staff liaison. 
 
Beginning in October of 2020, the Committee began working on the McFarland Sustainability Plan:  a 
systems approach to making the Village efficient, sustainable, and resilient.  This summary explains the 
Sustainability Plan, as well as the public process through which the plan was developed. 
 
The Sustainability Plan addresses six separate, yet interconnected aspects of life within the Village of 
McFarland:  Energy, Transportation, Solid Waste, Water, Land Use & Development, and Community 
Health.   For each of these six categories, the Village created a vision statement; identified indicators by 
which performance can be measured; selected desired performance trends; and prioritized a list of 
possible actions to accomplish these objectives. 
 


Guiding Plan Visions: 
 


Energy 
Village government, residents and businesses embrace energy efficiency 
strategies and renewable energy sources.  Efforts are aimed at reducing the 


local use of energy derived from fossil fuels each year, making steady progress toward a 
100% clean energy future. 


 


Transportation 
McFarland has an extensive multi-modal transportation network that is 
accommodating to the needs of all people, regardless of age, ability or income.  


Community members are enabled to make sustainable transportation choices when 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


5 | P a g e  
 


traveling to and from work, school, and other daily activities.  Village transportation 
infrastructure is sustainably designed and integrated with a regional system that 
combines timely, cost-effective public transportation options, like buses and light rail, 
with a safe and ubiquitous network of routes for walking and bicycling.   


 


Solid Waste 
The residents, businesses, and government of McFarland utilize the most efficient 
and effective methods available to reduce, reuse, compost, and recycle waste.  


Village government uses incentives and policies to limit unnecessary waste and promote 
the lesser use and safe disposal of hazardous materials.  Village residents and businesses 
are knowledgeable and responsible about waste management methods, and they value 
and celebrate the creative reuse of goods and materials. 


 


Water 
McFarland has an abundance of clean water, including surface water and 
groundwater, for both recreation and drinking.  Public and private users limit 


their use of groundwater while also seeking to optimize infiltration of stormwater through 
best practices.  Village government, residents and businesses endeavor to keep 
groundwater and local waterways free of chemicals, salt, trash, soil, and excess nutrients. 


 


Land Use & Development 
The Village of McFarland prioritizes the protection of environmentally sensitive 
areas and biodiversity in land use decisions and preserves land strategically for 


those purposes.  The Village encourages diversity in both the built and business 
environments, seeking mixed-use developments, neighborhoods with a mix of housing 
types and price points, and a variety of business types in order to expand access to 
housing, jobs, services, recreation, social interaction, and other basic needs.  Higher 
density and infill developments are encouraged so that land and infrastructure resources 
are used efficiently.  Streets and development sites utilize resilient, native landscaping 
that enhances the aesthetic appearance and ecological health of the Village.   


 


Community Health 
McFarland, including its government, residents, and businesses, embraces 
community health and wellbeing as an integral part of sustainability.  McFarland 


is intentional about embracing diversity and inclusivity, such that all residents are able to 
live happy and satisfying lives.  Healthy food, clean water, housing, jobs, recreation 
opportunities and health care are available and accessible to all residents regardless of 
age, ability, gender identity, sexual-orientation, income, or ethnicity.  The community 
values social connections and civic participation and works together to meet the needs of 
its most vulnerable residents. 


 
The Sustainability Plan is a living document and continual improvement and annual updates are an integral 
part of the system.  This living Plan is designed to help the Village adapt and improve performance each 
year through incremental changes that will cumulatively result in increased efficiency, cost-savings, 
environmental benefits, and long-term resilience.  Each year the Village will evaluate performance, adjust 
the desired targets if appropriate, and revise the action plan. 
 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


6 | P a g e  
 


The process through which this Plan was developed included: 


• Numerous public working meetings with the Village Sustainability Committee, November 2020 
through June 2021 


• A Public Visioning Session, February 11, 2021 


• A Community Survey, May 2021 


• A Business and Developer Focus Group, June 24, 2021 


• Progress reports to the Village Board, periodically  


• Review of the final draft and recommendation to the Village Board by the Ad-Hoc Committee, July 
8, 2021 


• Public presentation and acceptance by the Village Board, July 26, 2021 
 
Through this intensive public process, the Village has made strides toward integrating sustainability and 
resiliency into all facets of municipal operations and influence.  This plan enables future actions and 
investments toward improved environmental performance, continued fiscal prudence, and a high quality 
of life for all residents.   


  







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


7 | P a g e  
 


 


Photo Credit: madison.com   
 



http://www.madison.com/





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


8 | P a g e  
 


1.  WHAT IS THE MCFARLAND SUSTAINABILITY PLAN? 
This plan offers a guiding vision, measurable objectives, and targeted strategies (plans of action) to help 
the Village and its residents and property owners operate more efficiently and sustainably.  This plan acts 
as an adjunct to the Village’s Comprehensive Plan and serves to directly support the Village’s Community 
Vision and Mission:1 
 
Community Vision: 
 


The vision of McFarland is to create an inviting, dynamic, diverse community that offers a high 
quality of life and a supportive environment in which all citizens may practice their individual value 
choices. The community actively seeks to preserve its proud heritage, protect its abundant natural 
resources, plan for responsible and balanced residential and commercial growth, promote a viable 
economic base, support educational excellence, provide diverse leisure options, and foster a 
healthy social fabric.  


 


Community Mission: 
 


With direction encouraged from an engaged citizenry, Village elected officials and employees will 
maintain and enhance the quality of life of the community by delivering quality services in an 
efficient and accountable manner and by providing an orderly, unbiased system of government 
that is transparent and accessible. 


 


Guiding Principles  
Sustainability is defined commonly as, "meeting the needs of the present without compromising the 
ability of future generations to meet their own needs." (Brundtland Report, 1987) 
 
Sustainability is referred to as a whole systems approach addressing the environment, social equity, and 
the economy, which are also known as the three “E’s” or the “triple bottom line.”  Sustainability 
emphasizes the importance of balancing all three considerations in every decision-making process.  This 
concept of sustainability incorporates effort and impacts at both the local and global scale – the Village 
affects and is affected by change at both scales, including global climate change.   
 
This plan embraces the following sustainability principles: 
 


1. Reduce dependence on fossil fuels and extracted underground metals and minerals. 
2. Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufactured substances that can accumulate in 


nature. 
3. Reduce dependence on activities that harm life-sustaining ecosystems. 
4. Reduce barriers to achieving present and future human needs equitably and efficiently. 


 


Equity 
Sustainability in the Village of McFarland, as it relates to equity, is focused on enabling people with the 
resources necessary to balance environmental and economic systems.  We strive to deconstruct barriers 
which limit the equitable distribution of goods and services to those who live in out community.  A system 


 
1 McFarland Strategic Plan 2020-2030 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


9 | P a g e  
 


that addresses the needs of some people more than the needs of others is not sustainable.  This plan 
seeks to enable all residents to meet their needs.  
 


Plan Organization 
This plan is organized into the following focus areas:  Energy, Transportation, Solid Waste, Water, Land 
Use & Development, and Community Health.  Within each focus area the plan identifies: 
 


• A vision statement to describe in qualitative terms what sustainability looks like within that 
section. 


• Specific indicators that will serve as baseline sustainability indicators to align with the vision 
statement by which the Village can quantify performance and progress. 


• Specific goals and performance targets to which the Village aspires. 


• An action plan that provides for specific projects, programs, and initiatives to help the Village 
achieve the set targets and vision.  


 


2. Previous Planning Efforts 
The Village’s Strategic Plan 2020-2030 (adopted 2020), the Comprehensive Plan (adopted 2017), the 
East Side Neighborhood Growth Plan (adopted 2008), and the Village Board Goals 2019-2020 (adopted 
2019) all include visions, goals and objectives related to sustainability.   
 
The Strategic Plan states: 
 


The vision of McFarland is to create an inviting, dynamic, diverse community that offers 
a high quality of life and a supportive environment in which all citizens may practice 
their individual value choices. The community actively seeks to preserve its proud 
heritage, protect its abundant natural resources, plan for responsible and balanced 
residential and commercial growth, promote a viable economic base, support 
educational excellence, provide diverse leisure options, and foster a healthy social 
fabric. 


 
A goal from the Comprehensive Plan: 
 


Pursue Local Opportunities to Mitigate and Adapt to Climate Change.  The Village will 
advance local practices to mitigate or reduce the release of greenhouse gasses, and 
work to increase the community’s resilience to the impacts of climate change. 


 
A 2019 Village Board objective: 
 


Develop measurable actions and standards for the advancement of sustainable 
initiatives within the Village. 
 


A complete summary of existing goals, objectives, policies and actions from recently approved Village 
Plans is located in Appendix D. 
 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


10 | P a g e  
 


3. Planning Process 
The Sustainability Plan is designed to be a living document that is constantly evolving and growing to meet 
the needs of the Village. An essential component to the System is an active public process.  Opportunities 
for public participation included a series of Sustainability Committee working meetings, meetings with 
Village staff, a public visioning event, an internet survey, the public presentation of the Plan, and finally, 
adoption of the Plan by the Village Board.   


 


Sustainability Committee Meetings 
The Village formed an Ad-Hoc Sustainability Committee to coordinate and guide the development of the 
Sustainability Plan.   The Sustainability Committee consists of residents of the Village and the Community 
Development Director who served as staff for the Committee and as liaison to other Village Department 
Heads.  The Committee met on a monthly basis to develop the Plan, beginning in June of 2020.  All the 
meetings were open to the public and public comment was allowed.  The Sustainability Committee kept 
the Village Board informed on progress throughout the process.  


  


Public Visioning Session 
On February 11, 2021, the 
Sustainability Committee 
hosted a virtual public 
visioning session to help 
kick off the project.  The 
meeting’s activities were 
organized around the six 
categories or systems upon 
which this project focuses: 
Energy, Transportation, 
Solid Waste, Water, Land 
Use & Development, and 
Community Health.  During 
the meeting, participants 
were put into breakout 
rooms, facilitated by 
consulting staff and 
committee members.  Each 
breakout focused on two 
topics and asked 
participants to brainstorm 
visions, barriers to the 
vision, and actions to 
achieve the vision for each topic.  There were three rounds of breakouts, which allowed participants to 
comment on all six topics.  Each round had the participants brainstorm using an online tool called Miro2 
(see Figure 1).  The tool enabled participants to place sticky notes on boards just as they would have at an 


 
2 https://miro.com/  



https://miro.com/





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


11 | P a g e  
 


in-person meeting.  The visioning session was attended by more than 30 community members.  A full 
summary of visioning session results is in Appendix C.  The comments were synthesized into the six vision 
statements in the Executive Summary above. 


Community Survey 
In May of 2021, the Sustainability Committee and the Village of McFarland hosted an online survey to gain 
a deeper insight into Village residents’ desired future direction for the Village.  The survey asked for 
feedback regarding the level of support for the draft visions and select actions proposed to achieve those 
visions.  Comments and ideas from the community survey, the public meetings, as well as input from 
Village staff and elected officials were all used to inform the action items found in the next section of this 
document.  


As with any survey, there were a wide range of responses, ranging from people who are very excited and 
passionate, as well as knowledgeable, about sustainability issues to respondents who were neither 
interested nor willing to support the efforts; and there were many responses that fell in between these 
two extremes.  In general, survey respondents embraced many of the different facets of sustainability 
presented in the survey.  However, there was also a general concern with the expenses of implementing 
many of the actions and with duplicating efforts that were already underway by other organizations.  The 
complete survey results, including a summary, can be found in Appendix B.     


 


Focus Group 
A focus group discussion was held on June 24, 2021 with six developers from the McFarland area.  The 
developers specialized in everything from single-family subdivision development, senior housing, 
commercial, and multi-family development, both market rate and affordable.  We asked the participants 
four main questions, regarding how they are proactively addressing sustainability, what the barriers are 
to addressing sustainability, how the Village can help, and whether they had any feedback on the 
proposed actions of this plan.  


 The most common ways the participants said they address sustainability now is through building envelope 
efficiency/insulation, in-floor radiant heating, solar, allowing renewable energy in neighborhood 
covenants and native plantings.  Barriers mentioned included cost, lack of available financing, and lack of 
knowledge about techniques and incentives.  They said the Village could help by sharing information on 
best practices and incentive programs, giving additional tax increment financing incentives to projects 
that include renewable energy, and granting credits on impact fees if a development utilizes more green 
building techniques.  There was general support for the actions in the plan, but there was also consensus 
that more incentives are better than more regulations. 


 
 
  







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


12 | P a g e  
 


4.  ACTION PLAN 
 
The Sustainability Framework is the core of the Village of McFarland Sustainability Plan.  This action plan 
is organized into the six interrelated topic areas:  Energy, Transportation, Solid Waste, Water, Land Use & 
Development, and Community Health. 


Within each topic area are five types of information: 


• Background 


• Vision Statement 


• Sustainability Indicators 


• Targets 


• Actions to achieve the targets 
 


Indicators 
The sustainability indicators in each area were chosen in accordance with the following criteria: 


1. Is the indicator worth tracking to see a pattern over time? 
2. Does the indicator measure an area where action items can have an impact? 
3. Is the indicator easy to measure?   
4. Is the data readily available and reproducible on an annual basis? 
5. Are the action items related to the indicators accomplishable? 


 
The sources and baseline years of the indicator data are included in Chapter 7 – Methods and Sources. 
 


Targets 
Targets are the improvement goals that the Village has set for itself.  The majority of the targets look 
ahead 10 years.  Some of the targets are very specific, others are a simple “decrease” or “increase.”  The 
main purpose of the targets is to help the Village track progress toward its visions.  The targets may be 
reevaluated every 2-3 years. 
 


Actions 
Each set of actions is broken down into near-term, mid-term and long-term actions.  These timeframes 
are defined as follows:  


o Near-Term = action should begin within 1-2 years 
o Mid-Term = action should begin within 2-4 years 
o Long-Term = action should begin within 4+ years 


 
The timeframes are meant to indicate roughly when the Village would like to begin working on the 
actions.  Thus, the near-term actions are what the Village has deemed to be the highest priority, the 
mid-term actions are a secondary priority, and the long-term actions are a third priority.   
 
The actions were prioritized based on an assessment of the following criteria: 


1. Impact – how big of an impact the action is likely to have on the indicators. 
a. Low 
b. Medium 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


13 | P a g e  
 


c. High  
2. Cost – roughly how much it will cost the Village to complete the action.  


a. $ = likely can be done at staff level with little to no expenditures 
b. $$ = likely requires both staff involvement and potential professional consultant 
c. $$$ = likely requires major capital expenditures by the Village 


3. Staff Effort – the level of staff effort needed to complete the action. 
a. Low 
b. Medium 
c. High 


4. Duration – approximately how much time it takes to complete the action, once begun. 
a. 3-6 months 
b. 6 months – 1 year 
c. 1-3 years 
d. 3+ years 
e. Ongoing 
f. Recurring 


5. Status – current status of the action. 
a. Not begun 
b. In progress 


 
The visions, indicators, targets and actions can be found on the following pages, organized by topic area.  
The indicators and targets are listed here in their entirety; the actions are listed in simple priority 
groupings.   
 
The full action spreadsheets, which include all the prioritization criteria listed above, as well as an 
identification of the party(ies) responsible for completing the action, are included in Appendix A.  It should 
be noted that the Ad-Hoc Sustainability Committee is not listed under “Responsible Committee or 
Commission” in the spreadsheet because it is assumed the Committee will be involved in all aspects of 
the implementation of this plan.  The listed Committee or Commission in the spreadsheet is the 
responsible party in addition to the Ad-Hoc Committee.  In order to efficiently implement the actions of 
this Plan, it is recommended that the Ad-Hoc Sustainability Committee be turned into a standing 
Sustainability Committee. 


  







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


14 | P a g e  
 


Energy 
According to the Inventory of U.S. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Sinks 1990–2019, 25% of total 
U.S. greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions came from the energy sector.3  Increasing energy 
efficiency and conservation by Village residents, businesses and in municipal operations will 


allow McFarland to reduce its overall energy use and thus reduce GHG emissions.  The adoption of 
renewable energy sources will further assist McFarland in becoming more energy self-sufficient, reducing 
demand for fossil fuels.   


 


 
 


 
3 https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/inventoryexplorer/  


VISION STATEMENT 
Village government, residents and businesses embrace energy efficiency strategies and renewable 
energy sources.  Efforts are aimed at reducing the local use of energy derived from fossil fuels each 
year, making steady progress toward a 100% clean energy future. 



https://cfpub.epa.gov/ghgdata/inventoryexplorer/





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


15 | P a g e  
 


Energy Actions 
 
Near-Term Actions    


• Conduct energy audits of all municipal facilities to identify potential energy efficiency 
improvements. 


• Establish a policy requiring all major remodeling of municipal buildings and any new municipal 
buildings include energy efficiency measures.    


• Replace stoplights with LEDs.     


• Replace streetlights with LEDs.    


• Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, to annually distribute 
information on rebates and tax incentives for renewable energy and energy efficiency.   


• Work with energy providers to develop a community-scale solar energy installation and/or 
develop a program for leasing municipal rooftops for solar.  
   


 
Mid-Term Actions    


• Utilize the EPA's Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator to measure and track greenhouse gas 
emissions from municipal facilities and operations.4    


• Complete EPA Energy Star Portfolio Manager spreadsheet for government energy use.5   


• Utilize the EPA's Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator to measure and track greenhouse gas 
emissions community-wide. 6 


• Develop a financial assistance program to help private property owners with renewable energy 
improvements.    


 
 
Long-Term Actions    


• Adopt a Residential Energy Conservation Ordinance (time-of-sale certification and upgrades).   


• Retrofit streetlights with solar power.     


• Hold a sustainability fair to bring in renewable energy companies to demonstrate and provide 
education on their products.     


 
4 https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator  
5 https://www.energystar.gov/buildings/benchmark  
6 https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator  



https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator

https://www.energystar.gov/buildings/benchmark

https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


16 | P a g e  
 


Transportation 
The transportation sector is the largest contributor of GHG emissions in the U.S. According to 
the Inventory of U.S. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Sinks 1990–2019, transportation 
accounted for the largest portion (29%) of total U.S. GHG emissions in 2019.7  By increasing the 


availability of alternative modes of transportation, the Village will be able to reduce its overall carbon 
footprint and have less of an impact on the surrounding atmosphere, which will also improve community 
health.  Additionally, it will lead to a more equitable transportation system, giving those who do not have 
access to a car the opportunity to reach destinations, like work and school. 


 


 
 


  


 
7 https://www.epa.gov/greenvehicles/fast-facts-transportation-greenhouse-gas-emissions  


VISION STATEMENT 
McFarland has an extensive multi-modal transportation network that is accommodating to the 
needs of all people, regardless of age, ability or income.  Community members are enabled to 
make sustainable transportation choices when traveling to and from work, school, and other 
daily activities.  Village transportation infrastructure is sustainably designed and integrated with 
a regional system that combines timely, cost-effective public transportation options, like buses 
and light rail, with a safe and ubiquitous network of routes for walking and bicycling. 



https://www.epa.gov/greenvehicles/fast-facts-transportation-greenhouse-gas-emissions





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


17 | P a g e  
 


Transportation Actions 
 
Near-Term Actions    


• Amend the parking ordinance to require bike parking for all new commercial and multifamily 
buildings.  


• Amend the parking ordinance to reduce minimum off-street parking requirement and/or add 
parking maximums for new development to limit excess pavement.    


• Any proposal to add lanes to a two-lane roadway will be evaluated for a center turn lane, the 
preferred option over an expansion to four lanes.     


• As municipal vehicles need replacement, evaluate the purchase of hybrid, electric or alternative 
fuel vehicles.    


• Work with Madison Metro to connect the Village to Metro transit services.    


• Develop more on- and off-road bike trails.    


• Provide electric vehicle charging stations at municipal facilities.  
 


   
Mid-Term Actions    


• Ban idling for more than 5 minutes with municipal vehicles except for emergency vehicles.   


• Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, to annually inform 
residents of existing ridesharing programs.    


• Amend the Zoning Ordinance to require electric vehicle charging stations in new multi-family 
developments.    


• Collaborate with the school district to survey students about transportation choices and 
evaluate safe routes conditions at each school. 


    
 
Long-Term Actions    


• Add sidewalks within existing neighborhoods where none currently exist.    


• Apply for Bicycle Friendly Community status with the League of American Bicyclists and work to 
achieve silver or gold status.8     


 
8 https://www.bikeleague.org/community  



https://www.bikeleague.org/community





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


18 | P a g e  
 


Solid Waste 
Landfills are the third-largest source of human-related methane emissions in the United States, 
accounting for approximately 15% of these emissions in 2019.  Methane is a powerful GHG; 28-
36 times more powerful than CO2.  According to the U.S. EPA, the methane emissions from 


landfills in 2019 were approximately equivalent to the greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from more than 
21.6 million passenger vehicles driven for one year or the CO2 emissions from nearly 12.0 million homes’ 
energy use for one year.9  By reducing the amount of waste that goes to the landfill, McFarland and its 
residents can lower the Village’s carbon footprint. 


 


 
 
 


  


 
9 https://www.epa.gov/lmop/basic-information-about-landfill-gas  


Baseline Goal


Decrease by 10% by 


2030
Increase to 45% by 


2030
Percentage of Solid Waste Recycled by Weight


Total Solid Waste Generated Including Recycling (tons/yr)


Solid Waste Indicators 


3,849.76


31.7%


VISION STATEMENT 
The residents, businesses, and government of McFarland utilize the most efficient and effective 
methods available to reduce, reuse, compost, and recycle waste.  Village government uses 
incentives and policies to limit unnecessary waste and promote the lesser use and safe disposal 
of hazardous materials.  Village residents and businesses are knowledgeable and responsible 
about waste management methods, and they value and celebrate the creative reuse of goods 
and materials. 
 



https://www.epa.gov/lmop/basic-information-about-landfill-gas





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


19 | P a g e  
 


Solid Waste Actions 
 
Near-Term Actions    


• Create a municipal purchasing policy that requires consideration be given to whether a product is 
made from renewable and/or recycled materials.    


• Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, to annually inform 
residents about recycling, backyard composting, product re-use and waste reduction.   


• Facilitate a group buy program to offer compost bins to Village residents.  
   


 
Mid-Term Actions    


• Create a program to encourage and facilitate the practical reuse of waste from private and 
municipal construction projects.   
  


 
Long-Term Actions    


• Create a Village compost site for food waste.    


• Create a community upcycle location or event.      







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


20 | P a g e  
 


Water 
Water is life, yet the average family in the U.S. can waste up to 180 gallons a week due to 
household leaks and inefficient faucets.10  Half of the rivers and streams and more than a third 
of the lakes in the U.S. are polluted.11  Nutrient pollution (nitrates and phosphates) is the 


leading source of contamination, owing mainly to farm waste and lawn fertilizer runoff.  By making efforts 
to conserve water and by using sustainable methods of paving, lawn and landscape maintenance, 
McFarland and its residents can have a direct positive impact on the Village’s surface water and 
groundwater resources. 


 


 
 
  


 
10 https://www.epa.gov/watersense/statistics-and-facts  
11 https://www.nrdc.org/stories/water-pollution-everything-you-need-know  


VISION STATEMENT 
McFarland has an abundance of clean water, including surface water and groundwater, for 
both recreation and drinking.  Public and private users limit their use of groundwater while 
also seeking to optimize infiltration of stormwater through best practices.  Village 
government, residents and businesses endeavor to keep groundwater and local waterways 
free of chemicals, salt, trash, soil, and excess nutrients. 
 



https://www.epa.gov/watersense/statistics-and-facts

https://www.nrdc.org/stories/water-pollution-everything-you-need-know





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


21 | P a g e  
 


Water Actions 
 
Near-Term Actions    


• Exceed county and state minimum requirements for protection of green spaces that play a key 
role in water infiltration.    


• Purchase rain barrel kits and hold classes through McFarland Recreation Activities & Play for 
residents to purchase the kits at a discount and make and decorate their own rain barrels.  


• Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, to annually inform 
residents about waterway health best practices for lawn care, landscaping and fall leaf 
management.   


• Develop a program or work with existing agencies to assist residents with purchasing and 
installing low-flow water fixtures and replacing water softeners.    


• Minimize and find alternatives to the use of salt on low traffic roadways.    


• Evaluate the Subdivision Ordinance for reductions in required pavement width for new roads in 
new subdivisions to reduce the amount of impervious surface. 


    
 
Mid-Term Actions


• Install low-flow water fixtures in municipal facilities.


• Incentivize water conservation by increasing water rates for higher usage during next rate
review with PSC.


• Replace all toilets using > 1.6 gpf in all municipal facilities.


• Install waterless urinals in men's restrooms at all municipal facilities.


• Install rain barrels at all municipal facilities and utilize rainwater for municipal watering.


 
Long-Term Actions    


• Join EPA's WaterSense Program for water utilities.12    


• Identify culverts that obstruct fish migration and install fish friendly culverts where needed.  


• Perform a system-wide water audit and develop a water loss control plan.    


• Develop a program for financial assistance for sewer lateral replacements.     


• During road or public parking lot reconstruction, develop a plan for reduction of paved surfaces 
or inclusion of permeable pavement where possible.  


 


 
12 https://www.epa.gov/watersense  



https://www.epa.gov/watersense





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


22 | P a g e  
 


Land Use & Development 
Growth and development are essential for any community, but if not well planned, it can lead 
to urban sprawl, excessive segregation of land uses, car dependence, and loss of important 
environmental corridors.  The Village can create a more socially, environmentally, and 


economically sustainable community by encouraging a diversity of land uses and businesses, by locating 
important amenities within walking or biking distance of residential areas, and by ensuring new 
developments are designed to minimize their environmental impact.  


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Baseline Goal


Percentage of Housing that is Multi-Unit 


Percent of Land Area within the Urban Service Area Developed as Mixed Use 


(Residential & Commercial)


Residents per Square Mile within the Village Limits


Residents per Square Mile of Land in Urban Service Area within Residential Districts 


(including PUD; excluding RH-1 & RH-4)


Land Use & Development Indicators


Area (acres) of Active Parkland per 1,000 Residents


Walkability Index


Area (sq. ft.) of Community Gardens per 1,000 Residents


5.76-10.50


6,812


17.9


Maintain or increase


Maintain or increase


Increase


Increase


Increase to above 


10.5 by 2030


Maintain or increase


18.4 by 2030


1,893


5,266


17.7%


0.3%


VISION STATEMENT 
The Village of McFarland prioritizes the protection of environmentally sensitive areas and 
biodiversity in land use decisions and preserves land strategically for those purposes.  The Village 
encourages diversity in both the built and business environments, seeking mixed-use 
developments, neighborhoods with a mix of housing types and price points, and a variety of 
business types in order to expand access to housing, jobs, services, recreation, social interaction, 
and other basic needs.  Higher density and infill developments are encouraged so that land and 
infrastructure resources are used efficiently.  Streets and development sites utilize resilient, native 
landscaping that enhances the aesthetic appearance and ecological health of the Village.    







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


23 | P a g e  
 


Land Use & Development Actions  
 
Near-Term Actions    


• Instead of grass lawns, utilize more native landscaping on municipal properties that are not used 
for recreation purposes.    


• Require native landscaping in buffer areas around surface water and wetlands on both public and 
private property to protect water quality.    


• Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, to annually inform 
residents about native landscaping.    


• Amend Village ordinances to allow for a no-mow May.    


• Identify streets lacking trees and develop a plan to plant trees.    
 
 
Mid-Term Actions    


• Amend the zoning ordinances to allow for more housing options, including accessory dwelling 
units and attached unit housing.     


• Review and update Village plans and ordinances to look for opportunities to utilize land more 
efficiently, such as reducing setbacks and minimum lot sizes.    


• Make progress towards no net annual loss of wetlands or purchase wetland mitigation credits 
where impacts to wetlands may not be avoidable.    


• Identify and inventory priority areas for infill development, including those eligible for brownfields 
funding.     


 
 
Long-Term Actions    


• Create a second community garden.    


• Amend the zoning ordinances to allow beekeeping in single- and two-family residence districts. 
   


  







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


24 | P a g e  
 


Community Health 
Community sustainability is ultimately about sustaining a high quality of life for residents, and 
the health of individuals and families is critical to quality of life.  Health is interconnected with 
the economic and environmental conditions that determine community sustainability. A 


healthy community is also an equitable community, in which all residents have adequate resources and 
opportunities to maintain their health. 
 


 
  


VISION STATEMENT 
McFarland, including its government, residents, and businesses, embraces community health and 
wellbeing as an integral part of sustainability.  McFarland is intentional about embracing 
diversity and inclusivity, such that all residents are able to live happy and satisfying lives.  Healthy 
food, clean water, housing, jobs, recreation opportunities and health care are available and 
accessible to all residents regardless of age, ability, gender identity, sexual-orientation, income, 
or ethnicity.  The community values social connections and civic participation and works together 
to meet the needs of its most vulnerable residents. 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


25 | P a g e  
 


Community Health Actions 
 
Near-Term Actions    


• Adopt a Health and Equity in All Policies resolution.13    


• Add additional community service days.    


• Build a multi-generational community center.    


• Prohibit tobacco and e-cigarette use on all municipal properties, including parks.    
 
 
Mid-Term Actions    


• Increase recreation programs through the Village.    


• Incorporate community health and wellness considerations when updating existing plans.  


• Evaluate multi-family design guidelines related to outdoor spaces and amenities.   
  


 
Long-Term Actions    


• Utilize Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) and active threat planning to 
make public spaces, such as recreational space, crime free.14     


 
  


 
13 https://www.apha.org/topics-and-issues/health-in-all-policies  
14 https://www.cpted.net/  



https://www.apha.org/topics-and-issues/health-in-all-policies

https://www.cpted.net/





Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


Appendix A
 


APPENDIX A – ACTION RANKING SPREADSHEETS 
 
 
 
 
  







CW Committee of the Whole


FC Finance Committee


PC Plan Commission


PK Parks Committee


PS Public Safety Committee


PU Public Utilities


PW Public Works Committee


n/a


Priority Rankings


Near-Term =


Mid-Term =


Long-Term =


*These responsible committees/commissions are in lieu of, or in addition to, a Sustainability Committee 


if the Village Board does not create a standing Sustainability Committee.


First Priority - Begin in 1-2 years


Second Priority - Begin in 2-4 years


Third Priority - Begin in 4+ years


Can be done at staff level without committee or commission involvement. 


KEY


Responsible Committee or Commission*


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


1 | Appendix A







Impact Cost


Staff 


Effort Duration Status


Responsible Person or 


Department


Responsible 


Committee or 


Commission


Medium $ Medium 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Administration/Public Works PW


Medium $ Low Ongoing In Progress Public Works PW


Medium $ Low Ongoing In Progress Public Works PW


Low $ Low Recurring In Progress
Community Development/ 


Communication & Technology
n/a


High $$$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works/Administration
CW/PW/PC


Low $ Medium Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PW


Low $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PW


Low $ High Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PW


High $$ High 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Administration CW/FC


Low $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Medium $$$ Medium Ongoing Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $ High Recurring Not Begun Community Development n/a


Energy Actions


Conduct energy audits of all municipal facilities to identify potential 


energy efficiency improvements.


Establish a policy requiring all major remodeling of municipal buildings 


and any new municipal buildings include energy efficiency measures.


Hold a sustainability fair to bring in renewable energy companies to 


demonstrate and provide education on their products.


Utilize the the EPA's Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator to 


measure and track greenhouse gas emissions from municipal facilities 


and operations (https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-


equivalencies-calculator).


Adopt Residential Energy Conservation Ordinance (time-of-sale 


certification and upgrades). 


Retrofit streetlights with solar power 


Complete EPA Energy Star Portfolio Manager spreadsheet for 


government energy use 


(https://www.energystar.gov/buildings/benchmark).


Utilize the the EPA's Greenhouse Gas Equivalencies Calculator to 


measure and track greenhouse gas emissions community-wide 


(https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-


calculator).


Near-Term Actions


Mid-Term Actions


Long-Term Actions


Replace stoplights with LEDs 


Replace streetlights with LEDs


Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, 


to annually distribute information on rebates and tax incentives for 


renewable energy and energy efficiency.


Develop a financial assistance program to help private property owners 


with renewable energy improvements.


Work with energy providers to develop a community-scale solar energy 


installation and/or develop a program for leasing municipal rooftops for 


solar.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


2 | Appendix A







Impact Cost


Staff 


Effort Duration Status


Responsible Person or 


Department


Responsible 


Committee or 


Commission


Low $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Medium $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


High $ Medium Ongoing Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $$ Low Ongoing Not Begun Public Works/Police/Fire & Rescue PW/PS


Medium $$$ High 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun
Community Development/ 


Administration/Public Works
CW/PC/PW


High $$$ High 3+ yrs In Progress Public Works PW/PK


Medium $$ Medium 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $ Low Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/ 


Communication & Technology
n/a


Medium $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Low $$ Medium Recurring Not Begun
School District/Community 


Development
n/a


Medium $$$ High 3+ yrs Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $ Medium 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PK


Ban idling for more than 5 minutes with municipal vehicles except for 


emergency vehicles. 


Transportation Actions


Near-Term Actions


As municipal vehicles need replacement, evaluate the purchase of 


hybrid, electric or alternative fuel vehicles.


Amend the parking ordinance to require bike parking for all new 


commercial and multifamily buildings.


Apply for Bicycle Friendly Community status with the League of 


American Bicyclists and work to achieve silver or gold status.


Add sidewalks within existing neighborhoods where none currently 


exist.


Work with Madison Metro to connect the Village to Metro transit 


services.


Any proposal to add lanes to a two-lane roadway will be evaluated for a 


center turn lane, the preferred option over an expansion to four lanes. 


Collaborate with the school district to survey students about 


transportation choices and evaluate safe routes conditions at each 


school.


Provide electric vehicle charging stations at municipal facilities.


Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, 


to annually inform residents of existing ridesharing programs.


Amend the parking ordinance to reduce minimum off-street parking 


requirement and/or add parking maximums for new development to 


limit excess pavement.


Mid-Term Actions


Long-Term Actions


Develop more on- and off-road bike trails.


Amend the Zoning Ordinance to require electric vehicle charging 


stations in new multi-family developments.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


3 | Appendix A







Impact Cost


Staff 


Effort Duration Status


Responsible Person or 


Department


Responsible 


Committee or 


Commission


Medium $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Administration CW/FC


Low $ Low Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/ 


Communication & Technology
n/a


Low $ High Recurring Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $$ High 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PW/PC


Medium $$ High 1-3 Years Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $$ High Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PWCreate a community upcycle location or event. 


Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, 


to annually inform residents about recycling, backyard composting, 


product re-use and waste reduction.


Facilitate a group buy program to offer compost bins to Village 


residents.


Create a program to encourage and facilitate the practical reuse of 


waste from private and municipal construction projects.


Create a Village compost site for food waste.


Create a municipal purchasing policy that requires consideration be 


given to whether a product is made from renewable and/or recycled 


materials.


Solid Waste Actions


Near-Term Actions


Mid-Term Actions


Long-Term Actions


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


4 | Appendix A







Impact Cost


Staff 


Effort Duration Status


Responsible Person or 


Department


Responsible 


Committee or 


Commission


High $ Medium Ongoing Not Begun Community Development PC/PW


Low $ High Recurring Not Begun MRAP/Library/Public Works PW


Low $ Low Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/ 


Communication & Technology
n/a


High $ High 6 mos - 1 yr In Progress Public Works/Administration PU/FC/CW


High $ Low Ongoing Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Medium $$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $ Medium 1-3 yrs Not Begun Public Works PU


Medium $$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $ High 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Public Works PW


Low $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Public Works PU


High $$$ High 3+ yrs Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $ High 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Public Works PU


Medium $$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun Public Works/Administration PU/FC/CW


Medium $ High Ongoing Not Begun
Public Works/Community 


Development
PW


Identify culverts that obstruct fish migration and install fish friendly 


culverts where needed.


Perform a system-wide water audit and develop a water loss control 


plan.


Develop a program for financial assistance for sewer lateral 


replacements. 


During road or public parking lot reconstruction, develop a plan for 


reduction of paved surfaces or inclusion of permeable pavement where 


possible.


Join EPA's WaterSense Program for water utilities.


Long-Term Actions


Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social 


media, to annually inform residents about  waterway health best 


practices for lawn care, landscaping and fall leaf management.


Purchase rain barrel kits and hold classes through McFarland 


Recreation Activities & Play (MRAP) for residents to purchase the kits at 


a discount and make and decorate their own rain barrels


Installing low-flow water fixtures in municipal facilities.


Incentivize water conservation by increasing water rates for higher 


usage during next rate review with PSC.


Evaluate the Subdivision Ordinance for reductions in required 


pavement width for new roads in new subdivisions to reduce the 


amount of impervious surface.


Water Actions


Exceed county and state minimum requirements for protection of 


green spaces that play a key role in water infiltration.


Replace all toilets using > 1.6 gpf in all municipal facilities.


Install waterless urinals in men's restrooms at all municipal facilities.


Install rain barrels at all municipal facilities and utilize rainwater for 


municipal watering.


Develop a program or work with existing agencies to assist residents 


with purchasing and installing low-flow water fixtures and replacing 


water softeners.


Minimize and find alternatives to the use of salt on low traffic 


roadways.


Near-Term Actions


Mid-Term Actions


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


5 | Appendix A







Impact Cost


Staff 


Effort Duration Status


Responsible Person or 


Department


Responsible 


Committee or 


Commission


Medium $ Low Ongoing Not Begun Parks/Public Works PK/PW


High $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Low $ Low Recurring Not Begun
Community Development/ 


Communication & Technology
n/a


Low $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Medium $$ 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Public Works PW


Medium $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Medium $ Medium 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Community Development PC


High $$ Medium Ongoing Not Begun
Community Development/Public 


Works
PW


Medium $ Medium 6 mos - 1 yr Not Begun Community Development PC


Low $ Medium 1-3 yrs Not Begun Parks/Community Development PK


Low $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Identify and inventory priority areas for infill development, including 


those eligible for brownfields funding. 


Make progress towards no net annual loss of wetlands or purchase 


wetland mitigation credits where impacts to wetlands may not be 


avoidable.


Create a second community garden.


Amend the zoning ordinances to allow beekeeping in single and two-


family residence districts.


Near-Term Actions


Mid-Term Actions


Long-Term Actions


Utilize the Outlook Newsletter, or other forms of print and social media, 


to annually inform residents about native landscaping.


Amend Village ordinances to allow for a no-mow May.


Review and update Village plans and ordinances to look for 


opportunities to utilize land more efficiently, such as reducing setbacks 


and minimum lot sizes.


Land Use & Development Actions


Instead of grass lawns, utilize more native landscaping on municipal 


properties that are not used for recreation purposes.


Require native landscaping in buffer areas around surface water and 


wetlands on both public and private property to protect water quality.


Amend the zoning ordinances to allow for more housing options, 


including accessory dwelling units and attached unit housing. 


Identify streets lacking trees and develop a plan to plant trees.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


6 | Appendix A







Impact Cost


Staff 


Effort Duration Status


Responsible Person or 


Department


Responsible 


Committee or 


Commission


Medium $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development CW


Low $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Senior Outreach PK


Medium $$$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun Administration CW


Low $ Low 3-6 mos Not Begun Public Works PK


Medium $$$ High 1-3 yrs Not Begun Parks PK


Medium $ Low Ongoing Not Begun Community Development PC


Medium $ Medium 3-6 mos Not Begun Community Development PC


Low $ High Ongoing Not Begun Parks/Police PK/PS


Community Health Actions


Near-Term Actions


Mid-Term Actions


Long-Term Actions


Adopt a Health and Equity in All Policies resolution.


Increase recreation programs through the Village.


Evaluate multi-family design guidelines related to outdoor spaces and 


amenities. 


Require tobacco-free and e-cigarette free on all municipal properties, 


including parks.


Add additional community service days.


Build a multi-generational community center.


Incorporate community health and wellness considerations when 


updating existing plans.


Utilize Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design and active 


threat planning to make public spaces, such as recreational space, crime 


free. 


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


7 | Appendix A







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


Appendix B
 


APPENDIX B – COMMUNITY SURVEY RESULTS 


 


  







Summary of Results 
There were 344 respondents and the survey had a 73% completion rate.  The first and second questions 
asked about the respondents’ places of residence and work.  The majority, a little over 95%, of 
respondents lived in McFarland, 5% owned a business in the Village and 6% said they worked in the Village.  
Ten respondents (3%) were from outside of the Village, mostly from Madison, the Town of Dunn and the 
Town of Blooming Grove.  The 334 respondents from the Village represent a response rate of 
approximately 3.7% of the Village’s population.   


The third question asked about the respondents’ level of interest in doing certain projects at their places 
of residence or work.  Answer choices were “Not Interested,” “Neutral” and “Interested,” represented 
below on a scale of 1-3.  The highest level of interest (a weighted average of 2.52) was in rooftop solar 
and native landscaping (2.49); the lowest was in rain gardens (2.19) and water softener replacement 
(2.23).  However, there is nothing below with an average rating lower than 2, which means there was 
generally a higher level of interest than disinterest in all the projects.  


 


Figure 1: Projects of Interest Weighted Averages 


 


 
The remainder of the survey was divided into six sections corresponding to the six topic areas of this plan:  


• Energy 


• Transportation 


• Water  


• Land Use and Development 


• Solid Waste 


• Community Health 


Each section asked two questions - one about level of support for the vision statement and one about 
level of support for actions aimed at achieving that vision.  Answer choices were “Strongly Oppose,”  
“Oppose,” “Neutral,” “Support,” and “Strongly Support.”  Answers were weighted on a scale of 1-5, with 
1 being “Strongly Oppose” and 5 being “Strongly Support.”  Within each section and at the end of the 
survey, respondents were given the opportunity to leave comments, which are included in Appendix B. 


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


1 | Appendix B







Energy 
Respondents were supportive of the Energy vision statement.  Over 86% answered “Support” or “Strongly 
Support;” the weighted average of all answers was 4.3.   


The survey asked about the following actions: 


1. Conduct energy audits of all municipal facilities to identify potential energy efficiency improvements. 
2. Establish a policy requiring all major remodeling of municipal buildings and any new municipal buildings 


include energy efficiency measures. 


3. Offer financial assistance to help private property owners with renewable energy improvements. 


4. Work with energy providers to develop a community-scale solar energy installation. 


5. Work to achieve 50% renewable energy in municipal operations by 2030 and 100% by 2040. 


6. Work to achieve 50% renewable energy community-wide by 2040 and 100% by 2050. 


There was similar support for all the above actions.  The weighted averages for all the actions were 
between 4.06 at the low end and 4.38 at the high end.  The highest rated action was to conduct energy 
audits at municipal facilities. 


 


Figure 2: Energy Actions Weighted Averages 


 


 


There were 19 comments under Energy.  Five respondents commented that they were worried about 
the costs of these actions to taxpayers, while three others stated that they preferred a more aggressive 
schedule for achieving 50% renewable energy.  There were also several supportive statements towards 
a community solar project. 


  


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


2 | Appendix B







Transportation 
Respondents were also supportive of the Transportation vision statement.  Over 80% answered “Support” 
or “Strongly Support;” the weighted average was 4.16, slightly lower than for the Energy vision (4.3).   


The survey asked about the following actions: 


1. Amend the parking ordinance to require bike parking for all new commercial and multifamily buildings. 
2. Amend the parking ordinance to set parking maximums for new commercial developments to limit 


excess pavement. 


3. Add sidewalks within existing neighborhoods where none currently exist. 


4. Develop more on- and off-road bike trails. 


5. Work with Madison Metro to connect the Village to Metro transit services. 


6. Provide electric vehicle charging stations at municipal facilities. 
7. Require electric vehicle charging stations in new multi-family developments. 


There was general support for all the above actions, with slightly more support for actions related to bike 
facilities than for others.  The highest rated actions were to develop more on- and off-road bike trails (4.2) 
and to require bike parking for new commercial and multi-family buildings (3.91).  The lowest rated action 
was to add sidewalks where none currently exist (3.37).   


 


Figure 3: Transportation Actions Weighted Averages 


 


 


There were 29 comments under Transportation.  There were six respondents who commented that not 
every street needs a sidewalk and that the Village should focus on high traffic streets.  Eight respondents 
commented that there needs to be a regional transit solution – both Madison Metro and light rail were 
mentioned.  Two respondents were concerned about introducing additional requirements on developers 
and one mentioned the use of pervious pavement as an alternative to traditional paving methods. 


  


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


3 | Appendix B







Water 
The Water vision statement had the highest level of support among all the vision statements, at a rating 
of 4.42.  Over 92% or respondents supported or strongly supported the statement.   


The survey asked about the following actions: 


1. Improve water efficiency in municipal operations through water conservation measures, such as 
installing low-flow water fixtures. 


2. Exceed county and state minimum requirements for protection of green spaces that play a key role in 
water infiltration. 


3. Develop a program to assist residents with purchasing and installing low-flow water fixtures. 


4. Minimize the use of salt on low traffic roadways. 
5. Develop and implement an outreach campaign to encourage waterway health best practices for lawn 


care, landscaping and fall leaf management. 


6. Incentivize water conservation by increasing water rates for higher usage. 


Again, there was support for all the actions, but there was a bit larger gap here between the highest and 
lowest ratings.  The highest rated action (4.39) was to exceed county and state standards for protection 
of green spaces.  The lowest rating (3.14) was for increasing water rates to incentivize conservation.  Of 
note:  these were also the highest and lowest ratings of any actions in the whole survey. 


 


Figure 4: Water Actions Weighted Averages 


 


 


There were 25 comments under Water.  There were eight comments on leaf management and lawn care 
and how there needs to be more education and more effort on the Village’s part to ensure residents are 
not dumping yard waste into the street, including more enforcement actions.  Five respondents 
commented that the Village uses too much salt on roadways in the winter.  Seven respondents offered 
comments against increasing water rates and one person suggested lowering rates for lower usage rather 
than increasing rates for higher usage.   


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


4 | Appendix B







Land Use and Development 
The Land Use and Development vision statement had the lowest level of support among all the vision 
statements, at an average rating of 3.98.  Only 74% answered “Support” or “Strongly Support,” while 19% 
answered “Neutral” and 7% answered “Oppose” or “Strongly Oppose.”  Given the large percentage of 
respondents who were neutral, this could perhaps indicate a lack of understanding as one reason this 
vision statement rated lower than the others. 


The survey asked about the following actions: 


1. Review and update Village plans and ordinances to look for opportunities to utilize land more efficiently, 
such as reducing setbacks and minimum lot sizes. 


2. Increase the variety of housing choices and types in the Village. 
3. Require native landscaping in buffer areas around surface water and wetlands on both public and private 


property to protect water quality. 
4. Instead of grass lawns, utilize more native landscaping on municipal properties that are not used for 


recreation purposes. 


There was general support for all the actions.  The highest rated action (4.13) was to require native 
landscaping around surface water; the lowest rated action (3.51) was to review and update plans and 
ordinances to find ways to use land more efficiently. 


 


Figure 5: Land Use Actions Weighted Averages 


 


 


There were 29 comments under Land Use.  Ten respondents indicated concern with decreased lot sizes 
and increased density.  This seems to be another reason this topic’s vision statement was rated lower.  
There was also general support for native landscaping, but there were concerns about making it a 
requirement, including questions about enforcement. 


 


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


5 | Appendix B







Solid Waste 
The Solid Waste vision statement was supported or strongly supported by 89% of respondents, with a 
weighted average of 4.27.   


The survey asked about the following actions: 


1. Work to achieve zero landfill waste in municipal operations by 2040. 


2. Offer compost bins for Village residents. 
3. Create a municipal purchasing policy that requires consideration be given to whether a product is made 


from renewable and/or recycled materials. 
4. Create a program to encourage and facilitate the practical reuse of waste from private 


and municipal construction projects. 


5. Create a Village compost site for food waste. 


Again, there was general support for all actions.  The highest rated action (4.26) was offering compost 
bins to Village residents and the lowest rated action (3.89) was the creation of a purchasing policy that 
requires the Village to consider how a product is made prior to purchase. 


 


Figure 6: Solid Waste Actions Weighted Averages 


 


 


There were 17 comments under Solid Waste.  As in Energy, there were multiple comments (4) which 
indicated concern about the cost of these initiatives, specifically the municipal purchasing policy.  There 
were also three comments suggesting that the Village collect food waste curbside for a community 
compost site.  Two respondents commented that there needs to be sufficient public education and 
outreach for whatever program or policies the Village chooses because there is already confusion over 
what should be thrown out versus what should be recycled. 


 
 


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


6 | Appendix B







Community Health 
The Community Health vision statement received the second highest ratings.  The statement was 
supported or strongly supported by 90% of respondents, with an average rating of 4.41. 


The survey asked about the following actions: 


1. Require tobacco-free and e-cigarette free apartments in all new multi-family developments and on all 
municipal properties, including parks. 


2. Increase recreation programs through the Village. 


3. Add a second community service day. 


4. Build a multi-generational community center. 


There was general support for all the actions.  The highest rated action (4.29) was to require tobacco and 
e-cigarette free apartments; the lowest rated action (3.97) was adding a second community service day. 


 


Figure 7: Community Health Actions Weighted Averages 


 


 
There were 19 comments under Community Health.  Four respondents indicated disappointment with 
the lack of diversity, equity and inclusion subject matter in the survey, with one respondent commenting 
that “DEI is essential to environmentalism.”  Four comments indicated strong support for a new 
community center and others complimented the thoroughness of the survey. 
 


Additional Comments 
There were 50 additional comments at the end of the survey.  Again, cost concerns were mentioned 
numerous times.  There were comments related to diversity, equity and inclusion and how that needs to 
be a consideration.  A couple respondents asked for classes on sustainable gardening and lawn care.  There 
were also comments related to the need to revitalize the downtown and bring in more businesses to 
create more jobs.  


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


7 | Appendix B







95.34% 327


2.92% 10


4.96% 17


5.83% 20


Q1 Please check all that apply.
Answered: 343 Skipped: 1


Total Respondents: 343  


I'm a resident
of McFarland


I live outside
of McFarland


I own a
business in...


I work in
McFarland


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


I'm a resident of McFarland


I live outside of McFarland


I own a business in McFarland


I work in McFarland


Full Results 
Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


8 | Appendix B







30.00% 3


10.00% 1


30.00% 3


0.00% 0


30.00% 3


Q2 If you live outside of McFarland, where do you live?
Answered: 10 Skipped: 334


TOTAL 10


# OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE


1 Town of West Point 5/26/2021 8:27 PM


2 pleasant springs 5/14/2021 11:40 AM


3 Stoughton 5/6/2021 7:04 PM


Town of Dunn


Town of
Blooming Grove


City of Madison


City of Monona


Other (please
specify)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES


Town of Dunn


Town of Blooming Grove


City of Madison


City of Monona


Other (please specify)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


9 | Appendix B







Q3 Which of the following projects might you be interested in doing, either
at your home or your business?


Answered: 250 Skipped: 94


Rain barrels


Rain gardens


Rooftop Solar


Native
landscaping/...


Composting


Home or
business ene...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


10 | Appendix B







Not Interested Neutral Interested


Installing
efficient wa...


Water softener
replacement


Buying into
community solar


Native
landscaping...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


11 | Appendix B







22.22%
54


18.52%
45


59.26%
144


 
243


 
2.37


26.69%
63


27.54%
65


45.76%
108


 
236


 
2.19


14.52%
35


18.67%
45


66.80%
161


 
241


 
2.52


16.18%
39


18.26%
44


65.56%
158


 
241


 
2.49


23.77%
58


23.77%
58


52.46%
128


 
244


 
2.29


18.99%
45


29.54%
70


51.48%
122


 
237


 
2.32


15.35%
37


29.46%
71


55.19%
133


 
241


 
2.40


24.58%
58


27.54%
65


47.88%
113


 
236


 
2.23


16.81%
40


30.67%
73


52.52%
125


 
238


 
2.36


16.25%
39


22.08%
53


61.67%
148


 
240


 
2.45


# OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY) DATE


1 Interest in electric lawn mower and snow blower; also for the Village to use 5/26/2021 9:01 PM


2 Other actions supporting local watershed health 5/25/2021 7:26 PM


3 i live in an apartment 5/23/2021 8:35 AM


4 Milk delivery in reusable glass bottles, meatless days at schools, plastic grocery bag ban 5/20/2021 6:44 PM


5 Live in a new condo which is why I'm answering accordingly 5/20/2021 12:41 PM


6 I strongly support Rain gardens, rooftop solar, high efficient water fixtures, and updated water
softeners, but either have installed them or cannot utilize them on our property


5/17/2021 11:30 AM


7 Native Americans lived in and around McFarland for thousands of years and were able to live
sustainably and in harmony with the environment. I would like this committee to also see the
intersectional aspects of sustainability as they relate to the consequences of colonialism.


5/17/2021 5:54 AM


8 Sustainable housing builds, smaller housing options, green neighborhoods 5/14/2021 11:44 AM


9 I live in an apartment building... 5/7/2021 3:09 PM


10 Lake ecology improvement measures and support for healthy waterways 5/6/2021 9:32 PM


11 Light pollution. 5/6/2021 8:21 PM


12 I don’t need this from the government! Private citizens can pay for this with their private funds.
You want to fund this with taxpayer dollars? You will get voted out in disgrace the next cycle


5/6/2021 7:39 PM


13 Turning off outdoor lights at night; less intense outdoor lighting 5/6/2021 7:11 PM


14 I am all about sustainability! I will do almost anything I can to encourage this forward thinkin
for our community.


5/6/2021 7:07 PM


15 Bee keeping 5/6/2021 2:53 PM


16 Food Scrap program 5/6/2021 2:43 PM


17 Native/pollinator-friendly landscaping in our parks and village owned land, community 5/6/2021 11:02 AM


 NOT INTERESTED NEUTRAL INTERESTED TOTAL WEIGHTED AVERAGE


Rain barrels


Rain gardens


Rooftop Solar


Native landscaping/bee-friendly landscaping


Composting


Home or business energy audits


Installing efficient water fixtures


Water softener replacement


Buying into community solar


Native landscaping within the street terrace.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


12 | Appendix B







Q4 Please indicate your level of support for the Energy vision statement.
Answered: 247 Skipped: 97


2.43%
6


2.43%
6


8.91%
22


34.82%
86


51.42%
127


 
247


 
4.30


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


(no label)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


(no
label)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


13 | Appendix B



rhull

Stamp







Q5 Please indicate your level of support for the following actions aimed at
achieving the above vision.


Answered: 250 Skipped: 94


Conduct energy
audits of al...


Establish a
policy...


Offer
financial...


Work with
energy...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


14 | Appendix B







Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


Work to
achieve 50%...


Work to
achieve 50%...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


15 | Appendix B







0.80%
2


0.00%
0


8.80%
22


41.20%
103


49.20%
123


 
250


 
4.38


2.40%
6


3.20%
8


9.20%
23


36.80%
92


48.40%
121


 
250


 
4.26


4.80%
12


4.80%
12


13.20%
33


33.60%
84


43.60%
109


 
250


 
4.06


4.00%
10


2.80%
7


16.00%
40


37.60%
94


39.60%
99


 
250


 
4.06


3.21%
8


2.81%
7


12.05%
30


34.94%
87


46.99%
117


 
249


 
4.20


4.05%
10


2.43%
6


15.38%
38


37.25%
92


40.89%
101


 
247


 
4.09


# COMMENTS DATE


1 Alliant Energy is already committed to reduce carbon from electricity. To invest here is not
efficient use of dollars.


5/28/2021 4:12 AM


2 Renewable energy goals are good. Specific targets of 50% by 2030 and 100% by 2040 may
not be the right numbers.


5/27/2021 12:09 PM


3 So many variables make it difficult to "click a statement"... 5/27/2021 9:43 AM


4 Clean energy should be a community shared project as not every house nor small business
would need to install solar panels for example. Maximize use by installing on large rooftops
and sharing the energy.


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


5 Many "renewable" energy sources still depend quite heavily on fossil fuels. I'd love to support
it but it's not the right solution.


5/26/2021 1:37 PM


6 I'm hopeful that we will be able to achieve these last two items by 10 years or more. 5/17/2021 11:30 AM


7 The arrogance to think this is going to make a difference in the big picture is so typical of Dane
County attitudes. I think it is virtue signaling, "BS" and will most likely cost tax payers more in
the end but we'll be told we should feel good about it. I'm against it.


5/17/2021 8:01 AM


8 I think the community and developers need to become green before the municipal buildings are
done. That should be done as improvements are done. our taxes are high enough as it is. How
will this be paid for? I'm all for going green. Are the developers going to be required to build
green houses or at least part way? they should be....


5/17/2021 6:56 AM


9 I am not sure if the targets are strict enough. I also would encourage the committee to
consider community energy systems (heat sources and sinks like geo/pond/lake, bio
digesting, ). Perhaps have commercial and residential buildings require energy modeling.


5/17/2021 5:54 AM


10 Please be careful about imposing energy efficiency on the Fire and Rescue department
facilities. There are certain compromises that they should not have to make in the name of
efficiency where it could affect their readiness to respond to emergencies and to train.


5/15/2021 8:22 AM


11 Take off your tinfoil hat! 5/14/2021 7:04 PM


12 It seems like the village wants to create an energy consciousness, but it's can't happen when
all that is being built for housing in mcfarland are giant 5-bedroom houses and m mansions. It


5/14/2021 11:44 AM


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


Conduct energy audits of all
municipal facilities
to identify potential energy efficiency
improvements.


Establish a policy requiring all major
remodeling of municipal buildings
and any new municipal buildings
include energy efficiency measures.


Offer financial assistance to help
private property owners with
renewable energy improvements.


Work with energy providers to
develop a community-scale solar
energy installation.


Work to achieve 50% renewable
energy in municipal operations by
2030 and 100% by 2040.


Work to achieve 50% renewable
energy community-wide by 2040 and
100% by 2050.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


16 | Appendix B







seems like if you really want to focus on the betterment of the community, you should make
greener, smaller, affordable housing options that serve the entire population, not just rich, white
married couples with kids.


13 I don’t know enough about this topic to know what would be a reasonable goal by what time
frame. But I am very interested in helping to do my part and would support community action
in that direction.


5/6/2021 8:36 PM


14 I support installing rooftop solar panels on exisiting buildings, especially big, flat, commercial
buildings.


5/6/2021 7:11 PM


15 Would love a community wide solar project! 5/6/2021 7:07 PM


16 MGE and Alliant are already committed to 65 percent by 2030 and 100 percent by 2050.
Investing in rooftop solar will only add costs to everyone. The most cost effective carbon
reductions will be made by electrifying vehicles and conservation vs. replicating what the
utilities are doing.


5/6/2021 5:03 PM


17 With the goal of ensuring costs of using renewable energy does not outpace historical inflation
of fossil fuels. Paying more for something else will not deter the detractors.


5/6/2021 2:53 PM


18 Energy efficiency measures in new buildings and remodels should only be done when they
make sense, not because they are required.


5/6/2021 2:44 PM


19 Unclear how to respond to the two options of timing for attaining 100% renewable energy. I
support both but prefer the more aggressive schedule.


5/6/2021 11:02 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


17 | Appendix B







Q6 Please indicate your level of support for the Transportation vision
statement.


Answered: 247 Skipped: 97


3.24%
8


3.64%
9


11.74%
29


36.84%
91


44.53%
110


 
247


 
4.16


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


(no label)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


(no
label)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


18 | Appendix B



rhull

Stamp







Q7 Please indicate your level of support for the following actions aimed at
achieving the above vision.


Answered: 251 Skipped: 93


Amend the
parking...


Amend the
parking...


Add sidewalks
within exist...


Develop more
on- and...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


19 | Appendix B







Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


Work with
Madison Metr...


Provide
electric...


Require
electric...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


20 | Appendix B







4.00%
10


6.40%
16


16.00%
40


41.60%
104


32.00%
80


 
250


 
3.91


4.00%
10


15.20%
38


24.40%
61


27.60%
69


28.80%
72


 
250


 
3.62


12.35%
31


15.94%
40


19.92%
50


25.50%
64


26.29%
66


 
251


 
3.37


1.99%
5


4.78%
12


10.36%
26


36.65%
92


46.22%
116


 
251


 
4.20


5.98%
15


6.77%
17


17.53%
44


33.47%
84


36.25%
91


 
251


 
3.87


3.60%
9


8.00%
20


24.00%
60


38.80%
97


25.60%
64


 
250


 
3.75


5.98%
15


11.55%
29


26.29%
66


33.47%
84


22.71%
57


 
251


 
3.55


# COMMENTS DATE


1 We don’t need mandates. 5/28/2021 4:12 AM


2 Broad community support of regional transit services is required to reduce auto use
significantly.


5/27/2021 12:09 PM


3 Light rail needs to be also in the forefront, connecting McFarland to madison. 5/27/2021 12:37 AM


4 Not every street needs sidewalks; too much cement especially when streets are wide and safe
walking is possible. More cement leads to more salt use and more runoff. Especially interested
in light rail connections to Madison, Milwaukee and beyond.


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


5 most families that live in multi-family developments don't have the money to own electric
vehicles. Requiring charging stations there seems highly unnecessary and a burden on the
property owners - and takes up space and resources for something that won't be used
regularly.


5/26/2021 7:49 AM


6 Limiting parking spaces to save pavement space should not create more on-road parking. Too
many apartment complexes already do not have enough on property parking


5/24/2021 7:37 AM


7 recently bought a Chevy Volt and would very much like to see the electric vehicle
infrastructure improved.


5/23/2021 8:35 AM


8 Sidewalks are not necessary in certain neighborhoods. The disruption to areas that don’t need
the sidewalks is not worth it. Please focus on main high traffic areas.


5/21/2021 5:35 PM


9 I don't think sidewalks are necessary in all neighborhoods; would rather have high-pedestrian
traffic areas repaired and expanded first.


5/20/2021 9:30 AM


10 Until the price of electric vehicles comes down so households below median income can afford
them, I'm hesitant to support requiring charging stations in development a.


5/19/2021 6:56 AM


11 Expanded Metro service would be great. I lived in Sun Prairie when they added Route 23 and it
was a great option for commuting. I used it right up to the pandemic before we built a home in
McFarland. We will be going back to the office soon and the current options for Metro service
in McFarland is less than ideal. I’m hoping for that to change with the upcoming BRT.


5/17/2021 9:32 PM


12 Not sure we need sidewalks everywhere in our Village 5/17/2021 11:30 AM


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


Amend the parking ordinance to
require bike parking for all
new commercial and
multifamily buildings.


Amend the parking ordinance to set
parking maximums for new
commercial developments to limit
excess pavement.


Add sidewalks within existing
neighborhoods where none currently
exist.


Develop more on- and off-road bike
trails.


Work with Madison Metro to connect
the Village to Metro transit services.


Provide electric vehicle charging
stations at municipal facilities.


Require electric vehicle charging
stations in new multi-family
developments.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


21 | Appendix B







13 It's hard enough to attract businesses to McFarland without putting additional requirements on
them. McFarland has a reputation of being not that friendly to businesses, unless of course it's
one of the town's "favored business owners" (i.e. Locke, Gannon, Bisbee & Neitzel to name a
few).


5/17/2021 8:01 AM


14 Electric vehicle charging stations should be the first to have renewable energy sources
(oppose to coal/gas generated electricity) to help reduce the cars’ carbon neutrality.


5/17/2021 5:54 AM


15 How about development of pavement materials that allow water to percolate through? 5/15/2021 12:34 PM


16 We very much need Metro connectivity to Madison or other mass transit. Also consider the
Monona Express model which has a city owned small bus running a route around town before
going straight to downtown Madison and other common work locations.


5/15/2021 8:22 AM


17 Madison metro isn’t convenient 5/14/2021 6:50 PM


18 In some Blue Zone communities, the more outlying neighborhoods form groups who will
organize walking children to school with one or more adults. This could be a fun alternative to
busing the children who live farther from school or who attend daycare centers.


5/14/2021 1:41 PM


19 You can't have affordable housing if you put demands on builders. 5/9/2021 6:48 PM


20 I didn’t see that you put anything about the light rail, even though you briefly mentioned it in
the paragraph. I feel very strongly we need that to connect to Madison. and then of course it
would need to be in madison as well I suppose.


5/7/2021 9:02 AM


21 Community incentives for businesses and private residences to install electric vehicle charging
stations are encouraged as well.


5/7/2021 7:42 AM


22 Sidewalks, Half the people do not use the sidewalks we have now. Exchange Street is good
example. people jog in the street rather than the sidewalk because cement is to hard on there
feet, if this is the case lets asphalt the existing side walks. Streets that have not had side
walks for 40 years plus really do not need them. Some of the existing sidewalks are so bad
people can not walk on the, maybe it is time to fix what we have not make more problems.
Again use Exchange street for a example, a lot of the walks are not shoveled in the winter so
again people have to walk in the street. Develop Bike trails when the people that use them help
support them get a enforceable license fee in place and a trail usage fee.


5/6/2021 9:58 PM


23 We don’t yet have standards for EV charging so that is bad spend. I live on a cul de sac and
don’t need a sidewalk we are a suburb and people need and will own cars. Focus on solutions
where firm follows function.


5/6/2021 9:32 PM


24 I love all these ideas! I especially like working with Metro transit to extend public transportation
to McFarland. This is great for SO many reasons, not only sustainability.


5/6/2021 7:07 PM


25 Don’t mandate, educate. Developers are already offering charging stations as amenities. 5/6/2021 5:03 PM


26 It is shameful that Madison Metro and especially the Badger Bus for people with disabilities do
not expand into McFarland. I have my elderly and disabled mother on the waiting list for the
new senior apartment building that is being built behind the Forward Pharmacy strip mall. But,
she will not be able to move into the village because she is fully dependent upon the Badger
Bus for her transportation needs. (She has an electric scooter. She cannot walk. I cannot
afford the equipment to modify my vehicle or purchase a new vehicle to transport her
everywhere.)


5/6/2021 3:01 PM


27 I don't believe all streets need to have sidewalks. We live on a short street without a sidewalk
and the street is plenty wide enough for pedestrians to safely walk on the side of the road
(there aren't that many people walking down our street as it is). I prefer to have the green grass
of the yards rather than adding more concrete to our lesser-used village streets.


5/6/2021 2:52 PM


28 Requiring these things sounds great, but again, they should only be done when and where they
make sense. Instead, incentives, like tax breaks for installation may be a better approach.


5/6/2021 2:44 PM


29 maximize permeability of landscaping/terrace (aka not paving over median and terrace areas) 5/6/2021 11:02 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


22 | Appendix B







Q8 Please indicate your level of support for the Water vision statement.
Answered: 245 Skipped: 99


0.41%
1


1.22%
3


6.12%
15


40.82%
100


51.43%
126


 
245


 
4.42


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


(no label)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


(no
label)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


23 | Appendix B



rhull

Stamp







Q9 Please indicate your level of support for the following actions aimed at
achieving the above vision.


Answered: 251 Skipped: 93


Improve water
efficiency i...


Exceed county
and state...


Develop a
program to...


Minimize the
use of salt ...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


24 | Appendix B







Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


Develop and
implement an...


Incentivize
water...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


25 | Appendix B







0.40%
1


2.80%
7


14.40%
36


44.00%
110


38.40%
96


 
250


 
4.17


1.20%
3


1.59%
4


9.56%
24


32.67%
82


54.98%
138


 
251


 
4.39


2.79%
7


5.58%
14


20.32%
51


37.85%
95


33.47%
84


 
251


 
3.94


2.01%
5


9.24%
23


19.68%
49


29.72%
74


39.36%
98


 
249


 
3.95


1.20%
3


3.98%
10


15.54%
39


36.25%
91


43.03%
108


 
251


 
4.16


12.00%
30


20.80%
52


26.00%
65


23.20%
58


18.00%
45


 
250


 
3.14


# COMMENTS DATE


1 We don’t have a clean lake. Our run off runs directly into lake Waubesa. 5/28/2021 4:12 AM


2 Slow development on marshy areas. Stop allowing building so close to the lakes. It is
unfortunate the lake is surrounded by private homes which more easily pollute and restricts
public access to enjoy the lake. Create a program to assess why someone may have high
useage of water, may have leaks, not know about more efficient ways. Create buy in and
incentives rather than punishment


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


3 the salt use by the village is out of control in the winter, we need to reduce this by at least half.
Also, we need to do a better job of helping people keep leaves off the street by having pickups
at the curb and educating people about "love your lakes, don't leaf them". Also, so many
pesticides and fertilizers used privately and publicly... we need to do more to help our lakes
and pollinators.


5/26/2021 12:12 PM


4 Higher rates for increasing water usage can be tricky, would you charge more in a dry spell for
watering lawns? What if there is a leak that goes unnoticed and you would get charged more
for that? I think it may be a good idea in some cases but accidents and things happen that you
shouldn't get penalized for...


5/21/2021 8:59 AM


5 1. leaf management needs to include free/included residential pickup 2. increasing water rates
for higher usage is not a good solution; doesn't really incentivize people, just punishes and
puts financial burden on places that have higher water needs


5/20/2021 9:30 AM


6 I have one less person in my house now and my water bill ig higher than ever. I guess if you
want to reduce the use of water in your plan, just keep raising the prices and you may feel
good about your numbers but the citizens will be the ones hurt and paying for it in the end.


5/17/2021 8:01 AM


7 It would be really nice for the community to know that they are directly connected to our
watershed, so when they blow debris off their driveways, salt their drives, wash their cars, etc.
they realize the consequences of those actions. Again, native Americans lived in our village
for thousands of generations and didn’t have issues like this (nor crazy algae blooms).


5/17/2021 5:54 AM


8 Water rates have gone up enough in recent years without adding additional increases. 5/14/2021 7:04 PM


9 Start dining people who take their leaves and debris into the roads. My neighbors do it weekly
year round. They have been talked to but no fines so they keep doing it.


5/14/2021 6:50 PM


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


Improve water efficiency in municipal
operations through water
conservation measures, such as
installing low-flow water fixtures.


Exceed county and state minimum
requirements for protection of green
spaces that play a key role in water
infiltration.


Develop a program to assist
residents with purchasing and
installing low-flow water fixtures.


Minimize the use of salt on low
traffic roadways.


Develop and implement an outreach
campaign to encourage waterway
health best practices for lawn care,
landscaping and fall leaf
management.


Incentivize water conservation by
increasing water rates for higher
usage.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


26 | Appendix B







10 I see a lot of room for improvement here. We recently moved from Madison and were shocked
by how much more salt McFarland uses and residents use, especially on neighborhood
streets.


5/7/2021 8:04 AM


11 We live in a water rich area. West coast arid climate solutions won’t be as impactful as
understanding our ecosystem and working to solve runoff and water body eutrophication
issues.


5/6/2021 9:32 PM


12 I think there is a lot of eduction to be done within the community. It sickens me every year to
see neighbors raking and putting leaves in plastic bags to then transport and dispose of.


5/6/2021 8:38 PM


13 People with swimming pools should pay for water. Encourage participation in using community
pool. At the high school.


5/6/2021 7:14 PM


14 IN particular, I support the increased rates for higher usage. This should even carry over into
trash pickup and recycling where we incentivize generating less trash.


5/6/2021 7:11 PM


15 I would love an outreach program not just for lawn care, but to educate the effect of grass
lawns and their required maintenance on our ecosystems. And then further educate how
beneficial natural and native lawns/landscaping would be for our community.


5/6/2021 7:07 PM


16 The benefits of low flow faucets and shower heads are negated by the the extra time it takes
to rinse the soap off or out.


5/6/2021 5:56 PM


17 Don’t get into punitive rate designs. This could negatively impact customers who have a need
for water use, such as a brewery.


5/6/2021 5:03 PM


18 How about lower cost rates for those who use less instead 5/6/2021 3:23 PM


19 With regard to reducing salt usage on low-traffic streets, I totally agree with this. One
significant issue related is drivers' lack of attention to how slippery the roads will be. Perhaps
some public service announcements to the effect of "slow down" in general, and specifically
when roads are iced over, would be beneficial.


5/6/2021 3:13 PM


20 Ensure the costs of conservation are not passed on to the customer by raising rates simply
because the funds are needed.


5/6/2021 2:53 PM


21 I support "minimizing" the use of salt on low-traffic roadways but not ELIMINATING the use of
salt on those roads. As one who lives on what may be deemed a "low-traffic" road, we still
need to be able to safely get to the "high-traffic" roads during icy winter conditions. You need
to define "higher usage" when it comes to raising water rates. I'm not sure I trust that the
Village won't increase rates on a vast majority of people vs. those with super expensive homes
on the lake who have yards going right up to the water and are more responsible for damage to
the lake. Any increases need to be tightly targeted. Our property tax assessments have been
dramatically increasing in recent years (15% this year) and it seems the Village should be able
to incorporate that added tax revenue to fund these measures instead of raising rates on a
majority of residents. We need to make sure our community remains affordable for people of
ALL income levels. That should be the highest priority.


5/6/2021 2:52 PM


22 The lawn care, grass clippings, leaves, etc get commonly swept into the drains that go to the
lake. Marking the drains would be a simple way to warm everyone not to inadvertently pollute
the waterways!


5/6/2021 1:13 PM


23 The Village already owns equipment for brining roadways rather than using salt. Why don't they
use it?


5/6/2021 12:28 PM


24 The recent price increase from 2019 to now has been almost too much. I dont want to move
because i cannot afford the cost of local utilities. It has been quite a shock to see the
difference and has hurt the bank account with the statement comes in the mail.


5/6/2021 11:19 AM


25 I’m particularly passionate about ecologically friendly lawn care. If the village took on
community composting, perhaps it Coyle be made available for lawn care for residents


5/6/2021 11:02 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


27 | Appendix B







Q10 Please indicate your level of support for the Land Use vision statement.
Answered: 246 Skipped: 98


3.25%
8


4.07%
10


19.11%
47


38.21%
94


35.37%
87


 
246


 
3.98


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


(no label)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


(no
label)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


28 | Appendix B



rhull

Stamp







Q11 Please indicate your level of support for the following actions aimed at
achieving the above vision.


Answered: 251 Skipped: 93


Review and
update Villa...


Increase the
variety of...


Require native
landscaping ...


Instead of
grass lawns,...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


29 | Appendix B







5.58%
14


13.15%
33


28.29%
71


30.28%
76


22.71%
57


 
251


 
3.51


4.40%
11


8.80%
22


27.60%
69


29.60%
74


29.60%
74


 
250


 
3.71


3.21%
8


4.42%
11


12.05%
30


36.95%
92


43.37%
108


 
249


 
4.13


1.99%
5


6.37%
16


16.33%
41


32.27%
81


43.03%
108


 
251


 
4.08


# COMMENTS DATE


1 There is no consideration of cost in any of these statements. 5/28/2021 4:12 AM


2 Native landscaping reduces access across public areas in many cases. Not clear what
"Increase the variety of housing choices" means.


5/27/2021 12:09 PM


3 How would requiring natural landscaping be enforced, current rules are not enforced (sweep
grass and leaves from sidewalks and curbs, pick up after pets, junky home lots). Tall plants
near buildings will house rodents and “hide” peoples’ junk. Who would define “native planting”
and what is acceptable? And then enforce it? How? Fines? Encourage green spaces allowed to
remain, stop developers from removing so many trees in order to build more houses to sell; we
need green space to live and breathe, but at least use the wood rather than chip led trees that
were simply roughly knocked over (I’ve watched this done and it’s disgusting)


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


4 I feel like this is using environmental concerns to try to increase the number of large
development in McFarland. I like the wide spaced and pretty homes. I think big apartment
complexes, or closer together homes is not necessarily environmentally friendly. I am opposed
to requiring natural landscaping in private properties - I could see encouraging it, but the word
requirement concerns me.


5/26/2021 7:49 AM


5 Allow tiny homes 5/26/2021 1:40 AM


6 Reduce or eliminate use of toxic chemicals in public spaces such as parks, near bike &
walking paths, etc. Implement programs to naturally control & reduce invasive species.


5/20/2021 9:55 PM


7 help residents move to native landscaping too 5/20/2021 9:30 AM


8 I don’t know the area well enough to form an opinion on the types of housing McFarland needs. 5/17/2021 9:32 PM


9 Wow. Let's require, let's require, let's require. 5/17/2021 8:01 AM


10 I’ve considered tiny house living, but I’m not sure if the local ordinances are conducive for 5/17/2021 5:54 AM


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


Review and update Village plans and
ordinances to look for opportunities
to utilize land more efficiently, such
as reducing setbacks and minimum
lot sizes.


Increase the variety of housing
choices and types in the Village.


Require native landscaping in buffer
areas around surface water and
wetlands on both public and private
property to protect water quality.


Instead of grass lawns, utilize more
native landscaping on municipal
properties that are not used for
recreation purposes.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


30 | Appendix B







something like this.


11 Landscaping around water and wetlands has not been kept ideal. I live on a storm water
detention pond and the plants on our side on a rather steep slope do not filter water and do
allow for erosion of the earth around the pond. When the pond was dredged out years ago, the
grassy covering was lost and now the covering has very shallow roots and is not very dense.
The village should be more interested in taking care of this.


5/15/2021 12:34 PM


12 These ideas all sound so good! Thank you and great work! 5/14/2021 1:41 PM


13 Mcfarland NEEDS to have affordable housing options, other than apartments (that aren't that
affordable). As a lower income resident, all I see being built are ridiculously high prices and
HUGE houses or condos, which is neither green nor sustainable. I can not afford anything in
mcfarland, and am assuming it's just going to skyrocket from here. It is obvious to me that the
village is putting out this message of wanting to be environmentally friendly and accepting of
all, but literally all the new developments are for rich, white people. It's disappointing. Unless
you make over 100k a year, Mcfarland is not an affordable option.


5/14/2021 11:44 AM


14 Mcfarland has a way to go with this. The new developments are getting more and more
expensive making McFarland less affordable.


5/7/2021 2:40 PM


15 The only thing that worries me is that I have many outdoor allergies, so if we do this all over,
we may need to move, or won’t be able to visit certain areas of the village :(


5/7/2021 9:02 AM


16 While minimizing setback requirements and reducing lot sizes are great to densify the village,
it also limits the choices for residents when buying or building a home. Having subdivisions
with larger lots than .25 acre shall be considered.


5/7/2021 7:42 AM


17 For the last 30 years (after living in McFarland for 47 years all i have heard is how McFarland
is landlock, yet every direction you look there is housing being built, I think there is enough
variety of housing.


5/6/2021 9:58 PM


18 Minimum lot sizes decrease urban sprawl but reduce available property for “green use”. If I
have a 5000sf lot I don’t have adequate space to Support a garden, green space, and a lawn.
Expanded lot sizes to .5 acre allow quality of life to be balanced with all three goals. I can
have/support pollinator areas and traditional lawn area.


5/6/2021 9:32 PM


19 Less mowing & less use of herbicides and pesticides should save tax dollars. 5/6/2021 7:11 PM


20 Yes! to the native landscaping 5/6/2021 7:07 PM


21 Native landscaping on all property would be great. I’m a bit confused by the first question- are
you saying that lots sizes will become smaller or larger? Larger lots allow for more green space
and less tapping into the water table per resident. (I would hope.)


5/6/2021 5:07 PM


22 Educate, don’t mandate. 5/6/2021 5:03 PM


23 We also need to look at long term runoff when building. No one ever comes back to look at
these areas years after the development goes up to see if the drainage is working properly, or
even needs to be maintained.


5/6/2021 3:25 PM


24 We don't need more condominiums and apartment buildings that drive down neighborhood
property values.


5/6/2021 2:53 PM


25 If "native landscaping" means weeds like dandelions and others, I oppose. If it means planting
wildflowers, I agree. As for housing, we MUST have more lower- to middle-income housing
options to allow for a more diverse citizenry. And it shouldn't be packed into one or two
massive apartment complexes. We don't need a return of the failed concept of "projects" of the
1970s/80s. More affordable single-family homes and duplexes should be encouraged, too. We
also need to stop giving away lakefront property to developers. That high-income monstrosity
behind Walgreens (former Beach House) was a huge fail for the Village. At a minimum, it
should have been redeveloped for a new bar/restaurant, if not another lakefront community
park. You'd be hard-pressed to legitimately call this a "lake" village because our elders did not
develop the lakefront for public access, other than the small McDaniel Park. It's a shame that
it all went to super-expensive private property.


5/6/2021 2:52 PM


26 Stop letting the village turn into a Veridian style neighborhood. Lots are too small and houses
are too close in all new developments. There is no character in these new neighborhoods.


5/6/2021 2:44 PM


27 I really think the village needs to offer LARGER homes as well as more variety in the lower 5/6/2021 1:13 PM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


31 | Appendix B







income bracket... Dane county is generally very expensive cost of living. Mcfarland has a
great plan, that's why we're here and it's was sad to realize all the CUP makes our possible for
huge apartments to be put where there's supposed to be townhouses. Diversity is great,
however I'd like to point out there are basically no homes above 3500 Sq ft either. So, if there
aren't any large lots available, that is frustrating for wealthier families. Keep in mind, families
that want to come to the area for the schools are in all tax bracket levels.


28 Can the village ask HOAs not be so restrictive about their policies in their neighborhoods? 5/6/2021 11:19 AM


29 My concerns about reducing setbacks and Ming lot sizes is that you end up with a greater
percentage of impermeable surfaces... I do support efficient land use. If fewer people have
yards, I would like to see more space for community gardens as locally produced/‘home grown’
food has many ecological benefits


5/6/2021 11:02 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


32 | Appendix B







Q12 Please indicate your level of support for the Solid Waste vision 
statement.


Answered: 245 Skipped: 99


0.41%
1


0.82%
2


9.80%
24


49.80%
122


39.18%
96


 
245


 
4.27


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


(no label)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


(no
label)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


33 | Appendix B



rhull

Stamp







Q13 Please indicate your level of support for the following actions aimed at
achieving the above vision.


Answered: 251 Skipped: 93


Work to
achieve zero...


Offer compost
bins for...


Create a
municipal...


Create a
program to...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


34 | Appendix B







1.99%
5


3.19%
8


16.33%
41


42.23%
106


36.25%
91


 
251


 
4.08


1.20%
3


1.20%
3


12.45%
31


40.96%
102


44.18%
110


 
249


 
4.26


2.39%
6


6.77%
17


22.71%
57


35.46%
89


32.67%
82


 
251


 
3.89


0.80%
2


2.00%
5


16.00%
40


42.00%
105


39.20%
98


 
250


 
4.17


1.59%
4


4.78%
12


17.13%
43


36.65%
92


39.84%
100


 
251


 
4.08


# COMMENTS DATE


1 There is no consideration of cost in any of these proposals. 5/28/2021 4:12 AM


2 Zero landfill waste seems grandiose, lots of educating and buy in work to be done. Educate
more or have places available to residents to recycle small electronics, household batteries
and lightbulbs easy access drop boxes to recycle batteries similar to medicine drop boxes
would be helpful.


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


3 I am very eco, but I am not going to compost. Rotting food on properties is not a good thing for
varmints and other wildlife.


5/26/2021 12:12 PM


4 need any initiatives to have clear, easy guidelines-- challenging when recycling and other rules
differ from city to village- different in Madison than McFarland...


5/20/2021 9:30 AM


5 We currently belong to a local composting group who provides a bucket and biodegradable 5/17/2021 9:32 PM


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


Create a
Village comp...


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


Work to achieve zero landfill waste
in municipal operations by 2040.


Offer compost bins for Village
residents.


Create a municipal purchasing policy
that requires consideration be given
to whether a product is made from
renewable and/or recycled materials.


Create a program to encourage and
facilitate the practical reuse of waste
from private
and municipal construction projects.


Create a Village compost site for
food waste.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


35 | Appendix B







bags and picks up once a week. If the village provided this for all residents that would be
great.


6 I think having individually owned compost sites makes more sense 5/17/2021 11:30 AM


7 The 2040 target might be too far away; we could be doing much of these things now. My
partner is a zero waste sustainability analyst at AmFam and has much insight and resources
on the subject. Please reach out for more info.


5/17/2021 5:54 AM


8 Instead of have a purchase policy that allows over spending on items just to be political
correct, how abut spending more money in a way that would save the village taxpayer money
instead of cost more.


5/6/2021 9:58 PM


9 This is the single most feasible and supportable area for sustainable development. We are
lacking in support for diverting biomass from landfills where it contributes to climate
degradation in the form of CH4 emissions. .


5/6/2021 9:32 PM


10 These all sound like expensive endeavors with little value. 5/6/2021 5:03 PM


11 Other communities have had problems with a community compost site 5/6/2021 4:07 PM


12 This is a hard one for me. It's one thing to 'plan on' or 'work toward', it's an entirely different
thing to achieve it. I'm all for zero landfill waste as a goal, but question whether the effort and
energy are as worthwhile as increasing housing density and overall energy efficiency.


5/6/2021 3:13 PM


13 To keep my kitchen scraps out of the landfill I have an arrangement with a friend across town
who lets me put my scraps in her compost bin. Of course I drive there which negates some of
the positive impact of this arrangement. The village should have curbside food scrap pickup.


5/6/2021 3:01 PM


14 Yes to community composting. 5/6/2021 2:53 PM


15 I would like to see our Village adopt free vaccum leaf pickup in the fall like other communities
have. Given our property tax rate, we shouldn't have to pay for plastic bags and put the leaves
in them to have them picked up. Raking them to the edge of the yard to be vaccumed up by
Village makes the most sense and would be a service that would help residents FAR MORE
than spending our tax money on things such as additional amenities at a dog park. That was
an obscene waste of our tax money that only benefits a small segment of our population. Be
better! Also, it would be helpful to have a free annual large-item trash pickup to encourage
residents to get rid of objects they may be stashing in their back yards or filling their houses
with because they can't afford to move them or don't have a truck to be able to transport them
to the landfill. Make this investment that will allow people a fresh start towards a sustainability
focused lifestyle by giving them a cost-free way to rid themselves of these unwanted items.


5/6/2021 2:52 PM


16 Incorporate food waste pick up into garbage pick up. City of Dubuque, IA has a good program
you could check out! Not sure if folks would haul food scraps to a site.


5/6/2021 2:43 PM


17 I would support further incentivizing residents switching to the small garbage cans. Provide
TerraCycle drop off at municipal buildings. Offer financial assistance to help families afford
CSA memberships.


5/6/2021 11:02 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


36 | Appendix B







Q14 Please indicate your level of support for the Community Health
 vision statement.


Answered: 244 Skipped: 100


1.23%
3


0.82%
2


8.20%
20


35.66%
87


54.10%
132


 
244


 
4.41


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


(no label)


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


(no
label)


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


37 | Appendix B



rhull

Stamp







Q15 Please indicate your level of support for the following actions aimed at
achieving the above vision.


Answered: 251 Skipped: 93


Require
tobacco-free...


Increase
recreation...


Add a second
community...


Build a
multi-genera...


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


38 | Appendix B







2.79%
7


5.18%
13


9.16%
23


26.29%
66


56.57%
142


 
251


 
4.29


0.80%
2


1.20%
3


10.76%
27


38.65%
97


48.61%
122


 
251


 
4.33


0.40%
1


1.20%
3


31.47%
79


34.66%
87


32.27%
81


 
251


 
3.97


0.80%
2


6.37%
16


23.11%
58


33.47%
84


36.25%
91


 
251


 
3.98


# COMMENTS DATE


1 There are plenty of non-smoking areas and recreational programs! 5/26/2021 11:49 PM


2 All of the above can lead to a healthy living environment BUT many of the identified items
throughout the above survey will be beyond the means and ability of many folks who will then
feel judged and/or excluded. I would encourage incentives rather than requirements that may
not be enforceable. Create an environment where we want to help each other.


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


3 In addition to a community center, our village is in desperate need of an outdoor pool or splash
pad.


5/26/2021 11:03 AM


4 This Community needs to increase its recreational opportunities. Please take Fund 80 from the
district and utilize the monies for the entire community, not just school aged kids. Our family is
forced to travel outside McFarland for these, especially outdoor swimming!


5/26/2021 10:49 AM


5 Well done!!! 5/26/2021 7:47 AM


6 Rather than adding a community service day, regularly share how people can be involved in
the community. Connect those who need help and those who want to give it. You've not
proposed anything about ensuring equity and inclusivity for marginalized populations who live
in the Village. Consider what opportunities you have their for people to share about their
cultures and raise awareness and find solutions for concerns people may have about how well
they feel included in the village community.


5/25/2021 7:57 PM


7 DEI is essential to environmentalism. 5/17/2021 5:54 AM


8 You left out anything do to with actual inclusivity and diversity as well as providing for the
physical and mental health of residents. What's the use of them being in the vision statement
if there are no action goals to work toward them?


5/15/2021 11:11 AM


9 The community center concept which includes activities for senior citizens has long been
bandied about. I think its time has come!


5/14/2021 1:41 PM


10 Building a community center and having tobacco free areas are nice, but it's a bandaid to a
bigger problem. Housing prices in mcfarland are out of control and it is not an affordable place
to live unless you're rich


5/14/2021 11:44 AM


Strongly Oppose Oppose Neutral Support Strongly Support


0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%


 STRONGLY
OPPOSE


OPPOSE NEUTRAL SUPPORT STRONGLY
SUPPORT


TOTAL WEIGHTED
AVERAGE


Require tobacco-free and e-cigarette
free apartments in all new multi-
family developments and on all
municipal properties, including parks.


Increase recreation programs
through the Village.


Add a second community service
day.


Build a multi-generational community
center.


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


39 | Appendix B







11 We have lobbied for a senior/community center for 14 years. It's time! 5/7/2021 8:26 AM


12 Parks how much money was spent on Parkland out by the interstate, For What? Don't we have
enough parks that at this point are probably underused.


5/6/2021 9:58 PM


13 Our problem isn’t smoking and natural trends toward healthy lifestyle will eliminate the need for
investment in this area. Facilitate healthy lifestyle through opportunity not regulation.


5/6/2021 9:32 PM


14 Set up a village wide tour of homes with "alternative" lawns; offer native plants to residents to
install in their yards, make a contest out of reducing lawn and going native for the pollinators,
install native plants at all municipal and public buildings. Replace grass with native plants in
areas around town and draw attention to it with signage such a "bee-friendly" or pollinator
friendly or bird friendly signs.


5/6/2021 7:11 PM


15 Don’t mandate personal choices. 5/6/2021 5:03 PM


16 A multi-generational center should be built instead of a new police/fire building. 5/6/2021 4:07 PM


17 It's a shame that we consider ourselves a lake community but do not have any beach access
(McDaniel Park is NOT a beach) or an outdoor community pool. We have given away our
valuable lakefront property to private developers and wealthy individuals. Instead of spending
our tax money on narrowly targeted projects like dog park amenity expansion (do we *really*
need a party facility there?!?), we should be investing in community amenities such as an
OUTDOOR public pool that would benefit the constant influx of residents with school-age
children as well as our retired or soon-to-be-retired residents who have been investing in the
Village by paying property taxes for years. Saying we have a public pool at the high school is
not sufficient. That's not a summertime or family friendly amenity. Nobody wants to be inside a
hot pool area in the summer and the high school pool is built for lap swimming and
competition, not for relaxation and family enjoyment with zero-entry areas and areas for small
children. Having such a facility would encourage community health and camaraderie and
residents of all ages would benefit from it. Based on past comments on our community
Facebook groups, it seems that there is significant community support for such a project. Our
trustees should make it happen. It's more important than adding another 4- or 5-story
apartment complex with a bar/retail that can't even be filled on Farwell Street. Also, until such
a facility could be built, McFarland should consider entering into an agreement with Monona to
allow for a reduced rate for McFarland residents to use their community pool. There are A LOT
of our community members who are forced to go there because there is no option here.


5/6/2021 2:52 PM


18 Why not have monthly community service days? Or weekly for that matter. 5/6/2021 2:44 PM


19 Would love to see a community group form to exchange ideas about how to live
environmentally friendly lives.


5/6/2021 11:02 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


40 | Appendix B







Q16 Is there anything else you would like us to know?
Answered: 50 Skipped: 294


# RESPONSES DATE


1 All items need to be considered in terms of cost. 5/28/2021 4:12 AM


2 I would like to see McFarland invest in more amenities for Village residents with families such
as a splash pad or pool similar to all the other Madison suburbs. I would also like to see better
businesses in McFarland such as better restaurants, bars and other commercial spaces.


5/26/2021 9:47 PM


3 Encourage revitalization of the downtown as a place residents want to/enjoy being as well as
more enjoyable public access to the lake. We have been severed into “lake people” and “the
other side”.


5/26/2021 9:01 PM


4 make it easier to walk without fear of being killed by a vehicle. There are several dangerous
ped intersections including Taylor/Paulson, trying to cross Hwy 51 on the south end of town,
(how about a bridge or tunnel) and traffic calming techniques like round-abouts, bump outs and
speed bumps (Valley, for instance is dangerous sometimes!)


5/26/2021 12:12 PM


5 All new apartment buildings should be required to offer commercial space. There are many
people that would love to open businesses here, but there are few options for them. More
businesses in the community will lead to less traveling for residents.


5/26/2021 10:49 AM


6 Build a Splash pad! 5/26/2021 1:28 AM


7 Pool 5/25/2021 9:32 PM


8 Build a splash pad 5/25/2021 8:43 PM


9 I wish that this survey had included questions about job creation in the village. It would really
be great to see some effort put into economic support for the area that doesn’t come from
property taxes from homeowners.


5/25/2021 8:09 PM


10 Provide sites or information on the proper disposal of old gasoline, and other hazardous
materials. A site at the Public Works building would be good, even if it had limited hours and
had to be overseen by staff. Right now all that is offered is used oil disposal.


5/25/2021 12:16 PM


11 This survey obviously took some thought to put together, nice job team! 5/24/2021 7:37 AM


12 So glad to see this coming! Thank you for this very thoughtful survey and vision!! 5/20/2021 6:44 PM


13 quit wasting money on projects that benefit no one; over priced contracts and insane
subcontracting that leads to poor work on projects


5/20/2021 9:30 AM


14 I’m glad the village is asking these questions and look forward to hearing about the general
interest from the rest of the community.


5/17/2021 9:32 PM


15 We need to create more of a shopping area that will bring people in rather than send them to
Madison. Is there a plan to create a 'downtown' area similar to what some of the other villages
have done (Waunakee or what Oregon has)?


5/17/2021 6:56 AM


16 I am also a sustainability expert within the built environment (commercial green building). If
you need any more info along those lines, please let me know. Thank you for considering
these topics. ~Matthew Duffy, 608.354.2988


5/17/2021 5:54 AM


17 Great ideas!!! 5/16/2021 4:49 PM


18 Leave us alone and stop passing regulations that make you feel good but do nothing other than
increase fines


5/15/2021 5:15 PM


19 Any program that requires creating new restrictions to the homeowners should be considered
very carefully. We pay for food stewardship of our tax dollars and only need protection by the
police and fire depts. We don't need every nes thing that comes along as an amenity. Our
churches and service orgs along with small businesses in McF offer so much already and it


5/15/2021 4:51 PM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


41 | Appendix B







keeps people working together as families and neighborhoods. We dont need the village to
provide it all for us.


20 I was with you until the last 'Community Health statement. The action goals to actually help
ALL residents have access to physical and mental health as well as ANYTHING about actual
inclusivity and diversity were completely non-existent. Very, very disappointed. These need to
be addressed badly in McFarland.


5/15/2021 11:11 AM


21 My number one personal wish is that we will get public transit connectivity to Madison. 5/15/2021 8:22 AM


22 Yes, Where does all the TAX money come from to support some of your "utopia" ideas? 5/14/2021 7:04 PM


23 Just remember you can’t be diverse with the townie cliques and nepotism in the village
departments and schools. We all see it.


5/14/2021 6:50 PM


24 Do the schools currently have a gardening class or program? School gardens can be a great
place to learn to garden, but can also incorporate shop/building projects such as raised beds,
trellises, fencing, etc. and art - growing plants and fruiting vines are quite artistic, and cooking
classes about how to prepare and consume healthy foods. Plus, students who grow food could
be allowed to take food home and thus educate and feed their families. Thank you for all your
work and this excellent survey.


5/14/2021 1:41 PM


25 With the substantial influx of residential properties, the Village should also consider what it will
take to draw more business to the area, particularly a more substantial supermarket than the
one currently in town.


5/14/2021 12:42 PM


26 Invest in sewer upgrades to prevent excessive runoff, causing premature erosion and black ice
formation.


5/14/2021 11:08 AM


27 INCREASE RESIDENT ACCESS TO LAKES!!!! PUBLIC PIERS, KAYAKING, TRAILS,
CLEAN BEACH. THAT WAS IN THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN WHEN WE MOVED HERE
AND IS NOT MENTIONED AT ALL HERE.


5/7/2021 9:31 PM


28 We need to somehow find and punish all of those who are littering!!! There is so much litter
within the Village and country areas. It is totally sicking!!!


5/7/2021 3:09 PM


29 Property taxe sre forcing the elderly to choose between rising health care costs or saving to
pay their taxes.


5/7/2021 2:10 PM


30 Why is there not McFarland Village Plan and Vision to try to quit spending Tax money like
there is no end to it. Quit using the excuse it is Grant money, Where does Grant money come
from our taxes? Over the years how many improvements have done for citizen want, only for
that citizen to move out of town 5 to 10 years later and leave the peole that have lived herefor
many years to pay for.


5/6/2021 9:58 PM


31 We just moved here last July, so haven’t really had the opportunity to see it at it’s best.
Looking forward to our future here. Love it so far.


5/6/2021 8:21 PM


32 Limited government 5/6/2021 7:39 PM


33 Public swimming pool?! 5/6/2021 7:15 PM


34 — build REAL affordable housing! — accepted ALL people and make McFarland a model of
diversity thru racial equity, diverse sexuality and turn into the kindest community around!!!!


5/6/2021 7:14 PM


35 I am not much help. Some of these programs are very well intended but end up costing
taxpayers more in property taxes. We can just jam everything on the property taxes as this will
decrease property values. I really like these ideas but we need to find a way to do it at a
reasonable and realistic cost to the property owners.


5/6/2021 7:13 PM


36 Both of my kids go to McFarland schools and we plan to move there one day. 5/6/2021 7:08 PM


37 McFarland is so beautiful and our Village has so much potential for growth. It is so important to
me that we carefully consider the impact that each decision has on our natural environment
and sustainability AND inclusion (racially, socio-economically, accessibility, etc). Thank you for
providing us this opportunity to give feedback about this issue!


5/6/2021 7:07 PM


38 traffic flow at major 4-way intersections is a mess as everyone politely waits for the right-hand
driver to go. It may be time to install traffic lights.


5/6/2021 6:36 PM


39 I would love some sustainable type classes through the rec program: building bee habitats, 5/6/2021 5:07 PM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


42 | Appendix B







natural landscaping, keeping chickens, etc.


40 Please be good stewards of the taxpayer's money and do not simply add fees to municipal
fees that are already to high such as water because you see it as the environmentally correct
future. Village residents cannot afford such measures. Also, imposing new requirements on
private residencies is not a good way to get environmental progress. Carrot is better than the
stick.


5/6/2021 4:07 PM


41 Minimize development of current green space. I hate seeing so many new houses, condos,
apartments etc being built further and further into what was once green space or countryside.
People talk about seeing more deer, foxes and coyotes in the village - its because the more we
build and develop land, the more we force them out of their homes. Time to really look at that
when new developments are proposed.


5/6/2021 4:00 PM


42 Anything that aims to keep people in McFarland rather than go elsewhere for business and
pleasure should be a top priority. Make McFarland a destination; it is currently not.


5/6/2021 2:53 PM


43 We are longtime (White) residents who believe that Black Lives Matter. Our Village Board
should insist that our new police chief and his department are providing reports each year (if
not quarterly) on their efforts to train officers in de-escalation practices and eliminate racial
profiling. There are too many troubling reports shared on our community social media of our
Black residents being followed by police. That must stop and a clear message needs to be
shared with our police department that it is not acceptable. Our tax money is being used to
build a new facility for them. After all, they report to US and are supposed to serve and protect.
It should not be a revenue-based service focused on making traffic stops and arrests. Our
community should be a leader in the national effort to reform police policy and practices.


5/6/2021 2:52 PM


44 A lot of these programs will cost more than they save. So how will you convince people to
want to participate?


5/6/2021 2:45 PM


45 In addition to the natural resources...how are the plentiful cultural resources in McFarland ...
native american mounds... are being cared for and preserved. A local expert is willing to help
advise on this...608-718-9324


5/6/2021 2:43 PM


46 We want a splash pad!!! 5/6/2021 1:22 PM


47 Review & change the conditional use permits for land, enforce the green space on the land...
don't let developers buy their way out of it, keep up with the actual plan of the village... stop
with the randomness!


5/6/2021 1:13 PM


48 Increase the number of things that can be recycled and dropped off in the Village such as
cardboard, plastic bags, Styrofoam, batteries and small electronics.


5/6/2021 11:18 AM


49 Would love to join this group or at least attend their meetings! It looks like there might be room
for more, but why is there a maximum of 9 residents allowed?


5/6/2021 11:02 AM


50 Please prohibit the natural gas sub station next to Grandview Trail. Please keep our natural
areas natural and beautiful for our village.


5/6/2021 10:37 AM


Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI


43 | Appendix B







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


Appendix C
 


APPENDIX C – VISIONING RESULTS 
  







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


1 | A p p e n d i x  C  
 


Energy Visioning Board Comments 


 


Common Themes 


Net-zero for all new construction 


Renewables on all buildings 


Weatherization 


Community buy-in 


Community solar 


  


Visions Barriers Actions


All new construction and municipal buildings are net-zero (7) Initial costs/lack of incentives (7) Education on existing rebates and tax incentives - in schools, in water bills, welcome packet for new residents (5)


Renewables used for all  residences, gov. and commercial buildings (4) Regulatory policies (3) Grants and financial incentives to help with initial costs (4)


There are shared community renewables to buy into (3) Finding qualified contractors who understand the technology (3) Educational pilot programs to demonstrate the effectiveness of energy efficiency and renewables (4)


There is broad community buy-in regarding renewables & energy efficiency (3) Mindset and cultural norms (3) Energy audits to identify energy drains in gov., residential and commercial buildings (4)


Every home and business is energy efficient and weatherized (3) Historic investment in fossil  fuels (2) Social marketing, community ambassadors/liasons to new residents (4)


All renewable energy by 2050 (2) Inefficiency of util ities in providing power Develop a community resource center and/or a resource manual on best practices and incentive programs (2)


Street l ights and traffic l ights are all  solar powered (2) Lack of resident involvement in government Support organizations like Project Home


Municipal operations are 100% GHG emission free Lack of marketing/communication Collaborations and partnerships with other municipalities


Village purchasing decisions will  follow plan goals Lack of knowledge about energy efficiency programs and incentives Carbon credits to bring in revenue


Income disparities Waive municipal fees for energy efficiency upgrades


More appliance upgrade incentives


Hold a sustainability fair to bring in contractors to showcase their programs to residents


Push power companies to adopt more aggressive sustainability actions


Energy







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


2 | A p p e n d i x  C  
 


Transportation Visioning Board Comments 


 


Common Themes 


Access to public transit 


Safety for bikes and pedestrians 


Ridesharing/bike-sharing 


Light rail 


Interconnectivity 


Charging stations for e-vehicles 


Village vehicles all electric 


School/summer programs accessible by walking/biking 


  


Visions Barriers Actions


More public transit options and useage - Metro stop in Village (6) Money (5) Promote ride-sharing/work with State (5)


The Village is safe for biking and walking (6) Cultural norms (4) Develop a Village bike-sharing or e-bike program (3)


More ride-sharing (6) Regulatory policies  - no RTAs allowed by State (3) Promote local businesses that are accessible by biking and walking (3)


Light rail  to Madison (5) Time (2) Create better infrastructure for e-vehicles - require for new buildings (2)


There are more interconnected on and off-road bike/ped facil ities  (5) Income disparities Education on transportation alternatives


All municipal vehicles are electric (2) Shipping long distances is unsustainable Pilot programs


Easy access to charging stations for e-vehicles (2) Low public transit use compared to cost to join Study to find out where/why people travel for amenities


Kids walk or bike to school Lack of e-vehicle charging stations Social marketing to change culture and perceptions of public transit and biking


Accessible after school and summer programs Public transit is inaccessible Summer buses to take kids to parks or pool


E-vehicles make up a larger percentage of all  vehicles in Village Work with Madison to establish e-bike stations as part of the Madison system


Zero emissions from vehicles Establish a park and ride connected to a Metro bus stop


All school buses are electric Lobby to change State laws regarding RTAs


Decrease VMT Work with school district to increase busing options


Purchase e-vehicles for Village


Transportation







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


3 | A p p e n d i x  C  
 


Solid Waste Board Comments 


 


Common Themes 


Reduced volume of waste/food waste 


No recycling in trash 
More access to clean sweep, e-recycling, 
etc. 


Community compost site 


Reuse/repurpose construction waste 


  


Visions Barriers Actions


Volume of trash reduced (2) Recycling rules are complicated (3) More public events/access to clean sweep, e-recycling, shredding and battery disposal (10)


Construction waste is reduced and reused/repurposed (2) Cultural norms - always wanting "new" and "better" (3) Recycle food waste/community compost site (10)


No recycling ends up in trash Lack of incentives to reduce waste (2) Ban/reduce use of single-use plastics and promote alternatives (5)


Single-use plastics are no longer used Costs Incentivize sustainable building materials and reuse/repurposing of building materials during permitting process (4)


Food waste is eliminated School practices - time and resources Waste free community events (3)


All toxic waste disposed of properly Recycling needs to be exported to be recycled More recycling education (3)


Lack of compliance with recycling laws Require recycling at businesses (2)


Lack of cradle to grave product sustainability Facilitate relationships between grocery stores and food banks


Lack of data on whether residents would use compost site Develop local recycling programs


State government prohibition on local control of single use plastics Encourage more recycling at schools


Excessive packaging Municipal purchasing policies for recycled or recyclable products


Waste reduction requirements on Village projects


Equipment sharing program to reduce demand and waste


Community upcycle location


Celebrate successes to maintain momentum


Consistently measure and report on waste amounts collected


Solid Waste







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


4 | A p p e n d i x  C  
 


Water Visioning Board Comments 


 
 


Common Themes 


Reduced nutrients entering lakes 


Clean lakes/beaches for recreation 


Clean drinking water 


Efficient water use 


Reduced salt use 


 


 


 
  


Visions Barriers Actions


Reduced nutrients entering the lake (10) Lack of knowledge about pollutants (fertil izers, leaf management) (3) Reduce salt use on roadways and private property (5)


Clean lakes and beaches for swimming (5) Costs (3) More education/encouragement on sustainable lawn management (5)


Safe and clean drinking water (3) Cultural norms - perfectly manicured lawns (3) More green infrastructure (4)


Increased opportunities for volunteering (2) State regulatory roadblocks to local control (2) Encourage native plantings, raingardens and rain barrels on public and private property (4)


Water used more efficiently (2) Influences outside Village borders that impact water quality (2) Decrease impervious surfaces to reduce runoff (2)


Strong awareness and buy-in for clean run-off practices Increased severe weather events (2) More testing for pollutants in groundwater (2)


Lack of local incentives Increase local incentives to use groundwater wisely (2)


Salt use - safety vs environment Redirect runoff to natural treatment areas like wetlands


Lack of public land adjacent to waterways for green infrastructure Create systemic way to collect and manage leaf l itter


Perception that water is a l imitless resource Incentivize organic agriculture


Allow for grey water system development


Work with other communities in same watershed


Strengthen erosion control ordinance


Incentives for shoreland owners to preserve native vegetation


Water







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


5 | A p p e n d i x  C  
 


Land Use and Development Visioning Board Comments 


 


Common Themes 


Preservation of natural areas, trees 


Interconnected walking and biking trails 


Accessible parks with year-round activities 


Clean lakes 


High-density, mixed-use construction 


Green, net-zero buildings 


Vibrant downtown 


More green infrastructure; less impervious surface 


  


Visions Barriers Actions


Natural areas/native species are protected and mature trees preserved (4) Costs (5) Incentives for energy efficiency/green building - e.g. waiving permit fees, tax incentives (7)


Parks will  be accessible to all  and have year round activities (4) Village ordinances - minimum lot sizes/parking requirements (3) Education and outreach - clearly communicate vision (6)


More green space and green infrastructure to protect surface water (3) Resistance to high-density development (2) Adopt/update codes and ordinances that support green infrastructure - amend parking regulations (3)


Everyone will  have access to interconnected walking and biking facil ities (3) Lack of Village incentives for energy efficiency/green building Ensure all  water is treated on-site before entering waterways (3)


Net-zero construction for all  Vil lage buildings (2) Lack of knowledge about green infrastructure Develop partnerships with other groups working towards same goals (2)


There is more high-density, mixed-use, infi l l  development (2) Local politics Incentives and education on native landscaping (2)


The downtown will  be a vibrant community center with year-round activities (2) Update Village plans to include more opportunity for high-density and mixed-use (2)


Clean lakes and waterways (2) Update road specifications to allow for narrower streets (2)


Homeowners will  use native plants in landscaping Encourage higher buildings - build up rather than out


There is a good balance between development and natural perservation Incentives for higher density development


Parking lots will  be locations for infil l  development Develop relationships with developers who value sustainable practices


More public access to lakes Develop an eco-friendly business park


Create Village boundary constraints


Land Use







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


6 | A p p e n d i x  C  
 


Community Health Visioning Board Comments 


 


 


 


Visions Barriers Actions


Access to healthy local food options for all, including school children (6) Cultural norms/attitudes about sustainability/lawn upkeep (3) Budget each year for more sidewalks and bike lanes/complete streets projects (7)


Healthy lakes and rivers (4) Costs (3) Encourage civic participation through Village sponsored civic activities, forums, coffehouse-style meetings (6)


Recreation programming and parks accessible to all  abilities (3) Lack of enough testing of drinking water (2) Build a multigenerational community center (5)


A community that is intentional about inclusion and embracing diversity (2) Only one grocery store (not local) Develop partnerships with other groups working towards same goals (4)


Access to clean drinking water for all  (2) Village ordinances Expand community gardening, urban agriculture, and add a winter farmer's market (3)


Public parks within walking distance of all  homes (2) State doesn't sponsor community health initiatives Clearly communicate the Village's vision with the community (3)


A community that provides for its most vulnerable (2) Competition with larger area farmer's markets Partner with schools for use as recreation spaces for the community (3)


Access to preventative care for all  (2) Too much surface water pollution Build a community health and wellness center (2)


Residents who are civicly engaged Lack of sidewalks Restrict/eliminate phosphorus and fertil izer use on public and private property (2)


100% walkable community Lack of quality data Find alternatives to salt use in winter (2)


Healthier residents - low obesity levels Seek grants


Reduced exposure to PFAS Work with local sports organizations to come up with alternatives to fertil izers on athletic fields


Residents able to get everything they need in the Village Community composting site


Offer more exercise classes


Draw in business that support local farmers


Continue to use Zoom


Local summer youth programming


Community Health


Common Themes 


Healthy local food/urban agriculture 


Clean water - surface and drinking 


Recreation opportunities for all abilities 


Intentional about embracing diversity 


Providing for most vulnerable 


Walkability/bikability 


Civic participation 


Partnerships 


Access to health care for all 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


1 | Appendix D
 


APPENDIX D – PREVIOUS PLANNING EFFORTS 
 
The following is a summary of existing goals, objectives, policies, or implementation actions identified 
around the terms "climate change", "energy efficiency", "green", "greenhouse", “health(y)”, “resilience” 
and "sustainability", within recently approved or accepted Village plans.  
 


Strategic Plan 2020 to 2030, adopted 2020: 
• Community Vision (page 6) 


o The vision of McFarland is to create an inviting, dynamic, diverse community that offers 


a high quality of life and a supportive environment in which all citizens may practice 


their individual value choices. The community actively seeks to preserve its proud 


heritage, protect its abundant natural resources, plan for responsible and balanced 


residential and commercial growth, promote a viable economic base, support 


educational excellence, provide diverse leisure options, and foster a healthy social 


fabric. 


• Community Values (page 8) 


o To create and sustain a high level of confidence in Village government, we pledge to 


function with: environmental sustainability. 


• Goal B: Plan for and align physical facilities and open space to support future service delivery, 


quality of life and infrastructure needs (page 10). 


o Strategy #2.  Improve current Village facilities, including maintenance enhancements, 


and identify new systems to promote sustainability. 


▪ Implementation Steps (page 20) 


• Research building systems that promote longevity and sustainability. 


• Goal D: Improve the safety and wellbeing of Village residents, businesses and visitors (page 12) 


o Strategy #4.  Promote the concept of a healthy community in an integrated way, from 


policy to planning to development. 


▪ Implementation Steps (page 26) 


• Research best practices on how to integrate healthy living into policy, 


planning and development. 


• Draft healthy community policies for consideration by the Village 


Trustees 


• Train staff in the use of healthy living best practices and policies. 


 


Village Board Goals 2019-2020, adopted 2019: 
• Goal A. A safe, healthy, and secure community (page 2) 


o Objective 5.  Develop measurable actions and standards for the advancement of 


sustainable initiatives within the Village. 


▪ Action Steps.  Assess energy consumption through energy use audit.  Develop 


program that promotes sustainability in Community.  Build in sustainable 


features into facilities planning. 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


2| Appendix D
 


• Goal D. A healthy and growing, regionally and globally integrated economy that supports local 


initiatives (page 5). 
 


Comprehensive Land Use Plan, adopted 2017: 
• General Goals 1 & 3 (page 5 of Volume 2) 


o A healthy and growing, regionally and globally integrated economy that supports local 


initiatives. 


o A safe, healthy, and secure community. 


• Initiatives for Natural and Agricultural Resources (page 11 and 19 of Volume 2) 


o Pursue Local Opportunities to Mitigate and Adapt to Climate Change.  The Village will 


advance local practices to mitigate or reduce the release of greenhouse gasses, and 


work to increase the community’s resilience to the impacts of climate change. 


• Goals for Policies for Natural and Agricultural Resources (page 12 of Volume 2) 


o Support energy efficiency and environmental sustainability as criteria in the design of 


public facilities and infrastructure. 


o Emphasize use and enhancement of natural drainage systems wherever practical for 


greater sustainability and value. 


• Initiatives for Housing and Neighborhoods (page 61 of Volume 2) 


o Encourage neighborhood development on the Village’s East Side.  Lands at and near the 


Village’s eastern edge provide the greatest opportunity for significant new housing 


development.  Such development will contribute to community health, provide 


recreational amenities for the entire community, and preserve topographic and natural 


areas through conservation neighborhood design. 


• Policies for Utilities and Community Facilities (page 71 of Volume 2) 


o Plan for public facility and utility projects based on community- or basin-wide utility or 


stormwater analyses and sustainability, rather than looking at individual projects 


without careful reference to a larger context. 


• Initiatives for Transportation (page 84 of Volume 2) 


o Expand McFarland’s Bicycle and Pedestrian Network.  The Village will advance 


improvements to sidewalks, trails, and on-street bike facilities to make McFarland an 


even more safe, healthy, and sustainable community. 


• Initiatives for Intergovernmental and Stakeholder Cooperation (page 94 of Volume 2) 


o Serve the Greater McFarland Community in Collaboration with the School District.  The 


health of the Village and School District are intertwined.  The Village welcomes 


collaboration on matters such as school expansions, land acquisition and disposition, 


joint programming and facility use, cross-service on committees, community growth, 


traffic management, and safe routes to schools. 


 


East Side Neighborhood Growth Plan, adopted 2008: 
• Page 23.  The plan embraces sustainable development practices including minimal site 


disturbance, preservation of existing natural features and habitat, restoration of native plant 


communities, and implementation of energy-efficient and low-impact development techniques 


for infrastructure design. 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


3 | Appendix D
 


• Pages 63-65 include various sustainable development strategies around the themes of site 


design, transportation, environment, and community. 


 


  







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


1 | Appendix E
 


APPENDIX E – METHODS & SOURCES 
 


Indicator Calculations 
The indicator calculations are based upon obtainable data that is normalized for the community in order 
to compare similar data from year to year.  Many indicators utilize data from multiple sources. 
 
❖ Population – Village of McFarland 


➢ Source: Annual Department of Administration Estimate 
➢ Baseline: Year-end 2019 estimate = 8,952 


 


Energy Indicators 


Energy indicators will measure the amount and sources of energy consumed in McFarland.   
 


❖ McFarland Municipal Energy Use  
➢ Indicator: Total Municipal Electricity Consumption 


▪ Calculation: Electricity delivered to municipal properties through regulated electric 
distribution grid.  


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy 
▪ Base Years: 2017-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Municipal Electricity Consumption per Square Foot 


▪ Calculation:  Electricity consumed per building ÷ square footage per building for the Public 
Works building, Library and Municipal Center. 


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy and Village data 
▪ Base Years: 2017-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Municipal Natural Gas Consumption  


▪ Calculation: Natural gas delivered to municipal properties through regulated natural gas 
distribution system. 


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy  
▪ Base Years: 2017-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Municipal Natural Gas Consumption per Square Foot 


▪ Calculation:  Natural gas consumed per building ÷ square footage per building for the 
Public Works building, Library and Municipal Center. 


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy and Village data 
▪ Base Years: 2017-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Municipal Electricity Consumption for Streetlights 


▪ Calculation: Municipal electricity consumed for streetlights delivered through the 
regulated electric distribution grid. 


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


2 | Appendix E
 


❖ McFarland Community Energy Use 
➢ Indicator: Residential Electricity Consumption  


▪ Calculation: Electricity delivered to residential customers through regulated electric 
distribution grid.  


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Residential Natural Gas Consumption 


▪ Calculation: Natural gas delivered to residential customers through regulated natural gas 
distribution system. 


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Commercial/Industrial Electricity Consumption 


▪ Calculation: Electricity delivered to commercial and industrial customers through 
regulated electric distribution grid.  


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Commercial/Industrial Natural Gas Consumption  


▪ Calculation: Natural gas delivered to commercial and industrial customers through 
regulated natural gas distribution system.  


▪ Source: MG&E and Alliant Energy 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 


❖ Renewable Energy Use 
➢ Indicator: Total Properties with Solar and kW Production 


▪ Calculation: Number of properties with solar installations and their kW production per 
year. 


▪ Source: Village permit data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Community-Wide Renewable Energy Consumption 


▪ Calculation: Percentage of total energy consumed generated from renewables per year. 
▪ Source: MG&E 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Municipal Renewable Energy Consumption 


▪ Calculation: Percentage of total energy consumed in municipal operations generated from 
renewables per year. 


▪ Source: MG&E, Alliant Energy and Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
 
 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


3 | Appendix E
 


Transportation Indicators 


Transportation indicators provide a measurement of the opportunity for all forms of transportation 
within the Village of McFarland and provide a picture of the municipal transportation fleet. 
 


❖ Alternative Modes of Transportation 
➢ Indicator: Number of Public Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 


▪ Calculation: Number of electric vehicle charging stations provided at municipal facilities. 
▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Percent of Collector and Minor Arterial Roads with Marked Bike Lanes 


▪ Calculation: Miles of collector and arterial roads with marked bike lanes ÷ total miles of 
collector and arterial roads. 


▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Percent of Roadways with Sidewalks on at Least One Side 


▪ Calculation: Road miles with sidewalk on one or both sides ÷ total road miles. 
▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Ratio of Off-Street Multi-Use Path Miles to Total Street Length 


▪ Calculation: Total off-street multi-use path miles ÷ total road miles. 
▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: People Who Take Public Transit to Work 


▪ Calculation: Percentage of people who take public transportation to work. 
▪ Source: US Census American Community Survey 5-yr estimates 
▪ Base Year: 2014-2018 


 
➢ Indicator: People Who Carpool to Work 


▪ Calculation: Percentage of people who carpool to work. 
▪ Source: US Census American Community Survey 5-yr estimates 
▪ Base Year: 2014-2018 


 


❖ Municipal Transportation Fleet  
➢ Indicator: Alternative Vehicles in Municipal Fleet 


▪ Calculation: Number of hybrid and electric vehicles used in municipal operations. 
▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Gasoline Use in Municipal Fleet 


▪ Calculation: Gallons of gasoline used per year in municipal vehicles. 
▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


4 | Appendix E
 


➢ Indicator: Diesel Use in Municipal Fleet 
▪ Calculation: Gallons of diesel used per year in municipal vehicles. 
▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Alternative Fuel Use in Municipal Fleet 


▪ Calculation: Gallons of alternative fuels (CNG, biodiesel, propane) used per year in 
municipal vehicles. 


▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 


Solid Waste Indicators 


Solid Waste indicators provide a measurement of the efficiency with which the Village of McFarland 
residents utilize the materials in the environment.  This includes measuring the amount of material 
disposed and the amount of which is recycled.    


 


❖ Waste Produced 
➢ Indicator: Total Solid Waste Generated 


▪ Calculation: Tons per year of waste, including recycling, collected by Village contracted 
waste hauler. 


▪ Source: Village contracted waste hauler records 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 


❖ Waste Recycled 
➢ Indicator: Percentage of Waste that is Recycled 


▪ Calculation: Tons per year of waste recycled by Village contracted waste hauler ÷ tons per 
year of waste, including recycling, collected by Village contracted waste hauler. 


▪ Source: Village contracted waste hauler records 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 


Water Indicators 


Water indicators measure the amount of use and the efficiency of the delivery and collection system.  
 


❖ Water Use and Loss 
➢ Indicator: Groundwater Pumped for Municipal Use 


▪ Calculation: Metered gallons at groundwater extraction point going to municipal 
properties. 


▪ Source: Village Water Utility records 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Groundwater Pumped for Municipal Facilities per Square Foot 


▪ Calculation: Metered gallons of groundwater delivered to each building ÷ square footage 
per building for the Public Works building, Library, Youth Center and Municipal Center. 


▪ Source: Village Water Utility records 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


5 | Appendix E
 


➢ Indicator: Gallons of Groundwater Lost 
▪ Calculation:  
▪ Source: Village Water Utility records 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Groundwater Pumped for Residential Use per Capita 


▪ Calculation: Metered gallons at groundwater extraction point going to residential 
customers ÷ population. 


▪ Source: Village Water Utility records 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Groundwater Pumped for Commercial/Industrial Use 


▪ Calculation: Metered gallons at groundwater extraction point going to commercial and 
industrial customers ÷ number of commercial and industrial customers. 


▪ Source: Village Water Utility records 
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Wastewater Discharged per Capita 


▪ Calculation: Gallons of wastewater discharged ÷ population 
▪ Source: Village Water Utility records  
▪ Base Years: 2015-2019 


 


Land Use & Development Indicators 


Land Use indicators measure the efficiency of land use and the amount of green space and recreational 
uses.  


 


❖ Development 
➢ Indicator: Overall Population Density 


▪ Calculation: Population ÷ total land area in square miles. 
▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Population Density in Residential Districts 


▪ Calculation: Population ÷ total land area in square miles in the urban service area zoned 
residential (including PUD, excluding RH-1 and RH-4). 


▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Percentage of Housing that is Multi-Unit 


▪ Calculation: Number of multi-unit family homes  ÷ (Number of single-family homes + 
Number of multi-family homes) 


▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Mixed-Use Developments 


▪ Calculation: Acres of land developed as mixed-use ÷ total acres of land within the urban 
service area. 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


6 | Appendix E
 


▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Walkability Index 


▪ Calculation: Calculated by US Environmental Protection Agency based on Census Data 
Block Groups. 


▪ Source: US EPA (Census Data) 
▪ Base Year: 2010 


 


❖ Greenspace 
➢ Indicator: Community Garden Area per 1,000 Residents 


▪ Calculation: Total area of community gardens in square feet ÷ (total population ÷ 1,000). 
▪ Source: Village data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Active Parkland per 1,000 Residents 


▪ Calculation: Acres of active parkland ÷ (total population ÷ 1,000). 
▪ Source: Village GIS data 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 


Community Health Indicators 


Community Health indicators provide a measure of the social and economic conditions of the 
community.    


 


❖ Socioeconomic 
➢ Indicator: Rates of Homeownership 


▪ Calculation: Data point from US Census. 
▪ Source: US Census American Community Survey 5-yr estimates 
▪ Base Years: 2014-2018 


 
➢ Indicator: Percent of Residents Living in Poverty 


▪ Calculation: Data point from US Census. 
▪ Source: US Census American Community Survey 5-yr estimates 
▪ Base Years: 2014-2018 


 
➢ Indicator: Village Median Household Income 


▪ Calculation: Data point from US Census. 
▪ Source: US Census American Community Survey 5-yr estimates 
▪ Base Years: 2014-2018 


 
➢ Indicator: Percent of Households with an Internet Subscription 


▪ Calculation: Data point from US Census. 
▪ Source: US Census American Community Survey 5-yr estimates 
▪ Base Years: 2014-2018 


 
 
 







Sustainability Plan, Village of McFarland, WI 


 


7 | Appendix E
 


❖ Youth 
➢ Indicator: Percentage of Students that Qualify for Free and Reduced Lunch  


▪ Calculation: Number of students that qualify for free and reduced lunch  ÷ total number of 
students 


▪ Source: McFarland Youth Center 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 
➢ Indicator: Percent of Middle School Students Participating in McFarland Youth Center Programs 


▪ Calculation: Number of middle school students participating in MYC programs ÷ total 
number of middle-school students  


▪ Source: McFarland Youth Center 
▪ Base Year: 2019 


 


❖ Equity 
➢ Indicator: Percentage Businesses Owned by Women  


▪ Calculation: Data point from US Census. 
▪ Source: US Census Quick Facts 
▪ Base Years: 2014-2018 


 
➢ Indicator: Percent of Businesses Owned by Minorities 


▪ Calculation: Data point from US Census. 
▪ Source: US Census Quick Facts 
▪ Base Years: 2014-2018 


 


❖ Livability 
➢ Indicator: Livability Index  


▪ Calculation: From AARP – “Livability Index assesses seven broad categories of community 
livability: housing, neighborhood, transportation, environment, health, engagement, and 
opportunity. Metric values and policy points within each category are combined to create 
the category score. Those category scores are then averaged to create a location’s total 
livability score.” 


▪ Source: AARP Livable Communities 
▪ Base Year: 2018 


  







 


 


 








Madison Environmental Group, LLC www.madisonenvironmental.com 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Ad


CITY OF MONONA 


SUSTAINABILITY PLAN 


August 3, 2015 


 







Madison Environmental Group, LLC www.madisonenvironmental.com 


Dear Monona Residents, 


Whenever a community works to develop a plan that is intended to meet objectives a decade from 
now, collaboration is paramount if the plan is to have any chance for success.  This City of Monona 
Sustainability Plan (MSP) has been created in the truest sense of collaboration.  The MSP is based 
upon input from residents, city committees, city staff, nonprofit organizations and businesses; 
bringing together all aspects of city operations affecting everyone in the community.  Several 
opportunities for community engagement brought forth countless sustainability strategies that are 
incorporated in this plan.   


The input from all of these community stakeholders came together in an idea-bank of strategies 
supporting Monona’s overall vision of sustainability:  “…practicing sustainability means working to 
meet the needs of today’s residents and visitors without compromising the needs of future residents 
and visitors…”  Derived from the 1987 Report to the World Commission on Environmental 
Development, this vision is preceded in spirit centuries earlier by our original Monona residents, the 
peoples of the HoChunk Nation.  The HoChunk concept of Seven Generations puts forth that actions 
we do today will impact our children and grandchildren tomorrow and into the future, through the 
seventh generation.  Both of these principles are what will insure and protect our community’s 
environmental welfare for years to come. 


The MSP is the culmination of years of work and the implementation of many sustainability efforts 
brought forth by the city, including the formation of the Sustainability Committee; adoption of the 
original sustainability resolution in 2012, committing the city to reduce its energy dependence from 
traditional fossil fuels to renewable sources by 25% by the year 2025.  The city went a long way in 
achieving that goal when in 2013 Monona installed the largest municipal solar array in the state of 
Wisconsin on the roof tops of several city buildings. 


This MSP goes forward into the future with six major areas of focus.  They are:   
    


 General Sustainability  Energy 
 Land Use  Transportation 
 Water  Solid Waste 
 


Each focus area begins with a vision statement and a brief overview as to why this area is important.  
It is then followed by a list of specific measurable objectives that are divided into two groups.   
Municipality objectives relate primarily to the city’s public lands, buildings and operations, while 
Community objectives more directly affect and involve private residents and businesses.  Throughout 
you will see noticeable overlap in the city’s and community’s objectives. 


The vision and objectives are followed by an implementation and evaluation section that covers each 
of the six focus areas.  There, you will find projects already implemented and how they can be built 
upon in the future. An explanation as to how each project will be evaluated and how it helps to reach 
the community’s 2025 goals are also provided. 


Each year an annual implementation plan will be developed, detailing the actions that will be taken in 
the coming year.  As a way to measure success, an annual progress report will also be completed at 
the end of each outlining where we are in the process. 


Together, the principles and strategies outlined in this document will continue the values and 
aspirations of Monona and ensure the sustainability of our community not only in the short term but, 
for seven generations to come.  I look forward to the challenge. 


Bob Miller 


Mayor 







Madison Environmental Group, LLC www.madisonenvironmental.com 


Executive Summary 


The City of Monona’s Sustainability Plan (MSP), was developed by the Monona Sustainability 
Committee in collaboration with other city committees, city employees and community residents 
and businesses. The MSP, adopted by the Monona City Council in July 2015, is a strategic 
document that establishes sustainability visions and objectives for the City of Monona. In 
addition, measurable targets have been set for 2025 and strategies have been proposed for 
meeting each objective. 


Implementation 
During the development of the MSP, several opportunities for community engagement were 
arranged. All ideas brought forward for strategies (actions) were noted and documented. This 
idea-bank of strategies will be continuously updated to bring in new ideas and to reflect current 
possibilities and challenges within the community. The final decisions regarding which strategies 
to implement will be considered within the city’s regular decision-making processes. Each year 
an annual implementation plan will be developed, detailing the actions that will be taken in the 
coming year. To follow up on the work being done and review how the objectives are being met, 
an annual progress report will be presented after the completion of each year. Both formal and 
informal opportunities for further stakeholder input will be made available and encouraged. 


Sustainability Principles and Guidelines 
Monona’s overall vision of sustainability is adapted from the sustainability principle identified in 
Brundtland’s 1987 Report of the World Commission on Environmental Development. This 
general principle states:  


“…practicing sustainability means working to meet the needs of today’s residents and visitors 
without compromising the needs of future residents and visitors…” 


Along with this sustainability principle, the following four sustainability guidelines provide the 
foundation for the sustainability targets established in the MSP: 


 Reduce dependence on fossil fuels and extracted underground metals and minerals. 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufactured substances that can accumulate 


in nature. 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life-sustaining ecosystems. 
 Reduce barriers to achieving present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. 


 
Plan Overview 
The MSP covers six focus areas: 


 General Sustainability   Energy 
 Land Use  Transportation 
 Water  Solid Waste 


 
Each of the six focus areas contains two types of sustainability objectives, municipality and 
community. Municipality objectives pertain primarily to the city's public lands, buildings, and 
operations, while community objectives more directly affect and involve private residents and 
businesses.  


The MSP is also divided into two major sections. The first, Vision and Objectives briefly 
outlines sustainability goals for each focus area, and the second, Implementation and 
Evaluation, details how each objective will be carried out, baseline data and targets for each. 







Madison Environmental Group, LLC www.madisonenvironmental.com 


ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 


This plan was prepared by Madison Environmental Group, LLC, in conjunction with the Monona 
Sustainability Committee. 


City of Monona Sustainability Committee Members: 


Mary O'Connor, Chair 
Brian Holmquist, Co-Char 
Bill Bland, Member 
Leslie Busse, Member 
Janine Glaeser, Member 
Pat Howell, Member 
Brooke Logan, Member 
Brandon Long, Member 
Sterling Kulke, Former Member 
Peter McKeever, Member 
Nicole North Hester, Former Member 
Teresa Radermacher, Member 
Susan Vogt, Member 
Suzanne Wade, Member 


 
Thank you to the following groups and individuals for their support: 


 The resident, businesses, and community organizations of Monona that have been committed to 
sustainability efforts and have already begun to implement many of the strategies mentioned in this 
plan   


 Citizens that participated in the numerous public outreach and survey efforts 


 Mari Westin and the Madison Environmental Group 


 Heather Gates and the Natural Step Monona 


 Madison Gas and Electric 


 
City Staff & the City’s Green Team 
Pat Marsh, City Administrator 
Jacob Anderson, Parks Director, Green Team  
Sally Buffat, Library, Green Team  
Frank Fenton (Retired), Police Department, 
former Green Team member 
Shannon Haydin, Public Works Project 
Manager, Green Team Coordinator 


 
Marc Houtakker, Finance Director 
Jeff Johnson, Street Superintendent, Green Team 
Leah Kimmel, Director of Administrative 
Services 
Diane Mikelbank, Senior Center, Green Team 
Sonja Reichertz, City Planner, Green Team  
Dan Stephany, Public Works Director 
Curt Wiegel, Police Department, Green Team 


 
City Council 
Mayor Bob Miller 
Alderman Jim Busse 
Alderman Mary O’Connor 
Alderman Brian Holmquist 
Alderman Chad Spaight 
Alderman Kathy Thomas 
Alderman Doug Wood 







Madison Environmental Group, LLC www.madisonenvironmental.com 


 
City of Monona Sustainability Plan 


2015 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Introduction………………………………………………………………………………………1 


 History of Sustainability in Monona …………….………………………………………..1 


 Development of Sustainability Plan – Public Process…………………………………….2 


 Plan Overview and Future Yearly Process ..……..………………………………………..3 


 Sustainability Principles and Guidelines …………………………………………………3 


 Climate Change……………………………………………………………………………4 


Visions and Objectives ...................................................................................................................7 


 General Sustainability ..........................................................................................................7 


 Land Use ..............................................................................................................................8 


 Water ....................................................................................................................................9 


 Energy ................................................................................................................................10 


 Transportation .................................................................................................................... 11 


 Solid Waste ........................................................................................................................12 


Implementation and Evaluation……………………………………………………………….13 


 General Sustainability……………………………………………………………………14 


 Land Use…………………………………………………………………………………20 


 Water……………………………………………………………………………………..25 


 Energy……………………………………………………………………………………31 


 Transportation…………………………………………………………………………....33 


 Solid Waste…………………………………………………………………………........37 


 


Appendix A  Glossary and Definitions  


Appendix B  Reference Metrics 


Appendix C  Monona Sustainability Resolution (12-03-1843) 


Appendix D  Fossil Fuels Resolution (14-7-1978) 


Appendix E  Collection of Strategies Proposed by Monona Residents 


Appendix F  Example of Annual Implementation Plan 


 







1 


 


MONONA’S COMMITMENT TO SUSTAINABILITY 


The City of Monona is committed to being a resilient and sustainable community with a quality 
of life and strength of economy that meet the needs of all who live, work and play within its 
boundaries. As part of this commitment the city has undertaken numerous sustainability 
initiatives, including the formation of a sustainability committee and adoption of a Monona 
Sustainability Resolution. 


With the adoption of the Sustainability Resolution in March 
2012 sustainability principles were established as the norm for 
city planning, policies and procedures. The Monona 
Sustainability Plan (MSP) has been developed based on the 
principles in the resolution. The MSP contains guiding visions 
and measurable objectives with targets set for 2025. In addition, 
strategies for meeting the targets of these objectives have been 
identified.  


The MSP is based on input from city committees, city staff, 
residents, nonprofit organizations and businesses. It 
encompasses all aspects of city operations and will involve and affect everyone in the 
community. Different strategies will be the responsibility of various stakeholders, or groups of 
stakeholders, with progress monitored by the sustainability committee.  


The city's conception of sustainability embraces the needs, concerns, and well-being of all 
community members, and also relies on community members to share ownership and 
responsibility to work towards the same goals. Sustainability goals cannot be reached by the 
sustainability committee alone but will be embedded in the work of all committees and 
departments. 


HISTORY OF SUSTAINABILITY IN MONONA 


Sustainability work in Monona has significantly increased since the formation of the ad hoc 
sustainability committee in 2007. In addition to laying a foundation for the committee's own 
goals, role, organizational structure and procedures, the committee reached out to both city staff 
and the Monona community with various educational opportunities regarding sustainability. It 
arranged a one-day training for several city staff in The Natural Step, an internationally regarded, 
scientifically based and practical framework that enables organizations of any size to apply 
sustainable practices as well as measure the impact of their actions. It also began a tradition of 
public outreach and education at Monona's annual Memorial Day parade and organized three 
Green Monona Tours to showcase state-of-the-art sustainable practices being used by local 
residents and business owners.  


In 2010, the ad hoc sustainability committee became a permanent standing committee. That same 
year, the City of Monona pledged to become one of the State of Wisconsin's Energy Independent 
Communities, which required the development of a 25x25 plan. The goal of the plan was to shift 
25 percent of the electricity and 25 percent of the transportation fuels used in city operations to 
renewable resources by 2025. Block grant funding helped the city initiate many energy-saving 


INTRODUCTION 


“We do not inherit the 


earth from our 


ancestors; we borrow it 


from our children.”  


-Native American Proverb 







2 


 


improvements to its buildings. Two electric vehicle charging stations were installed and two 
electric vehicles were added to the city's fleet. And in 2013, the largest municipal solar array in 
Wisconsin was installed on the roof tops of Monona's city buildings. 


Community-targeted actions of the sustainability committee have included welcoming Focus on 
Energy's citywide offer to provide and install free energy and water saving devices in the homes 
of willing residents. The committee also authorized the design of a Green Monona Map to 
recognize individuals and businesses that are taking initiatives to become more sustainable.  


Water became a strong focus in 2012 and the committee supported various nonprofit-initiated 
sustainability efforts. A yearlong Monona Water Conservation Challenge was organized to 
encourage households to voluntarily reduce water use. A Lake Monona Water Walk helped 
residents honor and learn more about Monona's waterways. And a Stormwater Paddle event 
promoted greater appreciation, understanding, and stewardship of Monona's most valued, yet 
fragile, resource. 


In March 2012, the city council took a further step toward integrating sustainability into future 
actions by adopting the Monona Sustainability Resolution (Resolution 12-03-1843, see Appendix 
A). The resolution quickly attracted the attention of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR), which invited Monona to become one of ten Green Tier Legacy Communities. 
The Wisconsin DNR facilitates quarterly meetings which enable participating Green Tier 
municipalities to support each other’s sustainability work, and it also provides access to DNR 
expertise and technical assistance. 


 


 







3 


 


DEVELOPMENT OF THE SUSTAINABILITY 


PLAN - PUBLIC PROCESS 


In July 2013, the sustainability committee 
began work on the Monona Sustainability Plan 
(MSP), with the intent of both defining 
Monona's overall vision of sustainability, as 
well as outlining specific objectives and 
strategies to guide progress toward that vision 
over the next ten years. The city also hired the 
services of Madison Environmental Group, 
LLC whose consultants continue to work 
collaboratively with the city, community and 
other stakeholders to develop the MSP. 


Community engagement in the creation of a 
sustainability plan helps make the process 
acceptable to all stakeholders and improves 
the quality of the outcome. Engagement has 
been encouraged in various ways. In 
September 2013 all representatives of city 
committees, boards and commissions were 
invited to attend a forum to discuss and 
prioritize the objectives and strategies set forth 
in the MSP. In October that same year, 
community members were invited to a public 
meeting to learn about the MSP and give their 
input. Community members were also invited 
to give their feedback to a draft of the first 
phase of the MSP in an online survey 
conducted prior to the plan's presentation to 
the city council. And in November 2014 a 
public meeting was arranged together with the 
City of Monona Plan Commission. At this 
meeting both the MSP and the City of Monona 
Comprehensive Plan were presented and there 
were opportunities for the public to speak with 
committee members and to give written input. 
As the MSP is implemented, further 
opportunities for stakeholder engagement are 
anticipated and feedback from the community 
will always be welcomed by the sustainability 
committee. 







4 


 


SPRING: 
Annual 


Progress Report 
for 2015 


SUMMER: 
Public Input on 
the Results of 


2015 and Ideas 
for 2017


FALL:
Budget Process 
and Planning of 
Strategies for 


2017


WINTER: 
Annual 


Implementation 
Plan for 2017


MONONA SUSTAINABILITY PLAN OVERVIEW AND FUTURE ANNUAL 


IMPLEMENTATION AND EVALUATION PROCESS 


Plan Overview 
The MSP contains six major focus areas. The first addresses general sustainability and is 
followed by five focus areas that correspond to those identified in the Green Tier Legacy 
Communities Charter. The six major focus areas are: 
 


 General Sustainability   Energy 
 Land Use  Transportation 
 Water  Solid Waste 


 
In the first section, Vision and Objectives, each focus area is presented, beginning with a vision 
statement and a short rationale as to why this area is important, followed by a list of specific 
measurable objectives that have been divided into two groups. Municipality objectives pertain 
primarily to the city's public lands, buildings, and operations. Community objectives more 
directly affect and involve private residents and businesses. Both sets of objectives cover 
overlapping interests, however, and are best met through the thoughtful collaboration of all 
interested stakeholders.  


The second section, Implementation and Evaluation, is divided into six sub-sections, each 
covering one of the six focus areas. Each sub-section begins with a list of projects that have 
already been implemented in Monona and upon which future work can be built. It continues to 
explain how each objective will be evaluated and presents baseline data for 2012 and targets to 
be met in 2025. For each objective a few potential strategies are given, to show examples of the 
types of actions that could be implemented to reach the target.  


Annual Process 
During the development of the MSP all ideas 
brought forward for strategies (actions) were 
noted and documented (see Appendix E). In the 
future, this list will be a separate document 
which will be continuously updated to bring in 
new ideas and to reflect current possibilities 
and challenges in the community. Each year an 
annual implementation plan will be developed, 
detailing the actions that will be taken in the 
coming year. (see Appendix F for an example) 
To follow up on the work being done and 
review how the objectives are being met, an 
annual progress report will be presented after 
the completion of each year. Both formal and 
informal opportunities for further stakeholder 
input will be made available and encouraged. 
For further details see section Implementation 
and Evaluation.  


Year 2016 
Continuous 


work on 
Strategies 


Example of the Annual Implementation 
and Evaluation Process for Year 2016 


 







5 


 


Wisconsin Initiative on Climate Change Impacts 
Projected Change in the Frequency of 90°F 


Days per Year from 1980 to 2055 


SUSTAINABILITY PRINCIPLES AND GUIDELINES  


With the adoption of the Monona Sustainability Resolution (see Appendix C) by the City of 
Monona City Council in March 2012, the city embraced one commonly held general principle of 
sustainability identified in Brundtland's 1987 Report of the World Commission on Environmental 
Development: Our Common Future. This sustainability principle, adapted to fit Monona's 
municipal context, is also applicable to the MSP and states: 


“…practicing sustainability means working to meet the needs of today’s residents and 
visitors without compromising the needs of future residents and visitors…” 


The MSP recognizes that all municipal decisions are made within the context of the nesting of 
economic systems within social systems within the environmental system. Finding solutions that 
respect both current and future community members' needs and that are resilient to changing 
circumstances presents both challenges and opportunities. These can be best met when all 
systems involved are carefully considered, and when decision-making is informed, collaborative, 
flexible and creative. 


To assist decisions, the following four sustainability guidelines are also being embraced in the 
MSP as the basis for the development and implementation of the city's plans, policies and 
procedures: 


 Reduce dependence on fossil fuels and extracted underground metals and minerals. 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufactured substances that can accumulate 


in nature. 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life-sustaining ecosystems. 
 Reduce barriers to achieving present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. 


Together, the above principle and guidelines express the primary values that underpin the MSP. 


CLIMATE CHANGE 


To ensure a resilient and livable 
environment for future generations, 
Monona is committed to adhering 
to the four sustainability guidelines 
discussed above. The City of 
Monona Common Council has 
acknowledged that the climate 
crisis poses a serious threat to 
Monona residents, both current and 
future, and individuals around 
Wisconsin and the world. Further, 
the city council has acknowledged 
that climate change is real and 
caused mainly by human action, 
primarily through the burning of 
fossil fuels. (See Appendix D Fossil 
Fuels Resolution (14-7-1978)) 


Reducing the dependence on fossil 
fuels and reducing greenhouse gas 







6 


 


emissions serves as a primary basis behind the creation of the Monona Sustainability Plan. Many 
impacts are associated with climate change, and the MSP serves as the first step in reducing 
Monona’s contribution to a warming planet. 


Climate change is harming the quality of life here in Wisconsin, primarily due to the impacts 
associated with more extreme weather, increased spring and fall precipitation, increased lake 
evaporation and higher humidity, and increases in the number of warmer days and warmer 
nights. The number of days and nights above 90°F has already proved to be harmful to plants and 
wildlife, as well as to human health, throughout the state. For instance, ticks and mosquitoes 
carrying diseases are on the rise, and due to warmer nights, there is less time for residents and 
livestock to recover from an extremely hot day.   


Over 80% of Wisconsin’s energy supply comes from fossil fuel sources, such as coal, and 
emissions from these types of fuels serve as the primary cause behind climate change. Thus, if 
Monona and the rest of Wisconsin are to mitigate the impacts of climate change, emissions 
associated with fossil fuel-driven activities need to decrease. However there are other sources of 
climate change besides the burning of fossil fuels and nearly all activities within the community 
have an effect, and consequently need to be addressed. By working towards the objectives 
outlined in each of the six focus areas in this MSP, businesses, institutions, and individuals will 
be able to collectively reduce their negative impact on climate change.  


 


 
 
 
 


General Sustainability 


By raising the sustainability awareness of Monona residents and businesses, individuals will be 
influenced to make more informed, conscious and strategic decisions leading to a more 
environmentally sustainable future. This will in turn lead to lowered negative impact on climate 
change in many, various ways.  


 
 







7 


 


Land Use 
High density and mixed-use development will lead to reduced distances between housing, 
workplaces and retail businesses. This will offer Monona residents better opportunities for 
walking or biking to their desired destination, resulting in reductions in vehicular greenhouse gas 
emissions. Further, open green spaces have a positive impact on climate change. 


Water 
Climate change has drastic effects on rain and snowfall patterns. The increase in extreme rainfall 
events, alternating with drought, will result in catastrophic flooding followed by low water 
levels. It will be essential to decrease the quantity of stormwater runoff to protect our lake. Both 
the city and its citizens can help accomplish this by taking steps to conserve water on the land. 
Demand for water is expected to increase while climate change will likely decrease the supply. 
Therefore it will also be important to increase water efficiency and conservation by Monona 
residents and businesses. Finally, pumping and moving water to households and businesses 
consumes large amounts of energy, thus decreasing water use will also decrease our use of fossil 
fuels  


Energy 
Increasing energy efficiency and 
conservation by Monona residents, 
businesses and in the municipality’s 
own operations will allow Monona to 
reduce its overall energy use and thus 
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases. 
The adoption of renewable energy 
sources for the city’s own energy 
consumption will assist Monona in 
becoming more energy self-sufficient, 
reducing future demands for non-
renewable, outside energy sources.  


Transportation  
Greenhouse gas emissions from the 
U.S. transportation sector make up 23% of total U.S. emissions, and thus have a large 
contribution to climate change. By increasing the number of Monona residents using alternative 
transportation, Monona will be able to reduce its overall carbon footprint and have less of an 
impact on the surrounding atmosphere.  


Solid Waste 
Energy consumption is associated with essentially all management of material resources as they 
flow through the economy, from the extraction or harvest of materials and food (e.g. mining, 
forestry, and agriculture), to the production and transport of goods, the use and reuse of 
materials, and their final disposal.  


By reducing the amount of materials used, either by simply using less or by reusing a product 
instead of throwing it away, energy is saved by extracting, producing and transporting less. The 
same is true for recycling instead of using pristine raw materials. In addition, greenhouse gases 
are emitted directly from landfills as waste decomposes. By decreasing the total amount of solid 
waste generated and by increasing the total amount of materials being reused or recycled, 
Monona will reduce its emission of greenhouse gases.  







8 


 


 


 


 


GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY 


To support and sustain a community, the environment, society and economy must all be stable 
and healthy. The decisions made today in the City of Monona have far-reaching and long-lasting 
consequences and should be made with great consideration of their impacts on our natural 
systems, the economy, and the people living now and in generations to come. Adopting 
sustainability as a principle of decision-making for Monona will serve as both a framework for 
city decision-making and a model for the citizens of Monona. It will encourage a strong local 
economy while protecting the natural systems in which residents live, work and play. Moving 
toward a more sustainable future is also critical for attracting new residents and businesses. 


Below is a summary of the objectives pertaining to general sustainability. A more detailed 
description with relevant evaluation methods, targets and baselines is included in the following 
Implementation and Evaluation section along with examples of potential strategies to achieve 
each objective. 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Raise the sustainability awareness of Monona residents. 
 Increase the percentage of residents who have implemented sustainable practices, such as 


those listed in other focus areas within this plan. 
 Raise the sustainability awareness of Monona businesses. 
 Increase the number of businesses that have implemented sustainable practices, such as 


those listed in other focus areas within this plan. 


 MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 Ensure sustainability is considered in decision-making processes, including the city 
budget process. 


 Raise the sustainability awareness of citizen representatives to city committees. 
 Raise the sustainability awareness of city employees. 


  


Vision 
The community of Monona, including its government, 
residents, and businesses, strives to meet the needs of 
the present without compromising the resources 
available for future generations. Monona shares a 
culture that embraces, is vested in and uses best 
practices for sustainable living. 


VISION & OBJECTIVES 







9 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Monona is a land-locked community that has been extensively developed throughout the years, 
leading to a strong neighborhood fabric and few available greenfield sites. Land use in the City 
of Monona encompasses both developed and natural environments. How the land is used has a 
direct impact on residents’ health, the water and other natural resources. For example, high 
density and mixed-use development leads to less transportation demand and thereby lowered 
consumption of fossil fuels and decreased air-pollution. Another example is the use of synthetic 
chemicals for landscaping, which has a negative impact on natural habitats, human health and the 
condition of our lakes.  


Below is a summary of the objectives pertaining to land use. A more detailed description with 
relevant evaluation methods, targets and baselines is included in the following Implementation 
and Evaluation section, along with examples of potential strategies to achieve each objective. 


 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Integrate sustainability considerations in the evaluations and decisions made by the City 
of Monona Plan Commission. 


 Integrate sustainability components in zoning code.  
 Integrate sustainability components in the City of Monona Comprehensive Plan.  
 Increase walkability to stores, restaurants and other amenities.  
 Maintain percentage of land devoted to open space/parks/recreation. 


 


  MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 Maintain protection and restoration of natural habitats including wetlands. 
 Integrate sustainability in landscape management. 
 Improve stormwater reduction/management. 


  


Vision 
The city encourages redevelopment and high‐density 
development as a means to provide access to housing, 
economic development opportunities, recreation, social 
interaction and other basic needs while protecting the natural 
environment, health, safety and overall quality of life. The city 
is committed to keeping large areas of land open for 
conservation and recreational uses. 







10 


 


 
 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


Clean water is an essential human need. Monona is fortunate to be surrounded by plentiful 
sources of surface water and groundwater. The state of our lakes and waterways is influenced by 
the runoff from our developed environment. Large quantities of chemicals are used to pre-treat 
the water to drinking quality. This process also consumes a high amount of energy. About 25% of 
the municipality’s energy consumption goes to the city water utility, to bring clean water from 
the well to consumers. 


Below is a summary of objectives pertaining to water usage. A more detailed description with 
relevant evaluation methods, targets and baselines is included in the following Implementation 
and Evaluation section, along with examples of potential strategies to achieve each objective. 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Increase water efficiency and conservation by residents. 
 Increase water efficiency and conservation by commercial and industrial properties. 
 Decrease quantity of stormwater runoff to lakes. 
 Decrease pollutants and debris in stormwater runoff. 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 Decrease groundwater consumption. 
 Maintain percentage of groundwater lost in distribution system. 
 Decrease quantity of stormwater runoff to lakes. 
 Decrease pollutants and debris in stormwater runoff. 
 Continue participation in the Wisconsin Water Star Program and improve Monona’s score 


and ranking. 


  


Vision 
Monona citizens, employees and elected officials recognize that 
the abundant groundwater and important surface water 
resources of our area must be protected. Everyone in the 
community strives to use as little water as possible in their daily 
activities both indoors and out‐of‐doors. Clean rainwater and 
snowmelt is captured on the land and allowed to infiltrate. 
Water that does run off to storm sewers and then to the lake, 
or that flows directly to waterways is as clean as technology 
and management practices allow. 







11 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


The impacts of our energy production and consumption have long been a major concern for 
environments worldwide. Unsustainable management of energy production results in climate 
change, air pollution and ecosystem destruction. Using less energy not only reduces the impact 
on the environment but also saves money. 


Below is a summary of objectives pertaining to energy usage. A more detailed description with 
relevant evaluation methods, targets and baselines is included in the following Implementation 
and Evaluation section, along with examples of potential strategies to achieve each objective. 


 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Increase energy efficiency and conservation by residents. 
o Decrease residential electricity consumption.  
o Decrease residential natural gas consumption.  


 
 Increase energy efficiency and conservation by commercial and industrial properties. 


o Decrease commercial electricity consumption.  
o Decrease commercial natural gas consumption. 


 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 Increase energy efficiency and conservation of municipal facilities and services.  
o Decrease building electricity consumption.  
o Decrease building natural gas consumption.  
o Decrease street lighting electricity consumption.  
o Decrease water & other utility electricity consumption.  


 Increase percentage of energy consumption from renewable sources. 
 Decrease fuel consumption from work related (city business) transportation and motor 


driven equipment.   


Vision 
The city encourages and assists public and private energy users 
to reduce overall energy use and bring Monona closer to 
producing all of its own energy. Monona is a pioneer in 
adopting renewable energy sources to power municipal 
buildings, which is meant to set an example for the community. 







12 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Greenhouse gas emissions from the transportation sector make up about 23% of total emissions 
in the United States. Choosing alternative and sustainable transportation options such as biking 
and taking public transportation reduces the individual carbon footprint. Moreover, a well-
managed transportation system in a city can strengthen community bonds while improving air 
quality.  


Below is a summary of objectives pertaining to transportation. A more detailed description with 
relevant evaluation methods, targets and baselines is included in the following Implementation 
and Evaluation section along with examples of potential strategies to achieve each objective. 


 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Increase percentage of residents using alternative transportation to destinations within 
Monona.  


 Increase percentage of students (K-12) using alternative transportation. 
 Increase percentage of residents using alternative transportation for commuting. 


 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 Increase percentage of city employees using alternative transportation for commuting. 
 Decrease greenhouse gas emissions from work related (city business) transportation. 


 
  


Vision 
Monona provides and maintains a multi‐modal transportation 
system for users of all ages, abilities, and income levels in 
addition to being connected to a regional transportation 
network. Community members make sustainable 
transportation choices to and from housing, employment, 
recreational, social and daily‐necessity centers. 







13 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


With increasing economic development and consumption, the waste produced within cities has 
historically been increasing. Improper waste management can lead to the spread of diseases and 
other health problems from substances leaking into the environment. Unsustainable management 
of waste is a source of pollution in water, air and land. A local problem for Monona is that the 
Dane County Landfill is nearly full. Constructing an expansion to the existing landfill will be 
both difficult and costly. 


Below is a summary of objectives pertaining to solid waste. A more detailed description with 
relevant evaluation methods, targets and baselines is included in the following Implementation 
and Evaluation section along with examples of potential strategies to achieve each objective. 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Decrease total solid waste collected.  
 Increase percentage of solid waste being recycled or otherwise diverted from landfills. 
 Increase percentage of materials from construction and deconstruction diverted from 


landfills. 
 Increase safe disposal of waste products not included in curb pick-up, such as medical, 


hazardous and electrical waste. 


 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 Decrease total solid waste collected. 
 Increase percentage of solid waste being recycled or otherwise diverted from landfills. 
 Increase percentage of materials from construction and deconstruction diverted from 


landfills. 


  


Vision 
Community members of Monona have access to infrastructure 
that allows effective and efficient reduction, reuse, composting 
and recycling of waste. The community is a leader in conserving 
resources and protecting the environment through using 
materials responsibly, recycling and properly managing waste. 







14 


 


 


SECTION OVERVIEW 


In this section, a short introduction is given for each focus area, listing projects that have already 
been implemented in Monona, and upon which future work can be built. Following that, for each 
focus area all objectives are listed and divided into two categories, municipality and community. 
Municipality objectives pertain primarily to the city's public lands, buildings, and operations. 
Community objectives more directly affect and involve private residents and businesses. Both 
sets of objectives cover overlapping interests, however, and are best met through the thoughtful 
collaboration of all interested stakeholders.  


For each objective a few potential strategies are given, to show the type of actions that could be 
implemented to reach the targets. (Note: strategies that will be implemented will be determined 
through the regular city decision process.) This is followed by a presentation of how each 
objective will be evaluated, as well as baseline data for 2012 and targets to be met in 2025. In 
cases where data for 2013 and/or 2014 was readily available, these have been included to provide 
further reference points. (Note, for some objectives a baseline year other than 2012 has been 
used due to availability of data. In those cases this has been pointed out.)  For some objectives, it 
was not possible to establish baselines during the time that the plan was developed.  Establishing 
these baselines and corresponding targets will be a priority during implementation of the plan. 


The targets for each objective have been established based on baseline data, internal knowledge, 
and current research. Information has been collected from governmental entities such as the EPA 
and DNR, and organizations such as the U.S. Green Building Council. Other cities’ sustainability 
plans have also been a source of information.  For each objective, the Monona Sustainability 
Committee has discussed the evaluation method and target setting during at least two different 
meetings for each focus area prior to formalizing a final decision.   


IMPLEMENTATION PROCESS 


During the development of the MSP, all ideas that have been brought forward and strategies have 
been noted and categorized based on the objective they work towards (see Appendix E). Ideas for 
strategies come from many sources including but not limited to: residents, businesses, city 
employees, other cities’ sustainability plans, the LEED (Leadership in Energy & Environmental 
Design) green building certification program, Green Tier Legacy Communities and Water Star 
Wisconsin. In the future, this part of the MSP will be a separate document, continuously updated 
to reflect new ideas, possibilities, and challenges in the community. As pointed out earlier, both 
formal and informal opportunities for further stakeholder input will be available and encouraged. 


Each year an annual implementation plan will be developed in conjunction with the city budget 
process. This plan will contain the strategies suggested for implementation in the upcoming year. 
The sustainability committee will coordinate this work, but most of the strategies will be the 
responsibility of other city committees and city staff. Each year, an annual progress report will be 
compiled to follow up on the work done by various stakeholders. In addition, the report will 
present updated statuses for each objective, to track the progress made towards meeting the 
targets. An analysis of the progress report will be the basis for the development of the following 


IMPLEMENTATION & 


EVALUATION







15 


 


year’s annual implementation plan. At this stage in the annual process, a targeted effort will be 
made to engage the public for input.  







16 


 


GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY 
This section introduces the evaluation indicators and metrics for each objective under the general 
sustainability focus area. For this focus area the objectives will mainly be evaluated indirectly 
through the strategies that will be initiated. Therefore, at this time no baseline or targets have 
been identified, but will have to be developed later in conjunction with the implementation of 
strategies. In addition, part of the evaluation of this focus area will be qualitative rather than 
quantitative using, for example, storytelling. For each objective a list of some potential strategies 
that can be taken to help achieve the objective are listed. The strategies that will be implemented 
will be determined through the regular city decision-making processes. For a collection of all 
strategies that have been put forward to date, see Appendix E. 


Below are examples of projects pertaining to general sustainability that have already been 
implemented, or that are currently being implemented, to make Monona a more sustainable city. 
These strategies are presented as a base upon which future work can be built. 


 In 2010, the City of 
Monona Sustainability 
Committee was formed. 


 The committee 
developed the Green 
Monona Map, which 
acknowledges 
businesses and residents 
in the community who 
are taking initiatives to 
become more 
sustainable. 


 The Monona Public Library has a sustainability section, where community members can 
find information about various sustainability topics.  


 The Natural Step Monona organizes Green Tuesdays and Thursdays to educate residents 
about sustainability. 


 Many members of the city staff have gone through sustainability training. 
 The Monona Sustainability Committee is given an annual budget. 
 The City of Monona Green Team is maintained with a clear vision and mission. 


 


 OBJECTIVE GC1: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, COMMUNITY 
RAISE THE SUSTAINABILITY AWARENESS OF MONONA RESIDENTS 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Improve sustainability information on the city website – include links to organizations 


and other websites with information about all sustainability concepts, including water 
conservation and pollution, energy conservation, solid waste management, sustainable 
transportation efforts and sustainable land use opportunities. 


Sustainability Section at the Monona Public Library 







17 


 


2. Partner with organizations and programs that educate about and promote environmental 
issues and sustainability practices to raise awareness about sustainability and increase the 
percentage of residents that have implemented sustainable practices. 


3. Make an education and marketing plan for how to spread information about general 
sustainability. The plan should include direction for spreading the word about all of the 
sustainability concepts, including water conservation and pollution, energy conservation 
awareness, solid waste reduction, land use impacts and sustainable transportation actions. 


4. Inform the community about what the city is doing through media such as the bi-yearly 
newsletter, city website, signage in park shelters and articles in the local newspaper. 


The evaluation of this objective will be based partly on evaluations of objectives for residents 
within the other five focus areas. To complement this, the outcome of each implemented strategy 
will be evaluated. For example, when the city’s sustainability website is updated, the number of 
visitors will be tracked. Another evaluation example would be to follow residents’ participation 
in sustainability programs and projects arranged by other organizations, such as Green Power 
Tomorrow. In addition, storytelling will be included as a qualitative evaluation in future reports. 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Summary of evaluation of other objectives for residents within the other five focus areas 
2. Number of visits to the city’s sustainability website, Facebook, Twitter 
3. Number of library check-outs from the sustainability section 
4. Frequency of wattmeter checkouts from the library 
5. Attendance at local sustainability workshops, seminars, etc. 
6. Evaluations of other initiated strategies  
7. Number of Green Power Tomorrow residential participants  
8. Storytelling 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
Wattmeter: An instrument for measuring the electric supply (in watts) of any given circuit; can 
be used to cut energy costs and learn which electrical appliances are worth keeping plugged in. 
Green Power Tomorrow: A program that allows Madison Gas and Electric customers to purchase 
renewable energy for their home or business. 


 OBJECTIVE GC2: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF RESIDENTS WHO HAVE IMPLEMENTED SUSTAINABLE 


PRACTICES, SUCH AS THOSE LISTED IN OTHER FOCUS AREAS WITHIN THIS PLAN 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
See objective GC1 above and strategies for objectives within the other five focus areas. 


This objective has a strong correlation to objective GC1 and many strategies will lead to results 
for both of them. Similarly to objective GC1, the evaluation of this objective will partly be based 
on evaluations of objectives for residents within the other five focus areas. To complement this, 
evaluations will be done of the outcome of implemented strategies. For example, when the city 
works together with other organizations to help with outreach, the number of participants will be 
tracked. One such collaboration, which has already been implemented but could be repeated, is 







18 


 


energy audits through Focus on Energy. In addition, storytelling will be included as a qualitative 
evaluation in future reports. 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Summary of evaluation of other objectives for residents within the other five focus areas 
2. Number of home energy audits through Focus on Energy or MGE 
3. Annual number of Focus on Energy financial incentives awarded to Monona residents*  
4. Evaluations of initiated strategies. 
5. Storytelling 
 
Additional information and explanations:  
*There were 294 Focus on Energy financial incentives awarded to Monona residents in 2013. 
Focus on Energy: offers energy efficiency rebates and programs to assist homeowners in 
reducing their energy use and costs. 
Home energy audit: allows individuals to assess their home’s energy use and evaluate which 
measures to take in order to improve efficiency. 


 


 OBJECTIVE GC3: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, COMMUNITY 
RAISE THE SUSTAINABILITY AWARENESS OF MONONA BUSINESSES 
 
Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 


1. Partner with organizations and programs that educate about environmental issues and 
sustainability practices. 


2. Initiate collaboration between the city and the local Chamber of Commerce on 
sustainability issues. 


 


For this objective, similar to objective GC1 and GC2, the evaluation will partly be based on 
evaluations of objectives for businesses within the other five focus areas. Also for this objective, 
evaluations will be done of the outcomes of implemented strategies including collaborations with 
other organizations. In addition, storytelling will be included as a qualitative evaluation in future 
reports. 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Summary of evaluation of other objectives for businesses within the other five focus areas 
2. Number of Green Power Tomorrow commercial participants 
3. Evaluations of initiated strategies.  
4. Storytelling 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
Green Power Tomorrow: A program allowing Madison Gas and Electric customers to purchase 
renewable energy for their home or business. 







19 


 


 OBJECTIVE GC4: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, COMMUNITY 
INCREASE THE NUMBER OF BUSINESSES THAT HAVE IMPLEMENTED SUSTAINABLE 


PRACTICES, SUCH AS THOSE LISTED IN OTHER FOCUS AREAS IN THIS PLAN 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
See objective GC3 above and strategies for objectives within the other five focus areas. 


This objective has a strong correlation to objective GC3 and many strategies will lead to results 
for both of them. Similarly to objective GC1, GC2 and GC3, the evaluation will partly be based 
on evaluations of objectives for businesses within the other five focus areas. Also for this 
objective, evaluations will be done of the outcome of implemented strategies including 
collaborations with other organizations. In addition, storytelling will be included as a qualitative 
evaluation in future reports. 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Summary of evaluation of other objectives for residents within the other five focus areas 
2. Number of businesses participating in Green Tier, Green Masters, MPower Champions, 


Travel Green Wisconsin, Main Street Green, Clean Clear Waters, Green Built Home, and 
other programs 


3. Number of energy audits through Focus on Energy or MGE 
4. Annual number of Focus on Energy financial incentives awarded to businesses (174 in 2013) 
5. Evaluations of initiated strategies.  
6. Story telling 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
*There were 174 Focus on Energy financial incentives awarded to Monona residents in 2013.  
Green Tier: A sustainable development program developed by the Wisconsin DNR; main goal is 
to asses environmental impacts within businesses, communities, and individuals, and then to 
develop strategies to eliminate causes of negative impacts.  
Green Masters: Coordinated by the Wisconsin Sustainable Business Council in conjunction with 
the University of Wisconsin-Madison; points-based recognition program that helps to recognize 
leading Wisconsin sustainable businesses and to encourage continuous improvement within these 
businesses.  
MPower: Administered by Sustain Dane; provides participating businesses with tools to reduce 
their energy, transportation, waste, and water use in order to save money and become more 
sustainable. 
Travel Green Wisconsin: Initiated by the Wisconsin Department of Tourism; certification 
program highlighting tourism businesses that promote environmentally friendly travel practices.  
Main Street Green: Coordinated by the Wisconsin Environmental Initiative (WEI); certifies and 
supports local businesses implementing technologies and practices that help the surrounding 
community and environment. 
Clean Clear Waters: Administered by the Madison Area Builders Association and the WEI; 
recognizes homes and businesses that have made efforts to reduce runoff and erosion around 
Wisconsin waterways.  
Green Built Home: WEI initiative that reviews and certifies new homes that meet relevant 
sustainable building and energy standards.  







20 


 


 OBJECTIVE GM1: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, MUNICIPALITY 
ENSURE SUSTAINABILITY IS CONSIDERED IN DECISION-MAKING, INCLUDING THE 


CITY BUDGET PROCESS 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Develop a process/system for how sustainability should be considered/accounted for in 


the decision-making processes (in committees, city council and by employees). 
2. Develop a green purchasing policy. 
3. Create a green cleaning policy. 
4. Appoint or hire a sustainability coordinator; a part or full-time city employee to 


plan/manage/implement sustainability initiatives. 
 


For this objective the evaluation will be based on evaluation of implemented strategies. The 
evaluation of this objective will primarily be decided upon after a process/system has been 
developed for how to get sustainability to be considered/accounted for in the decision-making 
processes of committees, city council and by employees. Some potential evaluation metrics 
could be the percentage of budget items for which a sustainable alternative was considered, or 
number of decisions in a committee in which sustainability was evaluated. 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Survey responses from committee representatives 
2. Evaluations of initiated strategies 
 


 OBJECTIVE GM2: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, MUNICIPALITY 
RAISE THE SUSTAINABILITY AWARENESS OF CITIZEN REPRESENTATIVES TO CITY 


COMMITTEES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Give sustainability presentation to each city committee. 
2. Regularly give sustainability presentations to new citizen representatives to city 


committees. 
3. Offer "green education" programs to citizen representatives to city committees. 


 


For this objective the evaluation will be based on survey responses from committee 
representatives. In addition evaluations of implemented strategies will be considered. Some 
potential evaluation metrics could be the number of participants in sustainability education 
programs, if such were to be developed.  


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Survey responses from committee representatives 
2. Evaluations of initiated strategies  







21 


 


 OBJECTIVE GM3: GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY, MUNICIPALITY 
RAISE THE SUSTAINABILITY AWARENESS OF CITY EMPLOYEES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Include sustainability in job descriptions. 
2. Include sustainability in employee policy/handbook. 
3. Include sustainability in performance reviews of city employees (especially supervisors) 


to assess progress towards sustainability goals. 
4. Develop and require robust sustainability training for city employees. 


 


For this objective the evaluation will be based on survey responses from city employees and on 
attendance at sustainability education programs. Some employees have already gone through a 
short training in The Natural Step framework; others have participated in programs through 
Sustain Dane. In addition to these metrics, evaluations of implemented strategies will be 
considered. 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Survey responses from city employees 
2. Attendance at sustainability education programs 
3. Evaluations of initiated strategies  
 


  







22 


 


 


LAND USE 
 


 


 


This section introduces the evaluation indicators and metrics for each objective under the land 
use focus area. The baseline data for 2012 and targets to be met in 2025 are presented. For each 
objective a list of potential strategies to help achieve the objective are listed. Strategies chosen 
for implementation will be determined through the regular city decision process. For a collection 
of all strategies that have been put forward to date, see Appendix E. 


Below are examples of projects pertaining to land use that have already been implemented, or 
that are currently being implemented, to make Monona a more sustainable city. These strategies 
are presented as a base upon which future work can be built. 


 Monona has been certified 
as a Tree City USA for 23 
years. 


 Arbor Day tree planting 
events have been arranged– 
coordinated volunteer 
planting of trees in local 
parks. 


 Organic compost is being 
used in the parks as 
fertilizer. 


 Government right-of-ways 
are mown or cleared only 
for safe sightlines or to 
remove invasive species. 


 The MSP has been adopted as 
part of the City of Monona’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 The current comprehensive 
plan encourages the development and 
redevelopment of compact, highly 
planned mixed-use activity centers 
that include shopping, employment, 
housing, and recreation opportunities. 


 Known contaminated 
properties have been inventoried for 
reuse planning. 







23 


 


 As part of the landscaping standards, the zoning code includes canopy tree requirements, 
set as a function of the amount of parking proposed for new development.  


 A land bank has been created to acquire and assemble priority infill sites. 
 Priority areas have been identified for infill development, including those eligible for 


brownfields funding. 
 Wetlands are being inventoried to ensure no net annual loss, and environmental corridors 


linking natural areas to facilitate wildlife movement are currently being established. 
 All paved sites are being inventoried (e.g. by GIS mapping). 
 The Stormwater Management Plan is updated regularly. 


 OBJECTIVE LC1: LAND USE, COMMUNITY 
INTEGRATE SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS IN THE EVALUATIONS AND DECISIONS 


MADE BY PLAN COMMISSION 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Develop strategies for bringing sustainability into consideration. 
2. Review ordinances to find those that require practices contrary to sustainability (e.g., 


requiring mowing) - analyze if obstacles to sustainability can be removed. 
3. Decrease exterior surface parking and other impervious surfaces. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics Baseline 2025 Target 


Number of “Sustainable Community Development Principles” 
which was addressed in each community development project 
decision 


n/a Increase 


 
Additional information and explanations:  
In the annual summary of decisions made by the City of Monona Plan Commission, an analysis 
will be added to evaluate each decision from a sustainability point of view. The evaluation will 
be based on if the following sustainability principles from the Planning Advisory Service series 
(PAS 567 (2012)) has been addresses or not: 
 


1. Livable Built Environment – ensure that all elements of the built environment, including 
land use, transportation, housing, energy and infrastructure, work together to provide 
sustainable, green places for living, working and recreation, with a high quality of life. 


2. Harmony with Nature – ensure that the contributions of natural resources to human well-
being are explicitly recognized and valued and that maintaining their health is a primary 
objective. 


3. Resilient Economy – ensure that the community is prepared to deal with both positive 
and negative changes in its economic health and to initiate sustainable urban development 
and redevelopment strategies that foster green business growth and build reliance on local 
assets. 


4. Interwoven Equity – ensure fairness and equity in providing for the housing, services, 
health, safety, and livelihood needs of all citizens and groups. 


5. Healthy Community – ensure that public health needs are recognized and addressed 
through provisions for healthy foods, physical activity, access to recreation, health care, 
environmental justice, and safe neighborhoods. 


6. Responsible Regionalism – ensure that all local proposals account for, connect with and 
support the plans of adjacent jurisdictions and the surrounding region. 







24 


 


 
For each of these six sustainability principles several practices are given, building part of a 
matrix for evaluation, see www.planning.org. Some examples of practices are: 
 


1. Multi-modal transportation choices 
2. Natural habitat protection 
3. Economic growth capacity 
4. Range of housing types 
5. Toxin exposure reduction 
6. Local land use plans coordinated with regional transportation 


 


 OBJECTIVE LC2: LAND USE, COMMUNITY  
INTEGRATE SUSTAINABILITY COMPONENTS IN ZONING CODE 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Review zoning code to find those that include practices contrary to sustainability, (e.g., 


requiring mowing) analyze if obstacles to sustainability can be removed (e.g., zoning 
regulations that prohibit or limit the installation of solar panels). 


2. Review zoning code to encourage sustainability practices (e.g. reduction of impermeable 
surfaces). 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics Baseline 2025 Target 


1) Number of zoning code reviewed to include 
sustainability aspects 0 All 


2) Number of zoning code revised to consider 
sustainability aspects 0 Increase 


 
Additional information and explanations:  
Reviewing the zoning code consists of looking again into the zoning code to determine whether 
or not sustainability aspects need to be included. If changes do need to be made, the zoning code 
can be revised to make such changes.   


 OBJECTIVE LC3: LAND USE, COMMUNITY 
INTEGRATE SUSTAINABILITY COMPONENTS IN COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 


1. Analyze all City of Monona Comprehensive Plan elements based on sustainability 
criteria. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics Baseline 2025 Target 


1) Analysis of the increase in sustainability components 
from one Comprehensive Plan to the next 


Existing plan 
from 2004 


Increase 


 
Additional information and explanations: 
The existing comprehensive plan is from 2004, with a new one currently under development. It 
is expected that another update of the plan will be implemented before 2025. Each consecutive 







25 


 


plan will be evaluated and compared to the previous to find improvements based on the scoring 
matrix for sustainability principles listed under LC1. 


 OBJECTIVE LC4: LAND USE, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE WALKABILITY TO STORES, RESTAURANTS AND OTHER AMENITIES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Track and improve Walk Score. 
2. Encourage mixed-use buildings/development along business corridors. 
3. Allow light commercialization in the area of community center/library/Winnequah Park. 


 
Walkability is a concept that determines the extent to which a built environment is friendly to 
walking. Walkability is commonly defined by factors such as: 


 Proximity: the distance to stores, restaurants, mass transit access points, parks and other 
community amenities. 


 Connectivity: how efficient street and walk path patterns are for walking; distance 
between intersections and if walking routes are direct or cumbersome (e.g. large sub-
divisions with cul-de-sacs). 


 Safety: room to walk, trip hazards, safe crossing of streets, behavior of motorists, 
well/dimly lit walk paths, occurrence of crime. 


 Convenience and Pleasantness: quality of walk paths, waiting time to cross streets, 
obstructions, type of environment (e.g. by an interstate or a small local street, by a 
warehouse or a park), cleanliness, beauty of surroundings. 
 


This objective will be evaluated through a combination of metrics for proximity and other 
aspects of walkability as listed above. Before deciding on the details of the measurements, 
different existing tools will be tested and evaluated for suitability for the City of Monona. One 
potential metric is Walk Score, a rating based on households’ proximity to stores, restaurants, 
parks, schools and other amenities. Higher values indicate more walkable areas, whereas lower 
values indicate more car dependent areas. See walkscore.com. A walk audit is a tool for 
evaluating walkability aspects other than proximity. To perform a walk audit, first, several walks 
are done, preferable by two or more people, originating from households at a variety of points in 
the community and ending at community amenities. The walks are then evaluated using an index 
of walkability based on factors such as those listed above. See http://www2.epa.gov/smart-
growth/walkability-checklist. 
 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2025 Target 
1) Walk Score rating for a number of households 
distributed over a grid of Monona  


n/a Increase 


2) Percentage of households within 0.25mi and 0.5mi of 
mass transit access point, stores, restaurants, library, park 
and other community amenities 


n/a Increase 


3) Walk audits for a number of households distributed 
over a grid of Monona 


n/a Improve 


 
Additional information and explanations: 
Walkability is partly covered by other objectives in the MSP both under the land use and 
transportation focus areas. However, walkability has been included in the MSP as a separate 







26 


 


objective due to its multi-faceted impact on the community. Listed below are some areas where 
positive impacts have been identified by research: 
 


 Environment: Walking as an alternative to motorized transportation lowers the negative 
environmental impact both on a global scale (e.g. less greenhouse gas emissions) but also 
on a local scale with less air pollution. 


 Health: walking, like other forms of physical activity, results in significant health 
benefits. It has been found that residents living in walkable neighborhoods are at less risk 
of being obese or overweight, and there are higher levels of physical activity in children. 
Is has also been shown that walking contributes to a reduction of cancer. 


 Community engagement: neighborhood walkability leads to enhanced levels of social and 
community engagement. People that live in walkable neighborhoods are more likely to 
know their neighbors, participate politically, trust others, have an increased sense of 
pride, show increased volunteerism and be socially engaged. 


 Social justice: A highly walkable community ensures that people who cannot drive are 
not restricted and it makes it possible to avoid the expensive costs of private 
transportation. 


 Safety: walkable neighborhoods have been linked with decreased crime rates. 
 Economics: the presence of sidewalks and other walking facilities is shown to increase 


property value and promote tourism. A highly walkable community will also increase 
economic activity due to the higher probability of residents using local businesses. 


 OBJECTIVE LM1: LAND USE, MUNICIPALITY 
MAINTAIN PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF NATURAL HABITATS INCLUDING 


WETLANDS 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Update the City of Monona Wetland Management Plan. 
2. Inventory natural habitats. 
3. Implement an invasive species management plan for public lands that includes 


controlling aquatic invasive species. 
 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2025 Target 
1) Square miles of land reserved for natural habitat 260* Increase by 8% 
2) Square miles of land restored to natural habitat 0 20 
* Aldo Leopold Nature Center (40 acres) and the Wetland Conservancy (220 acres) 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
Land reserved for natural habitat consists of space that is protected from development projects, 
human influence, etc. Land restored to natural habitat consists of space that has been 
reconstructed from a previous condition to support natural life. In addition to large parcels of 
land set aside, this could include having areas with natural/indigenous plants and trees in existing 
parks and open spaces in support of wildlife. Probable areas for this would be; Winnequah Park 
shoreline restoration, wetland restoration in Three Meadows Park and pockets in other parks 
switched to no-mow, native plantings. 







27 


 


 OBJECTIVE LM2: LAND USE, MUNICIPALITY 
INTEGRATE SUSTAINABILITY IN LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT  


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Set a tree canopy goal and develop a management plan to achieve it. 
2. Assess current landscape management practices. 
3. Develop a sustainable landscape management plan. 
4. Develop a pest management plan that limits the use of insecticides, fungicides, and 


rodenticides to applications needed to avoid significant ecological or public health 
damage and that prohibits use of pesticides for aesthetic purposes. 
 


This objective would be evaluated by a combination of metrics, all of which need to be assessed 
before a target can be set. 
 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics  2012 Baseline 2025 Target 
1) Acres of city land planted with native plant species n/a n/a 
2) Pounds per year used on city land: 


 synthetic fertilizer, 
 pesticides 
 herbicides used on city land 


n/a n/a 


3) Number of trees planted per year (new plantings and 
replacements) 


 in parks and open spaces 
 in terraces (right of way) 


15 new and 
replacement 


n/a 


4) Irrigation with potable water (not including rainwater or 
lake water) 


n/a n/a 


5) Fuel use (or emissions) by powered equipment n/a n/a 
 


 OBJECTIVE LM3: LAND USE, MUNICIPALITY 
MAINTAIN PERCENTAGE OF LAND DEVOTED TO OPEN SPACE/PARKS/RECREATION 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Inventory present land devoted to open space/parks/recreation. 
2. Identify key green infrastructure areas during plan development and/or implement a plan 


to acquire and protect key green infrastructure areas. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2010 Baseline* 2025 Target 


1) Outdoor recreation area, developed (acres) 427.5 
Keep at same 


or above 


2) Woodlands (acres) 16.0** 
Keep at same 


or above 


3) Wetland (acres) 27.6*** 
Keep at same 


or above 
4) Open space/park/recreation land per resident 0.07 Keep at same 







28 


 


(acres/resident) or above 
5) Open space/park/recreation land as percentage of total 
Monona land area 23% 


Keep at or 
above 23% 


 
Additional information and explanations: 
*Evaluation of land use data for Monona was done in 2010 and therefore this year is used instead 
of 2012 as baseline for this Objective. The numbers in the table comes from Capital Area 
Regional Planning Commission (CARPC) **Aldo Leopold Nature Center (40 acres) is not 
included in this number. *** The Wetland Conservancy (220 acres) is not included in this 
number, but is included in the “Outdoor recreation area, developed (acres)” inventory. 


  


The City is hoping to undertake a comprehensive inventory of the street trees and trees in its 
parks in an effort to verify the baseline of the tree canopy.  Moving forward, this updated 
inventory will allow us to manage data about the tree canopy using the City’s online GIS 
program.   


  







29 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


WATER 
 
 
 


 


This section introduces the evaluation indicators and metrics for each objective under the water 
focus area. The baseline data for 2012 and targets to be met in 2025 are presented. For each 
objective, examples of some potential strategies to help achieve the objective are listed. 
Strategies chosen for implementation will be determined through the regular city decision-
making processes. For a collection of all strategies that have been put forward to date, see 
Appendix E. 


Below are examples of projects pertaining to water that have already 
been implemented, or that are currently being implemented, to make 
Monona a more sustainable city. These strategies are presented as a 
base upon which future work can be built. 


 2012 was proclaimed the Year of Water with several 
activities during the year including the Monona Water Walk. 


 A water conservation challenge for residents was carried out 
during 2012, a collaboration between the non-profit 
organization The Natural Step Monona and the City of 
Monona. 


 A stormwater study project has been launched, surveying existing stormwater outfalls and 
prioritizing a repair/replacement schedule. 


 Monona has become a bronze level Wisconsin Water 
Star program participant. 


 Monona has a Water Sense Partnership with the EPA. 
 Monona is a member of the Groundwater Guardian 


Green Sites program.  
 Rain barrels have been placed at the library and the community center. 
 Businesses or industries are provided with incentives for implementing best management 


practices that exceed regulations in reducing impervious surfaces and increasing 
infiltration. 


 Credits are offered for residents for best management practices such as rain barrels, rain 
gardens, and pervious paving through stormwater utility fees.  


 A regular street sweeping program is in place to reduce total suspended solids. 
 A leak detection program has been developed for local municipal businesses. 


 







30 


 


The consumption of water is somewhat correlated to outdoor temperature and precipitation, 
which should be taken into consideration when water use efficiency and conservation objectives 
are evaluated.  It is important to understand trends in water consumption, taking into account 
extreme years occurring with unusually hot and dry, or wet and cold, summers.  One way to 
understand the impacts of extreme weather is to look at both actual yearly values as well as 
averages over two or more years and to compare these with corresponding average temperature 
and precipitation values. Below are graphs showing residential water consumption as an 
example. (note, the graphs show only  residential Monona Water Utility Customers) Two trends 
can be seen in the graphs with actual yearly values. The first trend is that historically the water 
consumption goes up if there is a combination of both a hot and a dry summer. The second trend 
is that with the water rate change in 2011 the consumption went down, even when the summer 
was hot and dry. A third trend can vaguely be seen in the graphs showing rolling 5-year averages, 
this trend corresponds to other data for Wisconsin. It appears that water consumption is going 
down.  


 


 
 


 


0


5


10


15


20


25


30


0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90


19
98


19
99


20
00


20
01


20
02


20
03


20
04


20
05


20
06


20
07


20
08


20
09


20
10


20
11


20
12


20
13


20
14


In
ch


es
 o


f 
P


re
ci


p
it


at
io


n


T
h


ou
sa


n
d


 G
al


lo
n


s


Year


Water Used Per Residential Customer vs Precipitation May-September 


Thousand Gallons Per
Residential Customer


Precipitation May-
September


60


62


64


66


68


70


72


74


0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90


19
98


19
99


20
00


20
01


20
02


20
03


20
04


20
05


20
06


20
07


20
08


20
09


20
10


20
11


20
12


20
13


20
14 A


ve
ra


ge
 T


em
p


er
at


u
re


 (
F


)


T
h


ou
sa


n
d


 G
al


lo
n


s


Year


Water Used Per Residential Customer vs Average Temperature May-
September 


Thousand Gallons
Per Residential
Customer







31 


 


 OBJECTIVE WC1: WATER, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE WATER EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION BY RESIDENTS 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Arrange educational events. 
2. Develop an incentive program for citizens to encourage conservation. E.g. incentives for 


low flow toilets, faucets, showerheads, and water softeners.  
3. Develop a smart water metering system for assessment and consumer feedback. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1) Absolute household residential 
water use (thousand gallons/year) 


146,164 126,625 167,004 * 


1a) Water use intensity (thousand 
gal/resident/year) 


19 17 22 
Reduce by 


20% 
1b) Water use intensity (thousand 
gal/household /year) 


54 47 61.5 * 


Data from the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, WEGS Annual Report.  
*This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of target setting. 


 
Additional information and explanations: 
A portion of Monona residents are served by the Madison Water Utility. The water usage by 
these households has been estimated based on the water usage of those served by the Monona 
Water Utility. 
 
Base year for target setting: Because water usage fluctuates with the average temperature and 
precipitation it is difficult to accurately choose a base year, compare water usage over several 
years and set a target for reduction. Using the actual data for the baseline and target years could 
produce skewered results if those years happen to be extreme weather years. Using five-year 
averages would make it difficult to see any results from implemented strategies to lower water 
consumption. A two-year average might be the best option, however we suggest making the 
decision on an annual basis about which years, or averages, to compare with which and to track 
actual yearly water usage for the duration of the MSP so that patterns and irregularities can be 
recognized. 
 


 OBJECTIVE WC2: WATER, COMMUNITY 
INCREASE WATER EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION BY COMMERCIAL AND 


INDUSTRIAL PROPERTIES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Promote EPA's WaterSense Program for water utilities or the Groundwater Guardian 


Green Sites program to local business. 
2. Educate hotels and other high-volume users. 


 







32 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1) Absolute commercial/industrial water 
use (thousand gallons/year)* 


122,512 124,551 153,799 *** 


2) Water use intensity (thousand 
gallons/customer) 


378 383 479 
Decrease 
by10% 


3) Water use intensity (thousand  
gallons/sq ft commercial building area)** 


10.92 10.74 8.7 *** 


* Data from the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, WEGS Annual Report. **This number has not been 
estimated for 2012 and 2013. *** This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of 
target setting. 


 
Additional information and explanations: 
For a discussion about how to choose base year and absolute or average values, see Objective 
WC1. Similar to residential customers there are some commercial customers in Monona served 
by Madison Water Utility, however they represent a negligible percentage of commercial water 
use. 
 


 OBJECTIVE WC3: WATER, COMMUNITY 
DECREASE QUANTITY OF STORMWATER RUNOFF TO LAKES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Create private-public partnerships for stormwater reduction initiatives. 
2. Provide incentives to businesses and industries for implementing best management 


practices that exceed regulations in reducing impervious surfaces and increasing 
infiltration.   


3. Offer stormwater utility fee credits to residents for best management practices such as 
rain barrels, rain gardens and pervious paving.  


 
This objective will be evaluated in the same way, and has the same baseline and target as 
objective WM3: Decrease quantity of stormwater runoff to lakes, see below. 
 


 OBJECTIVE WC4: WATER, COMMUNITY  
DECREASE POLLUTANTS AND DEBRIS IN STORMWATER RUNOFF 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Improve leaf containment and collection processes to reduce the amount of leaves 


entering lakes and streams. 
2. Work with commercial or light industrial businesses to develop stormwater pollution 


plans. 
 
This objective will be evaluated in the same way, and have the same baseline and target, as 
objective WM4: decrease pollutants and debris in stormwater runoff, see below. 







33 


 


 OBJECTIVE WM1: WATER, MUNICIPALITY 
INCREASE WATER EFFICIENCY, CONSERVATION BY MUNICIPALITY 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Develop a water efficiency and conservation plan for municipal buildings. 
2. Encourage the installation of low-flow faucets, urinals, sink aerators, and toilets in all 


public facilities. 
3. Encourage outdoor watering by local government using rainwater. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1. Absolute water use for municipality 
(thousand gallons/year) 


3,454 3,034 4,601 20% 


Data from the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, WEGS Annual Report.  
 
Additional information and explanations: 
Similar to energy use, it will be important to track water use per facility to see the impact of 
implemented strategies. 


 OBJECTIVE WM2: WATER, MUNICIPALITY 
MAINTAIN PERCENTAGE OF WATER LOST IN DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1. Percentage of water (drinking water) lost 
in distribution system 


5% 5% 4% 
Keep 


under 5% 
Data from the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, WEGS Annual Report.  
 
 


 OBJECTIVE WM3: WATER, MUNICIPALITY 
DECREASE QUANTITY OF STORMWATER RUNOFF TO LAKES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Increase landscaping on municipal land that uses plants which minimize need for 


irrigation (Xeriscaping). 
2. Decrease impermeable surfaces, increase permeable. (E.g. decrease exterior surface 


parking, increase parking structure density). 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2013 Baseline 2025 Target 


1. Volume (gal/year) of stormwater reductions 1,489,993,889 10% 
reduction 


*Stormwater modeling was not done for 2012; 2013 is therefore used as the baseline year for this Objective. Data 
from the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, WEGS Annual Report.  
 







34 


 


 OBJECTIVE WM4: WATER, MUNICIPALITY 
DECREASE POLLUTANTS AND DEBRIS IN STORMWATER RUNOFF 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Improve leaf containment and collection processes to reduce the amount of leaves 


entering lakes and streams.  
2. Improve regular street sweeping programs to reduce total suspended solids. 
3. Develop a plan for handling hazardous material on municipal properties including a map 


of hazmat storage and handling facilities and inspections for safety.  Provide municipal 
staff, including office staff, with contact lists for emergency water contamination issues. 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2013 2025 Target 
1) Pounds per year of  phosphorus in effluent 
at stormwater outfalls 


NA 479 
Reduce by 


40% 
2) Pounds of total suspended solids in effluent 
at stormwater outfalls 


NA 114,746 
Reduce by 


50% 
Data from the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin, WEGS Annual Report.  
 
Additional information and explanations: 
Effluent is liquid waste that is discharged into a waterway, and depending on the source can be 
treated or untreated. High phosphorus levels in waterways contribute to high algal growth and 
thus to lower water quality. Suspended solids are small particles that remain suspended in 
stormwater. Pollutants are often carried on the surface of these particles, and thus levels of 
suspended solids can also serve as an indicator of water quality.  


 OBJECTIVE WM5: WATER, MUNICIPALITY  
CONTINUE PARTICIPATION IN THE WISCONSIN WATER STAR PROGRAM AND 


IMPROVE MONONA’S SCORE AND RANKING 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Analyze the current status of WI Water Star application annually, and plan for 


improvements. 
 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2013 2025 Target 
1. City of Monona Water Star score and 


ranking 
“Bronze” ranking 


“Bronze” 
ranking 


“Silver” 
ranking 


Data from Water Star Wisconsin. 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
The Wisconsin Water Star Program guides, inspires, and recognizes communities taking 
exemplary actions to improve their local water supply. Depending on the actions taken, 
communities can be designated Bronze, Silver, or Gold Water Star Communities. 
  







35 


 


 


 


 


ENERGY 
 


 


 


This section introduces the evaluation indicators and metrics for each objective under the energy 
focus area. The baseline data for 2012 and targets to be met in 2025 are presented. For each 
objective a list of some potential strategies to help achieve the objective are listed.  Strategies 
chosen for implementation will be determined through the regular city decision process. For a 
collection of all strategies that have been put forward to date, see Appendix E. 


Below are examples of projects pertaining to energy usage that have already been implemented, 
or that are currently being implemented, to make Monona a more sustainable city. These 
strategies are presented as a base upon which future work can be built. 


 
 The city collaborated with Focus on Energy to offer the Express Energy Efficiency 


Program to residents. 
 An LED exterior lighting retrofit 


project has been implemented, e.g. 
at Ahuska park parking lot, the 
skate board park and at the lagoon. 
Also for dusk/dawn lights at the 
pool and outside the community 
center. 


 HVAC systems upgrades have been 
installed in city buildings. 


 At the pool an efficient, variable 
frequency pump was installed. 


 A 157 kW solar project involving 
the installation of solar arrays on 
four facility buildings has been 
completed. The solar arrays produce more than 210,000 kilowatt-hours of clean energy 
per year, equating to 30% of the buildings’ combined electricity usage. 


 Wattmeters are available to the general public through the public library. 
 Monona is designated as a State of Wisconsin Energy Independent (EI) Community.  


 
The two graphs below show a comparison of energy consumption for the residential, commercial 
and municipal sectors in Monona. 
 
 







36 


 


 
A large portion of the energy used for residential, commercial and municipal buildings goes to 
heating and cooling. As the energy usage of a heating or cooling system varies with the weather, 
it is important to take this into account when evaluating energy efficiency and conservation 
objectives. One common way to understand energy use data is to take into account heating and 
cooling degree days. Heating degree days are a measure of how much (in degrees), and for how 
long (in days), the outside air temperature was below a certain level, at which it is assumed that a 
building needs to be heated. Relating the natural gas consumption to the heating degree days of a 
month or a year will make it possible to see trends in energy efficiency irrelevant of the heating 
need. Cooling degree days works in a corresponding way for cooling needs and electricity 
consumption. Heating degree days and cooling degree days will be taken into consideration 
when this objective is evaluated.  


 


 OBJECTIVE EC1: ENERGY, COMMUNITY 
INCREASE ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION BY RESIDENTS  


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Encourage new homes to meet ENERGY STAR home standards. 
2. Work with MG&E to develop smart electricity and gas metering for assessment and 


consumer feedback. 
3. Continue collaborating with Focus on Energy to offer energy efficiency programs. 
4. Utilize Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) financing. 
 
Evaluation Indicators and 


Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1) Total annual residential 
electricity use (kWh/year)* 27,565,470 26,782,039 26,378,171 ** 


1a) Electricity use intensity 
(kWh/resident/year) 


3,660 3,560 3,502 ** 


1b) Electricity use intensity 
(kWh/household/year) 


7,127 6,869 6,613 
10% 


decrease 
3) Total annual residential natural 1,782,869 2,337,857 2,550,697 ** 


51%48%


1%


Natural Gas Use - 2013
Commercial Residential Municipal


70%


28%


2%


Electricity Use - 2013
Commercial Residential Municipal







37 


 


gas use (therm/year)* 


3a) Nat. gas use intensity 
(therm/resident/year) 


237 311 339 ** 


3b) Nat. gas use intensity 
(therm/household/year) 


461 600 654 
10% 


decrease 
*Data from Madison Gas and Electric.  
** This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of target setting. 


 


 OBJECTIVE EC2: ENERGY, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION BY COMMERCIAL AND 


INDUSTRIAL PROPERTIES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Collaborate with the local Chamber of Commerce to increase energy efficiency and 


conservation, and encourage renewable energy. 
2. Work with MG&E to develop smart electricity and/or gas metering. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and 
Metrics 


2012 
Baseline 


2013 2014 
2025  


Target 
1) Total commercial electricity 
consumption (kWh/year)* 66,619,143 66,586,465 64,264,343 ** 


1a) Electricity use intensity 
(kWh/sq ft*year) 


3.78 3.78 3.65 
10% 


decrease 
2) Total commercial natural gas 
consumption (therm/year)* 


2,002,676 2,476,697 2,677,251 ** 


2a) Nat. gas use intensity  
(therm/sq ft*year) 


1.49 1.85 1.99 
10% 


decrease 
*Data from Madison Gas and Electric.  
** This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of target setting. 


 


 OBJECTIVE EM1: ENERGY, MUNICIPALITY 
 INCREASE ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION OF MUNICIPAL FACILITIES AND 


SERVICES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Complete energy audits of all city facilities. 
2. Complete EPA Energy Star Portfolio Manager spreadsheet for government energy use or 


score existing buildings with LEED green building certification. 
3. Develop list of lighting, HVAC and shell improvements to increase Energy Star Portfolio 


Manager score or LEED green building certification credits. 
4. Ensure streetlights are directed where light is needed, are full cut-off, operate at 75 


lumens/Watt or higher and are LED or the functional equivalent. 
5. Upgrade water utility equipment (e.g., variable frequency drive motors) to achieve energy 


efficiency. 







38 


 


 
The graph below shows energy consumption for different parts of the municipality. 
 


 
 
Electricity 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2013 2025 Target 
1) Grand total annual municipal electricity 
use (kWh/year)* 2,000,827 1,971,946 n/a 


1a) Total annual city building electricity 
use (kWh/year) 


1,455,232 1,436,234 20% decrease 


1b) Annual street lighting electricity use 
(kWh/year) 


545,595 535,712 50% decrease 


1c) Annual utility electricity use 
(kWh/year) 


Data missing Data missing ? 


2) Intensity of city building electricity use 
(kWh/sq ft*year) 14.6 14.4 20% decrease 


 
Natural Gas 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baselines 2013 2025 Target 
3) Total annual municipal nat. gas use 
(therm/year)* 57,802 72,847 20% decrease 


4) Intensity of city building natural gas use 
(therm/sq ft*year) 0.6 0.7 20% decrease 


*Data retrieved from Madison Gas and Electric.  


 OBJECTIVE EM2: ENERGY, MUNICIPALITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION FROM RENEWABLE SOURCES 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Install more solar cells. 


57%
20%


21%


2%


Municipal Electricity Use ‐ 2013


Building Electric Street Lighting Water Electric Sewage Electric







39 


 


2. Install solar water heaters. 
3. Consume less energy. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2014 2025 Target 


1) Energy generated from renewables 
(kWh/year) 


0 163,030 * 


1a) Renewable energy as percentage of 
total municipal electricity use (kWh 
from RE/total municipal kWh per year) 


0 % 8 % 25 % 


2) Installed renewable energy capacity (kW) 0 157 * 
Data from the City of Monona’s own renewable energy tracking system.  
* This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of target setting. 


 


 OBJECTIVE EM3: ENERGY, MUNICIPALITY  
DECREASE FUEL CONSUMPTION FROM WORK RELATED (CITY BUSINESS) 
TRANSPORTATION AND MOTOR DRIVEN EQUIPMENT 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Retrofit city fleet vehicles for CNG (compressed natural gas). 
2. Train employees in eco-friendly driving techniques that conserve fuels, release fewer 


emissions, and prolong vehicle life. 
3. Upgrade to more efficient motor driven equipment. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2014 Baseline 2025 Target 


1) Total fuel consumed per department (gal/year) See table below Decrease 
 
2014 Fuel Consumption Divided by Department and Fuel Type: 


Department 
Number of 


Vehicles 
/Equipment 


Number of 
Gasoline Vehicles/


Equipment 


Gallons 
Gasoline 


Diesel 
Vehicles/ 


Equipment 


Gallons 
Diesel 


Police 11 11 6,807 0 0 
Fire 8 2 1,506 6 720 
Public Works 29 17 8,687 12 6,020 
Total 48 30 17,000 18 6,740 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
Targets will have to be set after further analysis. 
 
  







40 


 


 


 


 


TRANSPORTATION 
 


 


This section introduces the evaluation 
indicators and metrics for each objective 
under the transportation focus area.  


The baseline data for 2012 and targets to be 
met in 2025 are presented. For each objective 
a list of some potential strategies to help 
achieve the objective are listed. Strategies 
chosen for implementation will be determined 
through the regular city decision-making 
processes. For a collection of all strategies 
that have been put forward to date, see 
Appendix E. 


Below are examples of projects pertaining to transportation that have already been implemented, 
or that are currently being implemented, to make Monona a more sustainable city. These 
strategies are presented as a base upon which future work can be built. 


 
 The reconstruction of Monona Drive 


added bike lanes. 
 Commuter bike routes have been 


identified and properly cleared. 
 Standards for placement and number 


(as function of intensity of use) of bike 
parking spaces are set. 


 The city has hosted a children’s Bike 
Safety Day for several years. 


 The Monona PTO, Winnequah School 
and the City of Monona each year 
arrange a Walk/Bike to School Day. 


 Two electric vehicle charging stations 
are installed near the community 
center in collaboration with MG&E. 


 The Monona Transit bus route has 
been extended.  







41 


 


 Monona transit service is scheduled at the basic level (hour peak service within half-mile 
of 50 percent of addresses). 


 Neighborhood electric vehicles (NEVs) are allowed on appropriate roadways. 
 City vehicles are kept well maintained to ensure efficient performance (tire pressure, 


regular tuning, etc.). 
 A new mower bought for the city in 2015 is low-emission, Tier IV compliant. 
 City vehicles have been retrofitted for compressed natural gas (CNG). 


 OBJECTIVE TC1: TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNITY 
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF RESIDENTS USING ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION TO 


DESTINATIONS WITHIN MONONA (E.G. LIBRARY, POOL, CITY HALL, COMMUNITY 


CENTER, STORES, RESTAURANTS) 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Prepare a plan that identifies disconnections in bike and pedestrian networks, prioritizes 


fixes, and identifies potential funding sources for the most important projects. 
2. Provide bike racks at municipal buildings and other city operated destinations, e.g. parks. 
 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 Baseline 2025 Target 
1) On-site survey of visitors to community destinations (i.e. 
library area, stores) 


n/a n/a 


2) Ratio of bikes to cars at community destinations-
observation study (i.e. library area, stores) 


n/a n/a 


3) Bus ridership (number rides/year) (Monona Lift ) 6972 ? 
3. Measures of potential: 


4) Bike Score 
 
Additional information and explanations:  
Monona Lift is a handicapped-accessible bus service that meets the needs of the elderly and 
disabled, as well as the general public. The bus has six scheduled daily loops: four through 
Monona and downtown Madison, and two within Monona. Bike Score is similar to the Walk 
Score in that it measures how feasible a given location is for biking. The score is based on a scale 
of 0-100, and is based on the presence of four components: bike lanes, hills, destinations and 
road connectivity, and bike commuting road share.  


 OBJECTIVE TC2: TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF STUDENTS (K-12) USING ALTERNATIVE 


TRANSPORTATION 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective:  
1. Arrange biking education for children and parents. 
2. Fund and operate a Safe-Routes-to-School (SRTS) program (or functional equivalent) 


covering at least 10 percent of students.  
3. Initiate carpool programs at Monona schools. 


For this objective, baselines and potential targets would have to be evaluated before strategies are 
implemented. 







42 


 


Potential Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
1. Survey of students reporting mode of transportation (walk/bike/bus/car) 


 
Alternative – Observation Study 


1a. School bus ridership/year 
1b. Number of bicycles parked at schools (observation) 
1c. Number of autos dropping off/picking up at schools (observation) 
1d. Number of students walking (observation) 


 OBJECTIVE TC3: TRANSPORTATION, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF RESIDENTS USING ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION FOR 


COMMUTING 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Track bus stops/routes/times that are most crowded and increase trips or range to 


meet/grow demand. 
2. Reroute some of the bus lines to make more parts of the city and surrounding areas more 


accessible via bus. 
3. Establish additional stop locations to make more parts of the city and surrounding areas 


more accessible via bus. 
4. Work with neighboring local governments to coordinate regional public transit 


opportunities including mass transit, shuttle buses, carpooling and vanpooling, bicycle 
and pedestrian infrastructure. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 


2025 
Target 


1) Percentage commuting by car, truck or van -- drove 
alone 


85.0% 82.0% 75.0% 


2) Percentage commuting by car, truck or van -- 
carpooled 


5.4% 6.9% * 


3) Percentage commuting by public transportation 
(excluding taxicab) 


3.8% 3.8% * 


4) Percentage commuting by walking 0.9% 1.8% * 
5) Percentage commuting by other means (assumed to 
mainly be bicycles, but this also includes motorcycles, 
taxi etc.) 


2.4% 3.1% * 


6) Percentage who worked at home 2.6% 2.4% * 
Data is for workers over age 16, taken from the American Community Survey, executed by the same entity as the 
US Census. 
* This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of target setting. 


 


 OBJECTIVE TM1: TRANSPORTATION, MUNICIPALITY 
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF CITY EMPLOYEES USING ALTERNATIVE 


TRANSPORTATION FOR COMMUTING 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 







43 


 


1. Encourage participation in regional transit. 
2. Encourage walking and biking for those living near place of employment.  
3. Provide transit passes at 50 percent or more off the regular price.   


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 


1) Vehicle miles traveled (VMT/per city employee*year) - intensity. 
2) Percentage of city employees reporting alternative transport (bike, walk, carpool, bus) 


 


 OBJECTIVE TM2: TRANSPORTATION, MUNICIPALITY  
DECREASE GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS FROM WORK RELATED (CITY BUSINESS) 
TRANSPORTATION 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Ban idling (more than five minutes) with local government vehicles/city vehicles.  
2. Make electric cars available to city employees for work transportation.  
3. Create a bicycle fleet for employees to use for local work-related trips, improving 


employee health and air quality, and reducing fleet vehicle costs. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2014 Baseline 2025 Target 


1) Total GHG emissions for city fleet (CO2e/year) n/a Decrease 
1a) Total miles driven city fleet & per department 
(miles/year) 


n/a Decrease 


 
Additional information and explanations: 
Targets will have to be set when baseline data have been established (miles driven have not 
previously been tracked). Greenhouse gas emissions will be calculated based on miles driven for 
each separate vehicle. 
  







44 


 


	
 
 
 
 
 


SOLID WASTE 
 
 
 
 


 
This section introduces the evaluation 
indicators and metrics for each objective under 
the solid waste focus area. The baseline data 
for 2012 and targets to be met in 2025 are 
presented. For each objective a list of some 
potential strategies to help achieve the 
objective are listed. Strategies chosen for 
implementation will be determined through the 
regular city decision-making processes. For a 
collection of all strategies that have to date 
been put forward, see Appendix E. 


Below are examples of projects pertaining to 
solid waste that have already been 
implemented or that are currently being 
implemented to make Monona a more sustainable city. These strategies are presented as a base 
upon which future work can be built. 


 There is mandatory residential curbside recycling pickup that covers paper, metal cans, 
glass and plastic bottles. 


 A med-drop collection was arranged and the city helped promote a medication drop-off 
day at a local pharmacy. 


 The city provided an eCycle event, an electronic waste drop-off day, in collaboration with 
Monona Grove High School. 


 The Monona PTO has extended their collection of special items for recycling through 
TerraCycle, www.terracycle.com to the general public. Winnequah school families can 
continue to drop items at Winnequah School and a community drop-off site has been 
established at the Monona Public Library. 


 Styrofoam is collected at the library for recycling at a local company that transforms the 
product into picture frames. 


 Paper towels have been eliminated in the restrooms at the pool, and replaced with air-
dryers. 


 The Park and Recreation Department e-mail receipts for financial transactions. 
 The city offers more public recycling receptacles in public places (i.e. parks, community 


center, and libraries) and at events. 







45 


 


 OBJECTIVE SC1: SOLID WASTE, COMMUNITY 
DECREASE TOTAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTED 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Use public education and outreach to promote product re-use and waste reduction. 
2. Introduce pay-as-you-throw system. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1) Absolute residential waste 
(pounds/year) 4,870,580 5,250,600 5,372,400 * 


2a) Intensity (pounds of 
waste/household*year) 


1260 1347 1378 * 


2b) Intensity (pounds of 
waste/resident*year)* 647 698 713 


Decrease 
by 10% 


Data from the City of Monona, in conjunction with Advanced Disposal.  
* This metric has been included for background information, not for the purpose of target setting. 


 


 OBJECTIVE SC2: SOLID WASTE, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF SOLID WASTE BEING RECYCLED (OR OTHERWISE 


DIVERTED) 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Offer more public recycling receptacles in public places and at events (i.e. parks, community 


center, and libraries). 
2. Increase the types of materials that can be recycled. 
3. Develop a city-wide collection program that encourages the diversion of food scraps, yard 


materials and other organics from landfills to composting or anaerobic digestion.  
4. Use public education and outreach to promote recycling and backyard composting. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2013 2014 


2025 
Target 


1) Annual residential recycling rate 
(percent) 


32% 32% 32% 45% 


Eventual addition when infrastructure exists: 
2) Annual compost/digester rate 
(percent) 


    


 
Additional information and explanations: 
Annual residential recycling rate per year currently calculated by pounds of residential recycling 
material at processing plant/pounds of residential waste 
Annual compost/digester rate per year calculated by pounds/year of compost received at 
designated facilities / pounds residential waste 







46 


 


 OBJECTIVE SC3: SOLID WASTE, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF MATERIALS FROM CONSTRUCTION AND 


DECONSTRUCTION DIVERTED FROM LANDFILL 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Create construction/deconstruction waste recycling outreach program. 
2. Require construction/deconstruction waste management plans and calculate reuse and 


recycling. 
3. Require construction/deconstruction reuse and recycling. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 


Baseline 
2025 


Target 
1) Residential deconstruction/construction waste reuse and/or 
recycle rate (percent of pounds diverted/pounds total waste*year) 


n/a 70% 


2) Commercial deconstruction/construction waste reuse and/or 
recycle rate (percent of pounds diverted/pounds total waste*year) n/a 75% 


*Data is still being assessed. 
 
Additional information and explanations: 
While reuse involves any activity that extends the life of an item and recycling includes 
reprocessing of an item into a new raw material, these indicators and metrics combine reuse and 
recycle into one rate.  
 
Information about current rates for deconstruction/construction reuse and recycling does not 
exist for Monona. As a first step working towards this objective, an ordinance could be 
implemented requiring reuse and recycling plans and reports from deconstruction/construction, 
without a required rate.  
 


 OBJECTIVE SC4: SOLID WASTE, COMMUNITY  
INCREASE SAFE DISPOSAL OF WASTE PRODUCTS NOT INCLUDED IN CURB PICK-UP, 
SUCH AS MEDICAL, HAZARDOUS AND ELECTRICAL WASTE  


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Develop programs that dispose of household hazardous, medical, and electronic waste. 
2. Promote existing programs that dispose of household hazardous, medical, and electronic 


waste. 


 
Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 


1) Number of material types collected 
2) Number of drop-off events & drop-off sites per year (available days/year) 
3) Mass (pounds/year) of material brought to designated pick up locations 
 







47 


 


 OBJECTIVE SM1: SOLID WASTE, MUNICIPALITY  
DECREASE TOTAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTED 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Develop a waste and materials management plan based on zero-waste principles, with 


specific goals, prepared and updated annually.  
2. Develop a green purchasing policy.  
3. Develop a green printing policy. 


 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2025 


Target 
1) Total waste for all municipal buildings and & department 
(pounds/year) 


n/a 
Decrease by 


15% 
*Waste data for Monona currently combines residential and municipal waste. Future plans exist for implementing a 
Waste Management System, allowing Monona to conduct waste audits. Waste audits will assist Monona in 
separating the amount of waste collected by residential homes and municipal buildings and departments.   
 


 OBJECTIVE SM2: SOLID WASTE, MUNICIPALITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF SOLID WASTE BEING RECYCLED OR OTHERWISE 


DIVERTED FROM LANDFILLS 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Develop a waste management plan for city facilities. 
2. Conduct a waste audit at city facilities. 
 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 2012 
Baseline 


2025 
Target 


1) Annual recycling rate (percentage) for municipal facilities n/a 60% 
Eventual addition when infrastructure exists: 
2) Annual compost/digester rate (percentage)   
 * See SM1 for explanation about lack of municipal waste data.  
 


 OBJECTIVE SM3: SOLID WASTE, MUNICIPALITY  
INCREASE PERCENTAGE OF CONSTRUCTION AND DECONSTRUCTION MATERIALS 


DIVERTED FROM LANDFILLS 


Potential strategies to help achieve this objective: 
1. Make a construction/deconstruction waste management plans and calculate reuse and 


recycling. 
 


Evaluation Indicators and Metrics 
2012 


Baseline 
2025 


Target 
1) Municipal construction waste reuse and/or recycle rate 
(percentage, pounds diverted/pounds total waste*year) 


n/a 80 







 


APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY AND DEFINITIONS  


Focus Area: 
A major element (category) of the Monona Sustainability Plan. There are six total focus 
areas, taken together they are meant to encompass the many characteristics of a 
sustainable community. Each focus area includes a specific vision and a list of objectives 
and strategies. 


Example: land use, energy, solid waste, etc. 
 
Indicator: 


A proxy measurement or assessment that indicates progress toward a given objective. 
One or more indicators are used if a direct quantifiable measurement (metric) cannot be 
easily/practically established for the objective. 


Example: Number of green education sessions hosted, and number of visits to 
sustainability website, as indicators for raised sustainability awareness. 


Metric: 
A quantifiable measurement that can be used to assess a baseline value related to an 
objective, and then to evaluate progress toward meeting relevant targets.   


Example: kWh electricity used/household/year. 


Objective: 
Each focus area includes a list of community objectives and municipal objectives. 
Objectives define gaps between a current practice and a sustainable practice and indicate 
a direction in which the practice should change.  


Example: Decrease total electrical consumption (kWh). 
Municipality objectives pertain to the city's public lands, buildings, and operations. 
Community objectives more directly affect and involve private residents and businesses. 


 
Strategies: 


Each objective includes a list of strategies. Strategies are ideas, methods and actions that, 
when implemented, will move the community in the direction specified by the given 
objective.  


Example: Encourage new homes to meet ENERGY STAR home standards. 
 
Targets: 


Quantitative or qualitative measurements that are set for each objective based on relevant 
baseline data. 


Example: Achieve a 20% reduction in total annual municipal electricity use 
(kWh/year). 


 
Vision: 


Each focus area has a vision, and each vision consists of an aspirational description of 
what the community intends to accomplish in the long-term future. A vision is intended 
to serve as a clear guide for choosing current and future courses of action. 
  


APPENDICES 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


APPENDIX B: REFERENCE METRICS 


The tables below contain reference metrics used for the calculation of certain baselines and 
targets included in the MSP.  


Reference metrics which will need to be updated each year: 
 


Reference Indicator and Metrics 2011 2012 2013 2014 


Number of residents* 7,533 7,523 7,532 7,532 


Number of households** 3,868 3,899 3,898 n/a 


Number of residential water customers*** n/a 2,460 2,450 2,417 


Number of commercial water customers*** n/a 317 318 320 


Commercial Building Area (sq ft)****    17,605,242


*Wisconsin Department of Administration **American Fact Finder, an entity governed by the 
US Census ***Public Service Commission of Wisconsin ****City of Monona 
 
Reference metrics that generally remain constant:  
 


Reference Indicator and Metrics Value 


Total Land area, City of Monona (acres)* 2,100 


Municipality Building Area (sq ft)**  


City Hall/Fire Dept/Police 29,450 


Community Center 12,000 


Library 26,882 


Public Works Garage 28,468 


Pool 3,000 


Park Shelters 1,825 


*Capital Area Regional Planning Commission **City of Monona’s 25 x 25 Plan for Energy Independence  







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


APPENDIX C: MONONA SUSTAINABILITY RESOLUTION (12-03-1843) 


 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


APPENDIX D: FOSSIL FUELS RESOLUTION (14-7-1978) 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


APPENDIX E: COLLECTION OF STRATEGIES PROPOSED BY MONONA RESIDENTS 


See separate PDF, will be included in plan going to city council. 


 


  







2015 Strategies for Implementation 


 


Page 5 


APPENDIX F: EXAMPLE: ANNUAL IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 2015 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
Sustainability Plan 


Annual Implementation Plan 
2015 


  







 


SUSTAINABILITY PLAN OVERVIEW 


The City of Monona’s Sustainability Plan, (MSP) was developed by the Monona Sustainability 
Committee in collaboration with other city committees, city employees, community residents 
and businesses. The plan, adopted by the Monona City Council in July 2015, is a strategic 
document that establishes sustainability visions and objectives. In addition, measurable targets 
have been set for 2025 and strategies have been proposed for meeting each. The full plan can be 
found at www.mymonona.com/sustainability. 


The strategies proposed in the MSP will be continuously updated to reflect current possibilities 
and challenges in the community. Each year an annual progress report will be presented and an 
annual implementation plan will be developed. This document presents the strategies (actions) 
which are proposed for implementation in 2015. Strategies chosen for implementation each year 
will be determined through the city’s regular decision-making processes.  


Monona’s overall vision of sustainability is adapted from the sustainability principle identified in 
Brundtland’s 1987 Report of the World Commission on Environmental Development. This 
general principle, states:  


“…practicing sustainability means working to meet the needs of 
today’s residents and visitors without compromising the needs of 
future residents and visitors…” 
Along with this sustainability principle, the following four sustainability guidelines provide the 
foundation for the sustainability targets established in the MSP: 


 Reduce dependence on fossil fuels and extracted underground metals and minerals. 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufactured substances that can accumulate 


in nature. 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life-sustaining ecosystems. 
 Reduce barriers to achieving present and future human needs fairly and efficiently. 


 
The  plan addresses matters of sustainability in these six focus areas: 


 General Sustainability   Energy 
 Land Use  Transportation 
 Water  Solid Waste 


 
Within each focus area, two groups of objectives are outlined, municipality and community. 
Municipality objectives pertain primarily to the city's public lands, buildings and operations, 
while community objectives more directly affect and involve private residents and businesses.


  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 2 


GENERAL SUSTAINABILITY 


Following are the objectives or goals within the general sustainability focus area, along with a list of 
strategies for 2015 pertaining to each. Please note that for some objectives there are no strategies to 
be implemented in 2015. However, strategies for these objectives will be developed in future years.  
 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 Objective GC1: Raise the sustainability awareness of Monona residents. 
 Improve sustainability information on the city website. Include links to organizations and 


other websites with information about sustainability concepts, including water conservation 
and pollution, energy conservation, solid waste management, sustainable transportation 
efforts and sustainable land use opportunities (sustainability committee). 


 Partner with organizations and programs that offer education about environmental issues and 
sustainability practices, to raise citizen awareness about sustainability and increase the 
percentage of residents who have implemented sustainability practices (sustainability 
committee). 


 Create an esthetically pleasing sustainability plan for outreach (sustainability committee). 


 Inform the community about on-going sustainability work the city is doing (through the 
biannual newsletter, city website, signage in park shelters, articles in THI, etc.) (City 
Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 Support the Green Tuesdays Film and Lecture Series (Library – Sally Buffat). 


 Expand the sustainability section at the Library (Library – Sally Buffat). 


 Increase the number events at the library with a sustainability theme (Library – Sally Buffat). 


 Improve sustainability information on city website. Include links to organizations and other 
websites with information about sustainability concepts, including water conservation and 
pollution, energy conservation, solid waste management, sustainable transportation efforts 
and sustainable land use opportunities (Director of Administrative Services – Leah Kimmel).  


 


 Objective GC2: Increase the percentage of residents who have implemented sustainable 
practices, such as those listed in other sections of this plan. 


 Improve sustainability information on the city website. Include links to organizations and 
other websites with information about sustainability concepts, including water conservation 
and pollution, energy conservation, solid waste management, sustainable transportation 
efforts and sustainable land use opportunities (sustainability committee). 


 Partner with organizations and programs that educate about environmental issues and 
sustainability practices to raise citizen awareness about sustainability and increase the 
percentage of residents who have implemented sustainability practices (sustainability 
committee). 







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 3 


 
 


 Objective GC3: Raise the sustainability awareness of Monona businesses. 


 Initiate collaboration between the city and the Chamber of Commerce on sustainability issues 
(City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 
 


 Objective GC4: Increase the number of businesses that have implemented sustainable 
practices, such as those listed in other sections in this plan. 


 Review ordinances that require practices contrary to sustainability (e.g. minimum parking 
requirements) and evaluate possibilities for changes (City Planner – Sonja Reichertz). 


 
 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective GM1: Ensure sustainability is considered in the decision making process, 
including the city budget process. 


 Develop a process/system for how sustainability is to be considered/accounted for in the 
decision making process (in committees, city council and by employees) (sustainability 
committee). 


 Develop a green purchasing policy (sustainability committee). 


 Develop a green purchasing policy (City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 
 


 Objective GM2: Raise the sustainability awareness of citizen representatives to city 
committees. 


 Require that some portion of the city savings from sustainability efforts is recycled back into 
more sustainability efforts (City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 Give a sustainability presentation to each city committee (City Administrator – Patrick 
Marsh). 


 Develop sustainability checklists – one page – formatted to the needs of each specific 
committee and handed out for consideration in decisions (City Administrator – Patrick 
Marsh). 


  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 4 


 


 Objective GM3: Raise the sustainability awareness of city employees. 
 Include sustainability in job descriptions (City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 Include sustainability in performance reviews of city employees, especially supervisors, to 
assess progress towards sustainability goals (City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 Maintain the city’s Green Team with a clear vision and mission (City Planner – Sonja 
Reichertz). 


 Include sustainability in job descriptions (Director of Administrative Services – Leah 
Kimmel). 


 Include sustainability in performance reviews of city employees (especially supervisors) to 
assess progress towards sustainability goals (Director of Administrative Services – Leah 
Kimmel). 


 Develop and require robust sustainability training for city employees (Director of 
Administrative Services – Leah Kimmel). 


  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 5 


 
 
 


 


Land Use 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Following are objectives related to land use, with a list of strategies for 2015 pertaining to each. 
Please note that for some objectives there are no strategies to be implemented in 2015. However, 
strategies for these objectives will be developed for future years.  
 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective LC1: Integrate sustainability considerations into the evaluations and 
decisions made by the Plan Commission (e.g. landscaping, building performance). 


 Develop strategies for how to bring sustainability into consideration (City Planner – Sonja 
Reichertz). 


 Review ordinances to find those that require practices contrary to sustainability (e.g. required 
mowing). Analyze if obstacles to sustainability can be removed (City Planner – Sonja 
Reichertz). 


 


 Objective LC2: Integrate sustainability components in zoning code (e.g. reduction of 
impermeable surfaces) 


 Review zoning code to find those that require practices contrary to sustainability (e.g. 
required mowing). Analyze if obstacles to sustainability can be removed (e.g. zoning 
regulations that prohibit/limit installation of solar panels) (City Planner – Sonja Reichertz). 


 Zoning for office and retail districts permits floor area ration >1, on average (City Planner – 
Sonja Reichertz). 


  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 6 


 


 Objective LC3: Integrate sustainability components in comprehensive plan (e.g. 
efficient use of resources, mixed-use centers, high density/compact/transit oriented 
development, walkability) 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective LC4: Increase walkability to stores, restaurants and other amenities 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective LC5: Maintain percentage of land devoted to open space/parks/recreation 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 
 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective LM1: Maintain protection and restoration of natural habitats including 
wetlands 


 Identify culverts that obstruct fish migration and install fish-friendly culverts where needed 
(Public Works Director – Dan Stephany). 
 


 Objective LM2: Integrate sustainability in landscape management 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective LM3: Land Use, Municipality Maintain percentage of land devoted to open 
space/parks/recreation 


For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 
  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 7 


 
 
 
 
 


Water 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Following are objectives for the water focus area, along with a list of strategies for 2015 pertaining to 
each. Please note that for some objectives there are no strategies to be implemented in 2015. 
However, strategies for these objectives will be developed for future years.  
 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective WC1: Increase water efficiency and conservation by residents. 


 Develop an incentive program to encourage water conservation among citizens, e.g. 
incentives for low flow toilets, faucets and showerheads and water softeners (Finance 
Director – Marc Houtakker). 


 


 Objective WC2: Increase water efficiency and conservation by commercial and 
industrial properties. 


 Develop an incentive program to encourage water conservation among citizens, e.g. 
incentives for low flow toilets, faucets and showerheads and water softeners (Finance 
Director – Marc Houtakker). 


 


 Objective WC3: Decrease quantity of stormwater runoff to lakes 


 Create private-public partnerships for stormwater reduction initiatives (sustainability 
committee). 


 


 Objective WC4: Decrease pollutants and debris in stormwater runoff. 


 Develop a website or other media to publicize methods by which the public can report spills, 
leaks, discharges, or other contamination events (Public Works Director – Dan Stephany). 







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 8 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective WM1: Increase water efficiency and conservation by municipality. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective WM2: Maintain percentage of groundwater lost in distribution system. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective WM3: Decrease quantity of stormwater runoff to lakes. 


 Create landscaping on municipal land using plants that minimize the need for irrigation 
(xeriscaping) (Public Works Director – Dan Stephany). 


 


 Objective WM4: Decrease pollutants and debris in stormwater runoff. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective WM5: Continue participation in the Wisconsin Water Star Program and 
improve Monona's score and ranking. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 9 


 
 
 
 
 


Energy 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Following are the objectives for the energy focus area, along with a list of strategies for 2015 
pertaining to each. Please note that for some objectives there are no strategies to be implemented in 
2015. However, strategies for these objectives will be developed for future years.  
 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective EC1: Increase energy efficiency and conservation by residents. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective EC2: Increase energy efficiency and conservation by commercial and 
industrial properties. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 
 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective EM1: Increase energy efficiency and conservation of municipal facilities and 
services.  


 Upgrade water utility equipment (e.g. variable frequency drive motors) to achieve energy 
efficiency (Public Works Director – Dan Stephany). 


 Upgrade stoplights to LED or functional equivalent (Public Works Director – Dan Stephany).  
 







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 10 


 Objective EM2: Increase percentage of energy consumption from renewable sources 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 11 


 
 
 
 
 
 


Transportation 
 
 
 
 
 


Following are the objectives for the transportation focus area, along with a list of strategies for 2015 
pertaining to each. Please note that for some objectives there are no strategies to be implemented in 
2015. However, strategies for these objectives will be developed for future years.  
 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective TC1: Increase percentage of residents using alternative transportation to 
destinations within Monona (e.g. library, pool, city hall, community center, stores, and 
restaurants). 


 Provide bike racks at municipal buildings and other city operated destinations, e.g. parks (City 
Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 Evaluate which transportation options are currently subsidized by the community and whether 
those subsidies promote sustainable transportation choices (Finance Director – Marc 
Houtakker). 


 Require bike parking spaces for all new non-residential and multi-family land uses. Set 
standards for placement and quantity, as a function of intensity of use. (Ordinance for bike 
parking at businesses?) (City Planner – Sonja Reichertz). 


 


 Objective TC2: Increase percentage of students (K-12) using alternative transportation. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective TC3: Increase percentage of residents using alternative transportation for 
commuting. 


 Promote available transit services (Finance Director – Marc Houtakker). 







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 12 


 Collect more comprehensive data on what residents want in mass transit (Finance Director – 
Marc Houtakker). 


 
 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective TM1: Increase percentage of city employees using alternative transportation 
for commuting. 


 Keep city vehicles well maintained to ensure efficient performance (tire pressure, regular 
tuning, etc.) (City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 Provide transit passes at 50% or more off the regular price and/or provide parking cash-out 
options for local government employees (Finance Director – Marc Houtakker). 


 


 Objective TM2: Decrease greenhouse gas emissions from work related (city business) 
transportation. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
  







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 13 


 
 
 
 
 


Solid Waste 
 
 
 
 
 


Following are the objectives for the solid waste focus area, along with a list of strategies for 2015 
pertaining to each. Please note that for some objectives there are no strategies to be implemented in 
2015. However, strategies for these objectives will be developed for future years.  
 


COMMUNITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective SC1: Decrease total solid waste collected. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective SC2: Increase the percentage of solid waste being recycled (or otherwise 
diverted). 


 Create more recycling opportunities within the city by offering more recycling receptacles in 
public places and at events (e.g. parks, community center, and libraries) (City Administrator – 
Patrick Marsh). 


 


 Objective SC3: Increase the percentage of materials from construction and 
deconstruction diverted from landfills. 


 Adopt a construction/deconstruction waste recycling ordinance (sustainability committee). 


 Implement a construction/deconstruction waste recycling program (City Administrator – 
Patrick Marsh). 


 


 Objective SC4: Increase safe disposal of waste products not included in curb pick-up, such as 
medical, hazardous and electrical waste. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 







2015 Strategies for Implementation            June 12, 2015 


 


Page 14 


 


MUNICIPALITY OBJECTIVES 


 


 Objective SM1: Decrease total solid waste collected. 
For this objective, there are no strategies planned for 2015. 
 


 Objective SM2: Increase the percentage of solid waste being recycled (or otherwise 
diverted). 


 Develop a waste management plan for city facilities (sustainability committee). 
 


 Objective SM3: Increase the percentage of materials from construction and 
deconstruction diverted from landfills. 


 Develop a construction/deconstruction waste management plan and calculate reuse and 
recycling (City Administrator – Patrick Marsh). 


 







 


 


 


 
 


Backside Top 
 


This will feature a certain topic (or focus area), and will be 
different each year.  
 
E.g. Year of water, Year of Biking, Energy, Waste. 
 


 
 


Backside Bottom 
This could give information about how to get engaged in the 
implementation of the sustainability plan and could also give 
tips on how to become more sustainable.  
 





